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March 24, 2008 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and 
Citizens of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska 

f5~ o/f?l3eaMcice 
llJUJlO.ci.~.ne.UiJ 

402-228-5200 

400 $Ik Jbeet 
qJeatme.~ J'Vekcaok 6'83/0 

The Revised Statutes of Nebraska, Chapter 19, require that all cities of the first-class publish within six 
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements. These financial statements 
shall be audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by 
a firm of licensed certified public accountants and shall be presented in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Therefore, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual 
financial report of the City of Beatrice for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. 

This report consists of management's representation concerning the finances of the City of Beatrice. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the 
information' presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, 
management of the City of Beatrice has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable 
information for the preparation of the City of Beatrice's financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because the cost of internal controls should 
not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to 
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material 
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report 
is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Almquist, Maltzahn, Galloway & Luth, P.C., a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the 
City of Beatrice's financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Beatrice for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statement; assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering 
an unqualified opinion that the City of Beatrice's financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2007 are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this 
report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Beatrice was a part of a broader, federally 
mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of Federal grantor agencies. The standards 
governing Single Audit engagernents require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair 
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and 
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements 
involving the administration of Federal awards. These reports can be found immediately following the 
statistical section of this report. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management provide a 
narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management's Discussions and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the 
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Beatrice's MD&A can be found immediately 
following the report of the independent auditors. 
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PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The City of Beatrice, founded in 1857 and incorporated in 1873, is located in the Southeast Nebraska, just 39 
miles south of Lincoln, the State Capital. The City of Beatrice is the county seat for Gage County and 
provides some county-wide services. The City of Beatrice currently occupies a land area of eight square 
miles and serves a population of 12,518. The City of Beatrice is empowered to levy a property tax on both 
real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its 
corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing council. 

The City of Beatrice, is a City of the First-Class, and operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. 
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the mayor and eight 
council members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, 
adopting the budget, appointing committees and heads of the various departments. A City Administrator is 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the governing council. The council members are elected on a 
nonpartisan basis and serve four-year staggered terms, with four council members elected every two years. 
The Mayor is elected to serve a four-year term. 

The City provides a full range of municipal services including police and fire protection; rescue, including 
confined space and hazardous materials, and ambulance services; construction and maintenance of streets 
and infrastructure; electric, water and water pollution control utilities; a free public library; a system of parks; 
solid waste management; planning and zoning; and administrative services. The governing body oversees 
the City's various employee retirement systems and these activities are included in this report. The City also 
provides for a municipal airport which is governed by a separately elected board. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Beatrice's financial planning and control. All 
departments of the City of Beatrice are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Administrator 
by June 1" of each year. Management uses these requests as the starting point for developing the proposed 
budget. The proposed budget is then presented to the Mayor and City Council for review prior to August 
31". The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt the final budget 
by September 20'h The appropriated budget is adopted on a per fund basis and budgetary control for 
internal purposes is exercised at the department level. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this 
report for each fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. This information can be 
found in the attached schedules for each fund starting on page 85. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from 
the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Beatrice operates. 

Local Economy 

The City of Beatrice is located on a four-lane expressway just 39 miles south of Nebraska's state capital, 
Lincoln, and is the site of the Homestead National Monument of America. Beatrice continues to provide a 
diverse economical mix of agriculture, light industry, health-related services, and general government for the 
retail area of Southeast Nebraska. The City unemployment rate at 3.6% is slightly higher than the 2006 rate 
of 3.3% however, it continues to be lower than the national rate of 4.7%. City sales tax collections increased 
8% in 2007, as a result of an up-turn in the local economy plus an influx of out-of-town contractors due to a 
couple of large area construction projects, a pipeline construction project and the reconstruction of a local 
fertilizer plant. The local economy and retail sales greatly affect the City's reliance upon property taxes to 
support the main City governmental functions. 

The City Council and Gage County Board of Supervisors continue to support the Gage County Economic 
Development, Inc. to promote and market the industrial climate jointly for Beatrice and Gage County. The 
City of Beatrice maintains a Local Economic Development Plan, funded with one-half of the proceeds from 
an additional half-cent sales and use tax, up to a maximum of $250,000, as approved by the voters. This 
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plan has been extended to 2013 and is to provide funding to purchase and develop land, build infrastructure 
and buildings. 

In 2003 the City in cooperation with Gage County Economic Development Inc., contracted with an outside 
company, Angelou Economics, to conduct a community assessment of Beatrice and Gage County in order to 
establish an economic development strategic plan. The community assessment is used to identify conditions 
in Beatrice and Gage County and to learn the issues that need to be addressed and the strengths that can 
be promoted to enhance economic growth. 

In 2006 the City was successful in attracting a new manufacturing company, Beatrice Biodiesel. The 
company purchased the remaining property in Gage County Industrial Park #2. Construction of the 50-
million gallon biodiesel manufacturing plant, which will utilize soybean oil to produce B 1 00, a pure form of 
biodiesel, was nearly complete in 2007. The plant which should be operational in early 2008 will employ an 
estimated 21 people and is only the first phase. The company may expand its' operations to include a soy­
bean crushing plant as phase two and an Ethanol plant as phase three. Beatrice Biodiesel both represents 
an important step in the City's ongoing efforts to diversify our economic base and helps to bolster and 
support the local agricultural economy. 

In 2007 the City began development of Gage County Industrial Park #3. The first tenant, Precise Fabrication, 
constructed a new 41 ,250 square foot fully air conditioned facility in 2007. Precise Fabrication has 21 
employees and fabricates raw sheet metal into complex component parts for the lawn and turf industries, for 
which 80% of its work is done for the local turf industry. 

With this development, the Gage County Industrial Park now provides for ten manufacturing industries and 
four other businesses, employing 1,450 people. Also located in the City are four other long-time major 
industries employing an additional 700 people, plus several smaller companies. A new area was developed 
in 2004 adjacent to the Municipal Airport for the construction of a large manufacturing facility to handle the 
expansion of Husqvarna, a current local company, and also a new retail facility for Tractor Supply. Planning 
has expanded beyond industry to include the Beatrice Business Campus at a site adjacent to the Southeast 
Community College to attract higher technology businesses. The City of Beatrice is fortunate to have a large 
hospital serving much of the area south of Lincoln that employs over 400 health care professionals and staff. 
Another major presence within the area is a state mental health care facility that employs a staff of 888. 

Directly to the west of Beatrice, is a fertilizer plant operated by Koch Nitrogen, a subsidiary of Koch 
Industries, Inc. which manufactures ammonia, UAN, and carbon dioxide. The plant which began operation in 
1965, completed a $26 million construction project in 2007 which will improve plant efficiency and ensure the 
plant's long-term viability. Approximately 400 employees of construction firm contractors settled in the 
Beatrice area to work on this project providing a temporary boost to the local economy. The company 
employs approximately 40 people from the Beatrice area. 

To the north of Beatrice is Nebraska Public Power District's new Beatrice Power Station, a combined cycle 
gas-fired power plan located on 250 acres just to the northwest of Beatrice with an estimated construction 
cost of $200 million. Gage County best met the selection criteria, including access to major natural gas 
pipelines, existing electric transmission infrastructure and water supply. This newly designed high efficient 
plant will protect NPPD's wholesale customers, which includes the City of Beatrice, against extremely high 
cost market-based power during periods of peak electric demand. The plant employs 12-17 people. 

The Super Wal-Mart store located on the north edge of the City draws people from much of southeast 
Nebraska from south of Lincoln to northeast Kansas. The old K-Mart building vacated several years is now 
alive with activity with the addition of Ace Hardware and Hibbett Sports in 2007, and the expansion of the 
current restaurant tenant. The City's central business district maintains an average ninety-three percent 
(93%) occupancy rate with a variety of stores, specialty shops and commercial businesses. The downtown 
area has benefited from the development of Main Street Beatrice, an organization devoted to the 
organization, economic revitalization, design and promotion of the "heart" of the City. 

Xl 



The Building Permit Summary for the calendar year 2006 shows a total of $17.9 million in commercial and 
residential construction and remodeling which is a large increase from $9.3 million in 2005. The majority of 
the increase is due to the permit for the Beatrice Biodiesel facility. Residential construction made up $5.7 
million of the total, which is down 15% from 2005. 

The City has endorsed the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF), which assists developers in funding the 
basic infrastructure improvements to be made in designated areas for development of both residential and 
commercial property. Construction costs for these improvements may be amortized through the increased 
taxation created by the future property improvements. Residential developers have taken advantage of this 
program, developing a blighted area close to the City's industrial park with several new homes and duplexes. 
TIF financing has been very instrumental in commercial development and used to help attract new industries. 
As mentioned earlier, the development of property adjacent to the Airport allowed for the expansion of 
manufacturing and retail. TIF financing was used in the development of the property adjacent to the Airport, 
the Beatrice Biodiesel property, Precise Fabrication, and several other smaller companies within the 
designated area. 

Financial Planning and Initiatives 

City and community supporters have planned and designed for a hike/bike trail to run through the City's park 
system and along the Big Blue River, making a loop through the community and eventually connecting with 
the Homestead National Monument to the west. Federal grant funding provided 75% to 80% of the cost for 
the first three phases. Phase I and II of the trail connect the City's two major parks and provide a quiet 
scenic trail along the Big Blue River. Phase III was completed in 2003 and runs to the East towards the 
YMCA and the City's Water Park. Private donors providing beautification, benches, and markers have 
enhanced development along the trail. The City of Beatrice purchased the abandoned UPRR right-of-way, 
some of which will be used to interconnect the City's hike/bike trail development. During 2003, the area of 
the old depot location close to downtown Beatrice was transformed into the Trailhead Park. Grants along 
with public and private funds were used to beautify this area. With the help of private funding a beautiful 
memorial to the Veterans was completed along the trail in 2005. In the absence of grant funding in 2005, the 
City funded a portion of the development of the abandoned UPRR right-of-way within the City limits to keep 
this project moving along. In 2007 grant funding of $500,000 provided the opportunity to extend this with the 
development of the 7 miles of abandoned UPRR right-of-way north to Pickrell using a crushed rock surface. 

Several different federal and state grants have benefited the area of Public Safety in the City of Beatrice. 
The City receives grants from the Crime Commission to allow for the continuation of the Victim Assistance 
program and the Southeast Area Drug Enforcement task force. The Cops-in School program 3-year federal 
funding has ended but the program continues though 50/50 combined funding from the City and the Beatrice 
Public Schools. Homeland Security grants have provided equipment to enhance both police and fire 
services. 

In 2006 a committee was established to take an "in depth" look at the overcrowding of the current fire 
department facility and analysis of future space requirements. In 2007 an architect was hired to prepare a 
study of the current fire station and provide construction details and cost estimates for the possibility of either 
expansion of the current facility or construction of a new fire station. The study provided cost estimates that 
range from $3.1 million for the renovation/addition to the existing station to $3.5 million for a newly 
constructed facility. Identified as a high priority, the Mayor and City Council voted unanimously to move 
forward with the project and the next step will be to determine location and financing before putting the item 
on the ballot for public consideration. 

In 2007 a major fire claimed the total loss of the City's Park Shop. The loss was estimated at $300,000 in 
building and contents. Funds to replace equipment lost in the fire were taken from 2007 cash reserves, with 
funds budgeted in the coming year to replace the building. 
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In 2007 the City approved a $290,000 contract to correct a roof problem on the Beatrice Public Library 
building and to repair interior damage. The total cost of the project was just over $300,000 for which the City 
had $80,000 in funds available. The balance was funded with a no-interest loan from the Beatrice Public 
Library Foundation to be repaid over the next four years. 

Every year the City of Beatrice approves and submits a one and six year street improvement plan to the 
State of Nebraska. This plan has enabled the City to maintain an excellent infrastructure of streets, bridges 
and storm sewers. The City of Beatrice aggressively applies for and is successful in receiving grant funding 
to improve targeted arterial streets. In 2007 the City was able to complete the concrete reconstruction of 
Scott Street east to connect w'lth Highway 136 and the Beatrice High School. Thirty percent (30%) of the 
City's 1 % sales tax is allocated each year to the Street fund and combined with state highway allocation 
dollars funds these improvements. 

In 2005 the EPA expanded the pollutant discharge portion of the Clean Water Act of 1972 to include storm 
water runoff from all communities with a population over 10,000. The City received a 2-year grant to help 
provide for the impiementation of the city's Storm Water Management Plan. Local funding is currently taken 
from the street budget. 

The Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the solid waste 
disposal facility. The landfill serves the City of Beatrice and surrounding communities through interlocal 
agreements. Construction of the Phase 3 cell was completed in 2004. The cost of this $1 million project was 
paid from current reserves. A rate increase was implemented in 2007 to again build up reserves for the next 
cell construction and to provide financial assurance for closure/post-closure care costs. 

Debt Administration 

At September 30,2007, the City of Beatrice, including its' component units, had outstanding bond issues and 
notes totaling $7,174,952. Debt as of September 30,2007 consisted of $625,000 in Water Park General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds issued November, 2002, payable from a property tax levy; $165,000 in Various 
Purpose Refunding Bonds issued February, 2005, payable from special assessments levied and if necessary 
a general tax levy; $216,263 in a Note Payable to the Beatrice Public Library Foundation, issued in 2007, 
payable from property taxes; $1,180,000 in Combined Utilities Revenue Refunding bonds issued August, 
2002; $2,045,825 in Bonds in the form of two Promissory Notes issuing indebtedness to the Nebraska 
Department of Environmental Quality issued in 2002; and $855,000 in Solid Waste Disposal Facilities 
Revenue Refunding bonds issued May, 2002. As of September 30,2007, the Airport Authority debt 
consisted of $200,000 in Airport Bonds issued December, 2002, and $27,864 in three Non-interest bearing 
Notes to the Nebraska Department of Aeronautics, both payable from a special property tax levy. As of 
September 30,2007, the Community Redevelopment Authority debt consisted of $815,000 in Highway 
Allocation Pledge Bonds issued November, 2004, payable from tax increment financing and, if necessary, 
Highway Allocation funds; $860,000 in Community Redevelopment Authority Revenue Bonds issued 
December, 2004, payable from tax increment financing revenues and if necessary a special 2.6 cent levy; 
and $185,000 in Community Redevelopment Revenue bonds issued January 2005. 

Cash Management Policies and Practices 

Cash from all general governmental funds, excluding the Community Development Block Grant funds, are 
pooled and invested in various investment instruments. During FY2007 these funds maintained an average 
daily balance of $2.5 million. The City earned an average yield of 4.45% in FY2007, which was an increase 
of 20% when compared to 3.72% earned in FY2006. Investments were made in either certificates of deposit, 
for 30 to 180 days, U.S. Treasury Notes, or interest-bearing deposit accounts, based upon competitive bids 
received from local institutions. An increase in interest rates resulted in more competitive bidding between 
institutions with a rate range on certificates of deposit from 4.8% to 5.26%. Cash is deposited daily into an 
interest-bearing account, with transfers made to checking at the time checks are written. Deposits in these 
banks are covered by federal depository insurance and also are insured and collateralized by securities 
pledged by the owning bank. Cash from the enterprise funds are invested in the same way, however, are 
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not pooled with the general governmental. Principal Mutual Life Insurance or Ameritas, depending on the 
plan, manages the pension trust fund. The plans provide flexible investment options for the employees and 
retirement committees' use, and recognized average earnings rate of 8.6%. 

Risk Management 

When the City renewed the insurance policies in November 2002 and again in 2003, increased premium 
costs forced the City to assume higher deductibles for some policies. During 2005 the City reviewed the 
City's insurance policies and to what level the City could safely assume the risk of even higher deductibles, 
especially in the area of workers compensation. Effective with the November 2005 renewal, the City 
implemented a large workers compensation deductible of $100,000 per claim with a projected cost savings 
of $89,000 per year, and renewed the same policy deductibles in November 2006. Safety committees have 
been established as in accordance with Nebraska Statutes and safety programs are conducted on a 
department-by-department basis with each department being responsible for conducting safety programs 
that pertain to their job risks. 

Pension Benefits 

The City of Beatrice sponsors four pension plans for the benefit of its firefighters, police officers, general 
government employees and Board of Public Works employees. The firefighters and police officers plans are 
as required by Nebraska State Statutes. The City of Beatrice has set up retirement committees with 
representatives from the police, fire, general government, and administration. 

The police, fire, and general government pension plans, not including the Board of Public Works, are 
contracted with Principal Mutual Life Insurance. Investment options available include guaranteed interest 
accounts, money markets, bond and mortgage, stock accounts, and real estate. Each pension plan has an 
investment policy, which outlines how participants may direct their money. The general government is a 
defined contribution plan and allows participants to direct contributions to all investment accounts with the 
matching employer share directed the same as the employees so long as no more than 50% is in stock 
accounts. In formulating the police and fire policies, consideration was given to the liabilities imposed on the 
taxpayers due to the minimum benefit requirements under the Nebraska Statutes and the absence of the 
minimum benefit requirements for those participants employed after January 1, 1984. Participants are 
allowed to direct contributions to all investment accounts with the exception that the total contributions in 
stock and real estate accounts be only 50% and that employer contributions will be invested the same as 
employee contributions. The unallocated funds contributed by the City of Beatrice are maintained in a 
separate account and invested as set forth in the investment policy by the retirement committee. 

The actuarial valuation made as of January 1, 2000, for both police and fire plans continues to reflect the 
City's efforts to maintain plan funding to provide a minimum level of benefits according to Nebraska law. A 
review was made of both police and fire plans as of September 30, 2007 and it was actuarially determined 
that no deposits were required or made into the unallocated pension assets for the defined benefit portion of 
the plan. At September 30,2007, there were only four remaining individuals provided the minimum benefit. 

The Board of Public Works employees' pension plan is contracted with Ameritas Financial Services. It is a 
defined contribution plan and employees are allowed to self-direct the investment of their contributions into 
various investment options however the employer contributions are invested into guaranteed interest 
accounts. 

Additional information on the City of Beatrice's pension plans can be found in Note D(1) in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
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Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. The City has also 
been awarded the Certificate of Achievement for fifteen previous consecutive years from 1991 to 2005, and 
also for the period from 1984 to 1987. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report 
satisfied both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation and completion of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without 
the dedication and efficiency of the entire staff of the Management and Budget Department. Thanks is 
extended to the members of our independent certified public accounting firm for their able assistance and for 
the professional manner in which they have performed their engagement. I would also like to thank the 
Mayor and City Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of 
the City of Beatrice in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

""~~ 
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GALI.DWAY CERTIFIED QLUTH PUBLIC 

0... ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Beatrice, Nebraska 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermnental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the fiduciary 
funds of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, as of and for the years ended September 30, 
2007 and 2006, which collectively comprisc the City of Beatrice, Nebraska's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amouuts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the govenunental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
the aggregate remaining fund inforn1ation, and the fiduciary funds of the City of 
Beatrice, Nebraska, as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the years then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of An1erica. 

Wealth Management. LlC, Registered Investment Advisor, is affiliated with Almquist, Ma!tzahn, Galloway & Luth, P.c. 
and offers wealth management and investment advisory services. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
February 26, 2008, on our consideration of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska's intemal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that repmi is to describe the 
scope of our testing of intemal control over financial repmiing and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That repmi is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results 
of our audit. 

The accompanying management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary 
infonnation on pages 3 tln'ough II and 75 through 77 are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but are supplementary infonnation required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied celiain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the required supplementary infonnation. However, we did not audit the 
infonnation and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Beatrice, Nebraska's basic financial statements. The 
accompanying other supplementary infmmation and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as listed in the Table of Contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Snch inf011113tion has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements talcen as a whole. 

A~,~~~~, 
C9.Ml~CIJ..\, ~ ~~. L- -

Grandlslancl, Nebraska 
Febmary 26, 2008 
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CITY OF BEATR[CE 
MANAGEMENT'S D[SCUSS[ON AND ANAL YS[S 

As management of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, we offer readers of the City of Beatrice's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Beatrice for the fiscal year ended September 
30,2007. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in the Introductory Section on 
pages vii to xiii of this report. 

F[NANC[AL H[GHLIGHTS 

The assets of the City of Beatrice exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year by $55,876,560. Of 
this amount, $2,955,111 may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The government's total net assets increased $1,680,710. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Beatrice's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $5,486,960, an increase of $186,541 in comparison with the prior year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $1,941,957, or 28.4% of 
total General Fund expenditures. 

The City of Beatrice's total debt decreased $800,863 (10%) during the current fiscal year, due to annual debt 
obligations being paid. The only addition was a note in the amount of $216,263 to the Beatrice Library Foundation. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Beatrice's basic financial 
statements. The City of Beatrice's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of 
Beatrice's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Beatrice's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator whether the financial position of the City of Beatrice is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement 
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but 
unused vacation and sick leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Beatrice that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended 
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the City of Beatrice include general government, public safety, highways and streets, storm 
water, sanitation, economic development, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City of 
Beatrice include an electric distribution operation, water pumping and distribution, sewage collection and treatment, 
and solid waste management. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Beatrice itself (known as the primary 
government), but also a legally separate entity the Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency. The Beatrice Area Solid 
Waste Agency, although legally separate, functions for all practical purposes as a department of the City of Beatrice, 
and therefore has been included as an integral part of the primary government. The Beatrice Airport Authority and 
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the Community Redevelopment Authority are included as discretely presented component units due to the fiscal 
dependency on the City for any allocation of tax revenues. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 to 14 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The City of Beatrice, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the 
City of Beatrice can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
govermnent's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet 
and the governrnental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Beatrice maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances for the General Fund, the Street Fund, the Community Development Block Grant Fund, and the 
Unbonded Assessment Debt Service Fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other eight 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Beatrice adopts an annual appropriated budget using the General All-Purpose Fund tool for all 
governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 to 18 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City of Beatrice maintains six different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Beatrice 
uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and water pollution control utilities, and also the solid waste 
management and sanitation services. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the City of Beatrice's various functions. The City of Beatrice uses internal service 
funds to account for its' self-insured employee benefits. Because this service predominately benefits governmental 
rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Electric Fund, Water Fund, 
Water Pollution Control, and Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency, which are considered to be major funds of the City 
of Beatrice. Data from the other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for 
each of these nonmajor proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 to 23 of this report. 
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Fiduciarv Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary 
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not 
available to support the City of Beatrice's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that 
used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 to 25 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 26 to 
74 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 75 to 77 of this report, 
followed by Other Supplementary Information including nonmajor combining balance sheet and statements and 
schedules of individual fund information in further detail. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City of Beatrice, assets exceeded liabilities by $55,876,560 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City of Beatrice's net assets (87.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The City of Beatrice uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Beatrice's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from 
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City of Beatrice's Net Assets 
(expressed in thousand's, comparison to 2006) 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
ASSETS 

Current and other assets 7,050 6,056 5,196 5,361 12,246 11,417 
Capital assets 25,999 24,618 28,198 28,393 54,197 53,011 

TOTAL ASSETS 33049 30,676 33.394 33754 66443 64428 

LIABILITIES 
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,433 1,349 5,064 5,598 6,497 6,947 
Other liabilities 1,797 976 2,272 2,309 4,069 3,285 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3230 2,325 7336 7907 10566 10232 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 24,853 21,437 24,083 23,670 48,936 45,107 
Restricted 3,560 3,734 426 732 3,986 4,466 
Unrestricted 1,405 3,178 1,550 1,445 2,955 4,623 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 29818 28349 26059 25847 55877 54196 

An additional portion of the City of Beatrice's net assets (7%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $2,955,111 may be used to 
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Beatrice is able to report positive balances in all three categories of 
net assets, for the government as a whole. 

There was an increase of $1.5 million in net assets reported in connection with the City of Beatrice's governmental 
activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Beatrice's net assets by $212,000. A breakdown of these 
activities is as follows: 

City of Beatrice's Changes in Net Assets 
(expressed in thousand's, comparison to 2006) 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
REVENUES 

Program revenues 
Charges for services 2,001 1,939 16,417 15,761 18,418 17,700 
Operating grants and contributions 1,830 1,526 -0- -0- 1,830 1,526 
Capital grants and contribution 1,378 461 215 455 1,593 916 

General revenues 
Taxes 4,988 4,669 -0- -0- 4,988 4,669 
Unrestricted Intergovernmental 555 453 -0- -0- 555 453 

Other revenue 353 ~ 303 232 656 -ZM 
Total revenues 11,105 9,610 16,935 16.448 28,040 26,058 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
EXPENSES 

General Government 1,525 1,535 1,525 1,535 
Public Safety 4,815 4,222 4,815 4,222 
Highways/Streets 1,583 1,322 1,583 1,322 
Culture and Recreation 1,662 1,337 1,662 1,337 
Interest on long-term debt 51 156 51 156 
Electric 11,352 10,754 11,352 10,754 
Water 1,685 1,716 1,685 1,716 
Water Pollution Control 1,470 1,435 1,470 1,435 
Sanitation 1,140 1,073 1,140 1,073 
Solid Waste Management 1,076 1,049 1,076 1,049 

Total expenses 9,636 8,572 16,723 16,027 26,359 24,599 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,469 1,038 212 421 1,681 1,459 

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 28,349 25,152 25,847 25,426 54,196 50,578 
Restatement of Net Assets 2,159 2,159 

--
NET ASSETS, end of year 29,818 28,349 26,059 25,847 55,877 54,196 

----- ----- ----- ----- ----- -----

Governmental Activities 

Tax revenues increased 7% in 2007 from the previous year. In 2007 property tax revenues increased 6.8% to meet 
the needs of the 2007 budget. Sales Tax revenues which were projected conservatively, increased 7.8% in 2007 
due to a boon in the local economy from some area construction projects, and helped bring the unreserved fund 
balance back to the 2005 level. Occupation tax collections increased just 3% after a 2006 increase of 25% due to 
the inclusion of Alltel cellular phone services effective December 2005. 
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Operating grants continued to fund important public safety programs, culture and recreation programs, and provide 
for street maintenance and storm water management. State highway allocation dollars are a major funding source 
to maintain the street fund. The police department operates a victim assistance program and an area drug task 
force with grant funding and matching dollars coming from interlocal agreements. Interlocal agreements also 
provide funding for County-wide 911 services and ambulance services. 

Capital Grants and contributions vary from year to year. During 2007 the City continued to receive grant funding for 
public safety equipment, acquisition of floodplain property, park trail development and street improvements. The 
major grant-funded projects in 2007 were the $500,000 development of the hike/bike trail and the Scott Street 
reconstruction project. 

For the most part, expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for services. There were no 
major personnel changes which accounts for the majority of operating expenses. Any decreases are a direct result 
of capital grants expenses which vary from year to year. 

Business-Type Activities 

Charges for services for business-type activities increased 4%. The Electric fund, which distributes purchased 
power, increased rates effective January i, 2007 an average of 3.5% due to an increase in the cost of purchased 
power of 3.5% from Nebraska Public Power District. The Water and Water Pollution Control funds which had 
increased rates in 2006 to fund a more aggressive main replacement and improvement schedule, did not increase 
rates in 2007. Garbage Service fees which are accounted for in the Sanitation fund, increased 7% May 1,2007, to 
provide for the increased cost of a new four-year hauler contract and for the increased Beatrice Area Solid Waste 
Agency landfill disposal fees. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City of Beatrice uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City of Beatrice's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Beatrice's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Beatrice's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $5,486,960, an increase of $186,541 in comparison with the prior year as restated. A large portion of 
this fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been 
committed: 1) to pay for CDBG Revolving Loans ($2,305,147); 2) to pay debt service ($217,103); 3) for the LB840 
Economic Development program ($675,162) and 4) for other restricted fund purposes ($394,228). The remaining 
balance is $1,895,320 in unreserved fund balance which is available for spending at the government's discretion. 
This is an increase of $328,710 when compared to 2006. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Beatrice. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $1,941,957. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may 
be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance 
represents 28.4% of total General Fund expenditures. 

The fund balance of the City of Beatrice's General Fund increased by $234,762 during the current fiscal year. The 
key factor in this increase is due to higher than anticipated revenues. A more detailed analysis of operational 
revenues and expenditures is as follows: 

General fund revenues as a total increased 13% over the previous year. Tax revenues increased due to increased 
tax levy and increased sales tax revenue. Intergovernmental revenue available to fund general fund operations 
increased 34% through increased state aid from municipal equalization funds, the FEMA flood grant, and a housing 
grant. Charges for services are up 22.7%, largely due to an increase ambulance charges from to an increase in the 
number of calls. Miscellaneous revenues decreased from 2006 due to the donation of 911 communications 
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equipment through a county grant in that year only. Favorable interest rates continued to increase interest earnings 
another 6% in 2007. 

General fund operating expenditures increased 10% from the previous year. Personnel costs increased just 4%. 
Other operational expenditures increased 19.5% which includes increases associated with fuel costs. A large 
increase in costs from contingencies were due to costs associated with an EPA claim for cleanup on a former gas 
plant site, funding a larger specific on one health insurance claim, disaster cleanups due to parks fire and flood. 
There was a transfer out of $185,322 to fund 2007 capital projects. 

The Street Fund has a fund balance of $4,677 at the end of the fiscal year. The fund balance increased $168,225 
from the previous year, due to increased revenues and holding some minor projects. Operational costs were 
maintained in 2007. The City of Beatrice has made an aggressive move to maintain and improve the street system, 
and to convert arterial asphalt streets to concrete. The C'lty of Beatrice has been successful in obtaining grant 
dollars to fund a significant portion of these improvements, as it did in 2007, but these costs have significantly 
reduced the available fund balance to where it is today. 

The Community Development Block Grant fund has a fund balance of $2,309,706 at the end of the fiscal year, of 
this $2,305,147 is reserved for Revolving Loans, leaving an unreserved balance of $4,559. A reuse loan in 2005 to 
Knowledge Marketing in the amount of $635,000 was added to the reserve however, this loan will be forgiven if 
terms of the agreement are met within the five year time-frame ending July, 2009. During 2007 CDBG grants funds 
were received for the acquisition of floodplain property, leaving two remaining properties to be settled in 2008. 

The Unbonded Assessment Debt Service fund has a negative fund balance of ($235,058) at the end of the fiscal 
year. The fund balance decreased $51,387 due to cost of infrastructure improvements. Those costs not repaid by 
Special Assessment revenue will be a cost of the City. 

The Other governmental funds include four Special Revenue funds; the Economic Development fund, the Keno 
fund, the 911 Surcharge fund, and the Storm Water Management fund; and the Debt Service funds, and the Capital 
Improvement funds. The combined fund balances for these funds at the end of the fiscal year was $1,465,678. A 
majority of this fund balance is reserved for specific purposes; $675,162 for Economic Development; $217,103 for 
Debt Service; and $362,966 for Capital projects. The Economic Development fund received the maximum sales tax 
dollars of $250,000, plus an increase in miscellaneous revenue of capital contributions of $113,826 plus $34,536 in 
interest earnings, which helped to fund the program expenditures, which in 2007 included capital outlay of $410,661, 
reducing the fund balance by $186,580. The Keno fund proceeds increased 17% from 2006, providing more dollars 
for community betterment projects. The Storm Water Management fund was created in 2007 to account for the 
costs associated with the implementation of the plan and the revenue sources, including grant specific funds. The 
Debt Service fund requirements were met by special levies. Capital Improvement fund balances changed slightly as 
there were sufficient revenue and other financing sources to meet expenditures. The reserve for Public Safety 
Equipment continues to increase in reserving funds for the planned purchase of a fire truck. 

Proprietarv Funds 

The City of Beatrice's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Electric, Water, Water Pollution Control, Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency (BASWA) 
and Other Enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $1,550,277. The total change in net assets for all 
funds was an increase of $211 ,539 from 2006. Invested in Capital Assets increased from $23,669,489 in FY2006 to 
$24,082,895 in FY2007. Extension and replacement of capital assets is discussed later in this report. Analysis of 
the Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency fund will determine the effect of current rate increases to fund capital 
expansion and future cost of closure and postclosure care. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds 
have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Beatrice's business-type activities. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget amounted to an increase in appropriations of 
$1,370,188 and can be briefly summarized as follows: Expenditures related to grants and additional donations 
received in the amount of $281 ,836; $80,000 in parks fire losses; $165,000 in expenditures related to Medicare and 
Medicaid mandated adjustments to ambulance service charges; $110,000 in funding the excess reinsurance 
specific and $415,000 in excess health self-funding costs; $198,000 in special assessment district construction 
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costs; and $120,352 in excess operational costs for various reasons including snow removal and increased 
ambulance calls. 

The increase was funded with a combination of grants, donations, loans, ambulance service charges and available 
fund balance. During the year revenues exceeded budgetary estimates therefore the need to draw upon existing 
fund balance did not result in a deficiency. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City of Beatrice's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of September 
30,2007, amounts to $51 ,676,375 (net of accumulated depreciation) plus construction in progress of $21 ,870 and 
land of $2,498,611. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvements other 
than buildings, machinery and equipment, park facilities, a system of roads, highways, bridges and storm sewers. 
The total increase in the City of Beatrice's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2.2 percent (a 
5.6% increase for governmental activities and a .7% decrease for business-type activities). 

City of Beatrice's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation, except land) 

(expressed in thousands, as compared to 2006) 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Land 2,405 2,374 94 94 2,499 2,468 
Buildings and system 5,045 4,680 1,208 1,208 6,253 5,888 
Improvements other than 

Buildings 3,594 3,523 55,002 52,982 58,596 56,505 
Machinery and equipment 6,280 6,053 5,512 5,317 11,792 11,370 
Infrastructure 22,548 20,763 -0- -0- 22,548 20,763 
Construction in progress -0- -0- 22 117 22 117 
Less accumulated depreciation (13,873) (12,775) (33,640) (31,325) (47,513) (44,100) 

Total 25,999 24,618 28,198 28,393 54,197 53,011 

Major changes in Capital Assets in the Governmental Activities during fiscal year 2007 included concrete street 
reconstruction, infrastructure improvements for development of the industrial park, residential infrastructure 
improvements to develop blighted areas, extension of the trail development, park improvements, and replacement 
and repair of the library roof. Increase in land included acquisition of floodplain property and property for the 
development of a new residential park. Homeland Security and other grant funds made possible needed equipment 
purchases to improve and enhance our public safety departments, and donations provided playground equipment to 
develop the new park. Also contributing to the increase was the replacement of equipment lost in the parks fire. 

Major changes in Capital Assets in the Business-type Activities include: in the Electric Fund building of circuit and 
transformer replacement of Sub 9 to serve the new Bio-Diesel plant, continued 12.5 Kv conversion projects, new 
transformers, re-conductor 34.5 lines, new residential developments, and other overhead projects; in the Water fund 
installation of new water main service to industrial and residential areas, water main replacement projects along 8th 

Street, Well #7 rehab and Beatrice North Pump Station; in the Water Pollution Control fund installation of Insituform 
pipe liner in sewer mains, WWTP grit removal system improvements, and purchase of a sludge belt conveyor. 

Additional information on the City of Beatrice's capital assets can be found in Note CA on pages 50 to 52 of this 
report. 
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Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Beatrice had total bonded debt outstanding of $5,087,088. Of this 
amount, $625,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government and $165,000 is special 
assessment debt for which the government is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the 
assessment. The remainder of the City of Beatrice's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue 
sources (Le., revenue bonds). 

General obligation bonds 
General Notes 
Special assessment debt with 

governmental commitment 
Revenue bonds 

Total 

City of Beatrice's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

(expressed in thousand's) 

Governmental 
activities 

2007 2006 

625 
216 

165 

1,006 

735 
-0-

220 
-0-

955 

Business-type 
activities 

-0- -0-
-0- -0-

-0- -0-
4,081 4,679 

4,081 4,679 

Total 
2007 2006 

625 
216 

165 
4,081 

5,087 

735 
-0-

220 
4,679 

5,634 
====== ====== ====== ====== ====== 

During the current fiscal year, the City of Beatrice issued new notes payable in the amount of $216,263, with the 
payment of annual bond maturities in the amount of $763,594, the net change in debts decreased by $547,331 
(13.5%). 

The Beatrice Airport Authority, a component unit of the City of Beatrice, had outstanding debt at 9/30/2007 of 
$227,864, after annual bond and note maturities were paid. Of this amount $200,000 comprises debt paid through 
a special levy approved by the City of Beatrice. 

The Community Redevelopment Authority, a component unit of the City of Beatrice, had outstanding debt at 
9/30/2007 of $1 ,860,000, after annual bond maturities were paid. The revenue bonds are repaid through proceeds 
from tax increment financing. 

Additional information on the City of Beatrice's long-term debt can be found in Note C.6 on pages 54 to 57 of this 
report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The unemployment rate for the City of Beatrice is currently 3.6 percent, a slight increase from a rate of 3.3 percent a 
year ago. This is slightly higher than the state's average unemployment rate of 3.1 percent but is favorably lower 
than the national average rate of 4.7 percent. 

The occupancy rate of the government's central business district maintained an average of 93% for the past three 
years. In other retail business, the loss of two major retailers has been partially absorbed by a super retailer, Wal­
Mart. Two new retail stores, Ace Hardware and Hibbett Sports, opened in 2007. An increase in sales tax revenues 
in 2007 are a result of an up-turn in the local economy and influx of out-of-town contractors in the area. 

Economic Development efforts continue to be successful in attracting new companies. Construction of a new 
ethanol plant by Beatrice Biodiesel in 2007 and development of the 3'd Industrial Park made possible the 
construction of a new facility for Precise Fabrication. Land purchased on West Highway 136 was selected as the 
site for the new National Regional Nebraska Guard Armory. A new commercial development Crest Addition will 
provide for business development along the east entrance to the City. 
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During the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance in the General Fund increased from $1,707,195 to 
$1,941,957 at the end of fiscal year 2007 due to revenues in excess of projections. In preparing the budget for 
fiscal year 2008, the City of Beatrice took a conservative increase in sales tax projections and used the slight 
property valuation increase of 1 % to increase the property tax dollars and keep the levy the same at .293520, plus 
an additional 5 cent levy to fund proposed public safety equipment bonds for the purchase of a new fire ladder truck. 
General fund dollars of $217,304 and Keno dollars of $82,552 will be used to fund the City's Capital Projects in 
2008. Revenue projections will be sufficient to maintain the City's operating expenditures and personnel staffing at 
the 2007 level. The addition of a Code Enforcement Officer will raise the personnel full-time staff by one, however, 
the announcement of several retirements will allow for a reorganization of administrative staff, which will affect the 
2009 budget. The 2008 budget and future budgets will be affected by the implementation of the Storm Water 
Management Program. 

Electric fund revenue projections and expenses will require a 5% rate increase in the 2008 budget due to a 
projected 12% rate increased in purchased power in the spring of 2008. A rate increase will also be necessary in 
the Water Pollution Control fund to implement the investigative type program approved in the budget. The Garbage 
rates increased in April of 2007 will be sufficient to fund the garbage hauler contract rate increase and to fund the 
Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency projected closure and postclosure costs project for 2008. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Beatrice's finances for all those with an 
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Beatrice, 400 Ella Street, Beatrice, 
NE 68310. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 1 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Primary Government 2007 

Governmental Business-type 2007 2006 Component 
Activities Activities Total Total Units 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,127,643 $ 1,307,153 $ 3,434,796 $ 3,221,313 $ 94,742 
Investments 770,000 770,000 660,000 150,000 
Cash on deposit - County Treasurer 235,499 235,499 208,869 36,527 
Accounts receivable 1,376,406 1,229,072 2,605,478 1,933,399 104,748 
Assessments receivable 329,178 329,178 248,563 
In-1ieu-of assessments receivable 10,105 10,105 11,669 

Taxes receivable 85,375 85,375 76,933 25,836 
Unbilled and aeclued revenues 567,817 567,817 493,355 
Materials and supplies inventories 758,996 758,996 671,216 57,416 
Prepaid expenses 15,045 15,045 12,867 
Current portion of eRA bonds receivable 185,000 185,000 180,000 
Current portion of notes receivable 170,000 170,000 377,178 
Interest receivable 18,307 4,349 22,656 17,283 

Total Current Assets 5,122,513 4,067,432 9,189,945 7,735,467 846,447 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Employee benefits 13,263 13,263 26,150 
Grants and capital projects 310,757 310,757 285,816 
Debt service reserve account 425,387 425,387 732,489 

Restricted Investments 
Customer deposits 143,845 143,845 111,180 
Grants and capital projects 96,835 96,835 97,106 
Closure/postclosure maintenance 521,176 521,176 370,325 

Total Restricted Assets 407,592 1,103,671 1,511,263 1,623,066 

Capital Assets 
Land 2,404,759 93,852 2,498,611 2,467,517 337,622 
Construction in progress 21,870 21,870 117,374 
Capital assets (net of accumulated 

depreciation) 23,594,282 28,082,093 51,676,375 50,426,350 2,103,611 
Net Capital Assets 25,999,041 28,197,815 54,196,856 53,011,241 2,441,233 

Other Assets 
Loans receivable, net of current portion 1,519,429 1,519,429 1,841,175 4,305,301 
Bonds receivable, net of current p0l1ion 185,000 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 25,369 25,369 32,311 3,034 

Total Other Assets 1,519,429 25,369 1,544,798 2,058,486 4,308,335 

Total Noncurrent Assets 27,926,062 29,326,855 57,252,917 56,692,793 6,749,568 

Total Assets 33,048,575 33,394,287 66,442,862 64,428,260 7,596,015 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS, Continued 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 2007 
Activities Activities Total 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 781,791 1,017,983 1,799,774 
Accrued expenses 44,185 44,185 
Registered wanants payable 374,022 374,022 
Claims incurred but 110t reported 35,000 35,000 
Accrued compensated absences 255,867 255,867 
Sales tax payable 75,784 75,784 
Employee insurance payable 68,000 68,000 
Accrued interest payable 45,219 31,273 76,492 
Deferred revenues 324,846 324,846 
Customer deposits 143,845 143,845 
Due to City (from Component Unit) (50,000) (50,000) 
Cmrent maturities ofTIF payable 
Current maturities oflong-tem1 debt 286,726 634,890 921,616 

Total Current Liabilities 1,797,604 2,271,827 4,069,431 

Noncurrent liabilities, net of current portion 
Revenue bonds 1,530,000 1,530,000 
General obligation bonds 620,000 620,000 
Notes and leases payable 239,526 1,975,399 2,214,925 
Noncurrent deferred revenue 

TIP payable 
Compensated ahsenses, noncun·ent 573,444 288,502 861,946 
Estimated cun-ent cost of closure 

and postclosure 1,270,000 1,270,000 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,432,970 5,OiJ'1,901 6,496,871 

Total Liabilities 3,230,574 7,335,728 10,566,302 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of 

related debt 24,852,789 24,082,895 48,935,684 
Restricted net assets 

Restricted fOT economic development 675,162 675,162 
Restricted for debt service 217,103 425,387 642,490 
Resllicted for library capital 

improvements 96,835 96,835 
Restricted for public safety equipment 266,131 266,131 
Restricted loan fund 2,305,147 2,305,147 

Umestricted net assets 1,404,834 1,550,277 2,955,111 

Total Net Assets $ 29,818,001 $ 26,058,559 $ 55,876,560 $ 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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2007 

2006 Component 
Total Units 

1,363,149 107,969 
39,693 

329,927 65,801 

65,000 
181,086 

64,491 
62,000 
69,225 18,014 

263,227 22,600 

111,180 
50,000 
58,363 

776,115 258,532 
3,285,400 620,972 

2,035,000 1,810,000 
790,000 

2,245,484 19,332 
89,774 

2,642,837 

756,526 

1,120,000 
iJ,947,OlO 4,5(}1,94'1 

10,232,410 5,182,915 

45,106,953 2,216,403 

861,742 
956,076 36,225 

97,106 
235,366 

2,316,008 
4,622,599 160,472 

54,195,850 $ 2,413,100 



CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Functions/Programs 
Primrtry Government: 

Governmental Activities 
General government 
P~lb1ic safety 
Highways and streets 
Culture and recreation 
Interest on long-te1ll1 debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Electric 
Water 
\Vater pollution control 
Sanitation 
BASWA 

Total Business-type Activities 
Total Primary Government 

Component Units: 
Airport Authority 
Comn1l1'nity Redevelopment Auth. 

Tot81 Component Units 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Propclty tax 
Tax increment 
Sales tax 
Occupation tax 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Miscellaneolls revenues 
Unrestricted investment eamings 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 
Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

Expenses 

$ 1,525,313 
4,814,618 
1,583,261 
1,661,496 

51,357 
9,636,045 

11,352,226 
1,685,340 
1,469,718 
1,139,633 
1,075,677 

16,722,594 
$ 26,358,639 

S 764,237 
343,595 

$ 1,107,832 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as previously reported 
Restatement of Net Assets 
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated 

Net Assets, End of Year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Pro~!"am Revenues 
Operating Capltal 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Charges Grants Grants Primary Govemment 
for and and Governmental Business-type 2007 

Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

371,674 $ $ 247,961 $ (905,678) $ $ (905,678) 
1,402,026 664,238 35,478 (2,712,876) (2,712,876) 

34,318 1,140,177 429,808 21,042 21,042 
192,847 25,211 665,266 (778,172) (778,172) 

(51,357) (51,357) 
2,000,865 1,829,626 1,378,513 (4,427,041) (4,427,041) 

11,524,236 172,010 172,010 
1,625,956 129,235 69,851 69,851 
1,129,261 84,988 (255,469) (255,469) 
1,139,633 

997,495 (78,182) (78,182) 
16,416,581 214,223 (91,790) (91,790) 
18,417,446 S 1,829,626 $ 1,592,736 (4,427,041) (01,790) (4,518,831 ) 

373,570 $ $ 189,953 
184,085 

373,570 L 184,085_ $ 189,953 

1,437,813 1,437,813 

2,813,973 2,813,973 
735,742 735,742 
555,063 555,063 
302,369 171 ,536 473,905 
136,094 131,793 267,887 
(84,842) (84,842) 

5,890,212 303,329 6,199,541 

1,469,171 211,539 1,680,710 

28,348,830 25,847,020 54,195,850 

28,348,830 25,847,020 54,195,850 

S 29,818,001 $ 26,058,559 $ 55,876,560 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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2007 

2006 Component 
Total Units 

$ (1,159,753) 
(2,302,853) 

(26,231 ) 
(1,000,724) 

( 156,582) 
(4,646,143) 

210,242 
(72,559) 
176,653 

(125,547) 
188,789 

(4,457,354) 

$ (200,714) 
(159,510) 
(360,224) 

1,345,681 184,188 
326,665 

2,609,294 
713,808 
453,478 15,991 
536,235 27,442 
253,308 8,747 

4,451 
5,916,255 503,033 

1,458,901 202,809 

50,578,144 2,387,818 
2,158,805 (177,527) 

52,736,949 2,210,291 

$ 54,195,850 $ 2,413,100 



CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 3 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

200i 

Unbanded Other Tolal 
Assessment Govemmental Governmental 2006 

General Streets CDBG Debt Service Funds Funds Total 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 33i,081 $ 337,970 $ 620,277 $ 17,710 $ 793,100 $ 2,106,138 $ 1,759.316 
Investments 770,000 770,000 660,000 
Cash on deposit. County Treasurer 208,518 26,981 235,499 208,869 
Accounts receivable (net) 499,912 414,334 331,969 1.246,215 484,310 
Interest receivable 14,419 3,888 18,307 12,223 
Assessments receivable 313,367 15,811 329,178 248,563 
Restricted: 

Cash 44,626 266,131 310,757 285,816 
Investments 96,835 96,835 97,106 

[11·\ i eu-of assessments 10,105 10,105 11,669 
Due from other funds 115,000 78,029 123,039 316,068 573,032 
Loans receivable 1,689,429 1,689,429 1,841,175 
Taxes receivable 85,375 85,375 76,933 

Total Assets $ 2,060,512 S 752,304 $ 2,309,706 $ 423,525 $ 1,667,859 $ 7,213,906 $ 6,259,012 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 60,900 $ 546,559 $ $ $ 174,332 $ 781,791 $ 122,893 
Registered warrants payable 374,022 374,022 329,927 
Accrued interest payable 38,991 6,228 45,219 34,514 
DcfclTCd revenues 57,655 245,570 21,621 324,846 263,227 
Due to other funds 201,068 201,068 208,032 

Total Liabilities 118,555 747,627 658,583 202,181 1,726,946 958,593 

Fund Balances 
Reserved [or: 

Reserved for economic developmenl 675,162 675,162 861,742 
Reserved for debt service 217,103 217,103 223,587 
Reserved for library capital improvements 96,835 96,835 97,106 
Reserved for public safety equipment 266,131 266,131 235,366 
Reserved for st0l111 water management 31,262 31,262 
Revolving loan fund 2,305,147 2,305,147 2,316,008 

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in: 
General fund 1,450,957 1,450,957 1,262,195 
Special revenue funds 4,677 4,559 175,723 184,959 8,287 

Debt service funds (235,058) (235,058) (183,671) 

Capilal projects funds 3,462 3,462 34,799 

Unreserved, Designated: 
General Fund subsequent years' expenditures 491,000 491,000 445,000 

Total Fund Balances 1,941,957 4,677 2,309,706 (235,058) 1,465,678 5,486,960 5,300,419 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 2,060,512 $ 752,304 $ 2,309,706 $ 423,525 $ 1,667,859 
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Amounts Reported For Governmental 
Activities in the Statement of Net 
Assets Are Different Because: 
Capital assets lIsed in governmental 

activities are not 'financial resources 
and, therefore, afe defelTed in the 
runds. 

Internal service funds are used by 
management to charge the costs of fleet 
management and management infol111ation 
systems to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilities orthe internal service funds are 
included in governmental activities in the 
statement of net assets. 

Long.tem11iabilities are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, 
are not repolied in the funds as follows: 
Bonds Payable 
Notes and Leases Payable 
NOnCU!Tent Accrued Absences 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

CITY OF BEATRICE 
BALANCE SHEET, Continued 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 

General Sh"eets CDBO 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Unbended 
Assessment 
Debt Service 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

25,999,041 

51,696 

(790,000) 
(356,252) 
(573,444) 

$ 29,818,001 

Exhibit 3 

2006 
Total 

24,618,203 

(10,006) 

(955,000) 
(185,739) 
(419,047) 

$ 28,348,830 



CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 4 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Unbanded Other Total 
Assessment Governmental Governmental 2006 

General Streets CDBG Debt Service Funds Funds Total 
Revenues 
Taxes 

Property tax $ 1,260,966 $ $ $ $ 176,847 $ 1,437,813 $ 1,345,681 
Sales tax 2,001,191 562,782 250,000 2,813,973 2,609,294 
Occupation tax 735,742 735,742 713,808 

Licenses and pCllnits 199,008 199,008 94,817 
Intergovernmental 1,184,967 1,470,262 64,213 738,381 3,457,823 2,452,508 
Charges for services 1,664,723 34,318 74,005 1,773,046 1,461,191 
Keno proceeds 109,558 109,558 93,706 
Special assessments 95,681 8,111 103,792 159,761 
Interest 75,268 20,667 16,579 39,745 152,259 141,297 
LO,m proceeds 216,263 216,263 
Donations and miscellaneolls revenue 120,905 65,599 21,985 196,441 404,930 532,419 

Totlll Revenues 7,242,770 2,132,961 106,865 112,260 1,809,351 11,404,207 9,604,482 

Expenditures 
Current 

General govemmcnt 1,022,521 63,848 211,624 1,297,993 1,338,934 
Public safety 4,502,256 50,718 4,552,974 4,105,029 
Highways and streets 968,064 968,064 898,007 
Culture and recreation 1,321,558 1,321,558 1,141,291 

Debt Service 
Principal 165,000 165,000 325,000 
Interest 22,412 28,945 51,357 156,582 

Cnpitaloutlay 978,636 48,000 159,271 1,569,760 2,755,667 2,077,272 

MFO payments ~ other entities 122,907 122,907 122,576 

Total Expenditures 6,846,335 1,946,700 111,848 181,683 2,148,954 11,235,520 10,164,691 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 396,435 186,261 (4,983) (69,423) (339,603) 168,687 (560,209) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 20,600 18,036 275,322 313,958 387,000 

Transfers out (185,322) (18,036) (110,600) (313,958) (387,000) 

Sale ofcapita\ assets 3,049 14,805 17,854 39,100 

Total Other Financing Sources 
alltl Uses (161,673) (18,036) 18,036 179,527 17,854 39,100 

Net Clumge in Fund Balances 234,762 168,225 (4,983) (51,387) (160,076) 186,541 (521,109) 

Fuml Balances, Beginning of Year) as previously reported 1,707,195 (163,548) 2,314,689 (183,671) 1,625,754 5,300,419 5,537,745 

Restatement ofFunc1 Balance 283,783 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restatet! 1,707,195 (163,548) 2,314,689 (183,671) 1,625,754 5,300,419 5,821,528 

Fund Balances, End of Year S 1,941,957 $ 4,677 $ 2,309,706 $ (235,058) $ 1,465,678 $ 5,486,960 $ 5,300,419 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 5 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006 

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement 
of Activities are Different Because: 
Net change in fund balances - total gavennnental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the 
current period as follows: 

Capital Outlays 
Depreciation Expense 

The issuance of long-tenn debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the curent financial resources of governmental funds. 

This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of 
long-term debt. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current fInancial resources and are not reported as 
expenditures in the governmental funds. This includes the increase 
in compensated absences. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving 
capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease 
net assets. 

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds 
is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

$ 

2007 

186,541 

2,801,289 
(1,317,755) 

(5,513) 

(154,397) 

(102,696) 

61,702 

$ 1,469,171 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ 

$ 

2006 

(521,109) 

1,984,442 
(792,932) 

197,125 

(17,878) 

(34,648) 

47,688 

862,688 



CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 6 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS· 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Business-type Activities Governmental 

Enterprise Funds Activities 
Water Internal 

Pol1ution Other Service 2006 
Electric Water Control BASWA (Sal~itatiol1) Totals Funds Totals 

.. _-
Current Assets 

Cash and investments $ 550,028 S 485,785 $ 147,216 $ 123,148 $ 976 $ 1,307,153 $ 21,505 $ 1,439,807 
Accounts receivable (net) 868,902 92,431 58,222 132,064 77,453 1,229,072 130,191 1,101,285 
Unbilled and accrued revenues 432,662 75,062 60,093 567,817 493,355 
Materials and supplies inventories 512,631 246,365 758,996 671,216 
Prepaid expenses 8,854 4,177 2,014 15,045 12,867 
CUtTent portion of eRA bonds receivable 185,000 185,000 180,000 
Interest receivable 3,789 232 328 4,349 5,060 

Total Current Assets 2,561,866 904,052 267,873 255,212 78,429 4,067,432 151,696 3,903,590 

NonculTent Assets 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Employee benefits 13,263 13,263 26,150 
Debt Service Reserve Account 170,999 36,722 54,431 163,235 425,387 732,489 

Restricted Investments 
Customer deposits 143,845 143,845 111,180 
Closure/postclosure maintenance and care 521,176 521,176 370,325 

Total Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents 

and lnvestmeots 328,107 36,722 54,431 684,411 1,103,671 1,240,144 

Capital Assets 
Land and land rights 17,432 59,832 16,588 93,852 93,852 
Buildings and improvements 1,144,846 63,555 1,208,401 1,208,401 
Improvements other than buildings 23,370,413 12,041,235 16,006,070 3,584,215 55,001,933 52,981,561 
Machinery and equipment 2,727,704 776,984 1,383,851 623,179 5,511,718 5,317,486 
ConstTuction in progress 13,132 8,738 21,870 117,374 

27,273,527 12,950,344 17,406,509 4,207,394 61,837,774 59,718,674 
Less accumulated depreciation 14,335,284 7,919,971 9,169,924 2,214,780 33,639,959 31,325,636 

Net Capital Assets 12,938,243 5,030,373 8,236,585 1,992,614 28,197,815 28,393,038 

Other Assets 
Bonds receivable (less CUlTcnt portion) 185,000 
Unamortized bond issuance cost 9,588 2,226 3,152 10,403 25,369 32,311 

Total Other Assets 9,588 2,226 3,152 10,403 25,369 217,311 

Total NonculTent Assets 13,275,938 5,069,321 8,294,168 2,687,428 29,326,855 29,850,493 

Total Assets 15,837,804 5,973,373 8,562,041 2,942,640 78,429 33,394,287 151,696 33,754,083 
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CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 6 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS, Continued 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Business~type Activltles Governmental 

Enterprise Funds Activities 

Water Jntemai 
Pollution Other Service 2006 

Electric Water Control BASWA (Sanitation) Totals Funds Totals 
Lhlbilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 916,674 $ 10,885 $ 7,459 $ 4,536 $ 78,429 $ 1,017,983 $ $ 1,240,256 
Claims incuned bUinot reported 35,000 
Accrued compensated absences 100,831 92,201 38,580 24,255 255,867 181,086 
Accrued payroll 24,808 12,686 6,691 44,185 
Sales tax payable 75,688 96 75,784 64,491 
Employee insurance payable 68,000 68,000 62,000 
Accrued interest 1,267 6,427 13,311 10,268 31,273 34,711 
Customer deposits 143,845 143,845 111,180 
Due to Other Funds 65,000 

CUlTent maturities of !ol1g~telll1 debt 194,742 81,089 141,243 217,816 634,890 615,587 

Total Current Liabilities 1,525,855 203,384 207,284 256,875 78,429 2,271,827 100,000 2,309,311 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated absences, noncurrent 137,422 118,077 33,003 288,502 337,479 
Revenue bo.nds, net of CU1Tcnt maturities 558,688 130,900 185,412 655,000 1,530,000 2,035,000 
Notes payable, net of cun"ent maturities 623,866 1,309,885 41,648 1,975,399 2,105,273 
Noncurrent cost of closure and postclosure 1,270,000 1,270,000 1,120,000 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 696,110 872,843 1,328,300 1,966,648 5,063,901 5,597,752 

Total Liabilities 2,221,965 1,076,227 1,735,584 2,223,523 78,429 7,335,728 100,000 7,907,063 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 12,194,401 4,196,744 6,603,197 1,088,553 24,082,895 23,669,489 
Restricted for debt service 170,999 36,722 54,431 163,235 425,387 732,489 
Unrestricted 1,250,439 663,680 168,829 (532,671) 1,550,277 51,696 1,445,042 

Total Net Assets $ 13,615,839 $ 4,897,146 $ 6,826,457 $ 719,117 $ $ 26,058,559 $ 51,696 $ 25,847,020 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements" 
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Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 
Reimbursements 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Electric energy purchased 
Operating and maintenance expenses 
Customer accoLlnting expenses 
Engineering services 
Administrative and general expense 
Municipal expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
L::'l11dfil [ operating contracts 
Health insurance claims paid 
l-Iealth and life insurance premiums 
Payflex expenditures 
Workers compensation claims paid 
Other services and charges 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest income 
Merchandising, etc. 
Contribution in aid of construction 
Grant income 
Miscellaneous 
Interest expense 
Amortization of bond issuance cost 

CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Business-type Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

Water 
Pollution Other 

Electric Water Control BASWA (Sanitation) Totals 

$ 11,512,137 $ 1,537,399 $ 1,116,545 $ 997,495 $ 1,139,633 $ 16,303,209 

11,512,137 1,537,399 1,116,545 997,495 1,139,633 16,303,209 

7,973,033 7,973,033 
875,675 723,181 433,942 1,139,633 3,172,431 
230,571 122,139 61,964 414,674 
122,776 16,000 16,000 154,776 
803,350 357,755 206,044 524,000 1,891,149 
365,924 37,650 9,826 413,400 
941,593 397,943 683,730 294,256 2,317,522 

218,981 218,981 

11,312,922 1,654,668 1,411,506 1,037,237 1,139,633 16,555,966 

199,215 (117,269) (294,961) (39,742) (252,757) 

82,657 8,445 5,205 35,486 131,793 
12,099 88,557 12,716 113,372 

129,235 84,988 214,223 

146,603 15,718 9,154 61 171,536 
(36,907) (30,116) (57,424) (38,440) (162,887) 
(2,397) (556) (788) (3,741) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 202,055 211,283 53,851 (2,893) 464,296 

Transfer from other funds 

Change ill Net Assets 401,270 94,014 (241,110) (42,635) 211,539 

Net Assets, 'Beginning of Year 13,214,569 4,803,132 7,067,567 761,752 25,847,020 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 13,615,839 $ 4,897,146 $ 6,826,457 $ 719,117 $ $ 26,058,559 
= 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Exhibit 7 

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 
Service 2006 
Funds Totals 

$ 1,000,706 $ 15,677,879 
371,583 

1,372,289 15,677,879 

7,492,594 
3,331,344 

327,001 
74,744 

1,666,097 
386,562 

2,294,099 
210,605 

1,029,796 
130,768 
55,955 
68,102 
28,080 

1,312,701 15,783,046 

59,588 (105,167) 

2,114 110,699 
83,044 
93,637 

361,458 
121,725 

(240,442) 
(3,74\) 

2,114 526,380 

61,702 421,213 

(10,006) 25,425,807 

$ 51,696 $ 25,847,020 



CITY OF BEATRICE Exhibit 8 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Business-type Acti\~ties Governmental 

Entet:Erise Funds Activities 
Water Internal 

Pollution Otller 2007 Service 2006 
Electric Water Control BASWA (Sanitation) Totals Funds Totals 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers $ 11,538,187 $ 1,630,961 $ 1,132,701 $ 992,853 $ 1,135,124 $ 16,429,826 $ 1,589,902 $ 16,074,519 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (9,028,359) (490,575) (288,599) (371.024) (1,134,176) (11,312,733) (1,342,701) (10,758,897) 
Cash paid to employees for services (1,385,978) (784,231) (471,765) (211,683) (2,853,657) (2,725,003) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,123,850 356,155 372,337 410,146 948 2,263,436 247,201 2,590,619 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Principal payments on long-teml debt (188,358) (78,492) (136,744) (195,000) (598,594) (580,220) 
Principal advances 0.11 long-term debt (16,977) (16,977) (66,365) 
Advance from (l"epayment to) General FUlld (250,000) 
Interest paid on revenue bond maturities (37,181) (30,499) (58,204) (40,441) (I66,325) (205,731) 
Grant proceeds 361,458 
Capital expenditures (1,105,748) (473,587) (483,836) (2,063,171) (2,244,051) 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (I ,331 ,287) (582,578) (678,784) (252,418) (2,845,067) (250,000) (2,734,909) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchase of bond 
Receipl of principal payments on bond receivable 180,000 180,000 175,000 
Inlerest received 83,368 8,445 5,205 35,486 132,504 2,114 107,795 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 263,368 8,445 5,205 35,486 312,504 2,114 282,795 

Net Increase (Oecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 55,931 (217,978) (301,242) 193,214 948 (269,127) (685) 138,505 

Cash and Cash EquiYalents, Beginning of Year 822,204 740,485 502,889 614,345 28 2,679,951 22,190 2,541,446 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Em1 of Year $ 878,135 $ 522,507 S 201,647 $ 807,559 S 976 $ 2,410,824 $ 21,505 $ 2,679,951 

Cash amI Cash Equivalents consist of: 
Cash and Investl11ents $ 550,028 S 485,785 $ 147,216 $ 123,148 $ 976 $ 1,307,153 $ 21,505 $ 1,439,807 

Employee Benefits Cash 13,263 13,263 26,150 

Debt Service Reserve Account 170,999 36,722 54,431 163,235 425,387 732,489 

Customer Deposits Investments 143,845 143,845 111,180 

ClosureiPostclosure Maintenance and Care 521,176 521,176 370,325 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 878,135 $ 522,507 $ 201,647 $ 807,559 $ 976 $ 2,410,824 $ 21,505 $ 2,679,951 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Continued 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Business-type Activities 
EnteEErise Funds 

Water 
Pol1ution Other 

Electric Water Control BASWA (Sanitation) 
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided 
by (Used in) Openlting Activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 199,215 S (117,269) $ (294,961) $ (39,742) $ 

Adjustments to Rec.oncile Operating Income to Net Cash 
Providell by Operating Actiyities 
Depreciation 941,593 397,943 683,730 294,256 
Merchandise and 11liscel1al1cous revenue 158,702 104,275 21,870 61 
(Increase) decrease in estimated cost of closure and postclosure 150,000 
(Increase) c1ecrease in 11l1billed and accrued rCVe1ll1eS (60,491) (6,620) (7,351 ) 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (116,023) (4,189) 1,637 (4,703) (4,509) 
(Increase) decrease in inventory (78,113) (9,667) 
(Incrcase) decrease ill prepaid i11SUra11Ce (1,604) (725) 151 
lJ,crease (decrease) in accounts payable (9,461) (33,678) (27,695) 1,400 5,457 
Increase (decrease) in sales tax payable 11,197 96 
Increase ill employee insurance payable 6,000 
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 40,170 25,989 (5,044) 8,874 
[ncrease in customer depos'its 32,665 
Decrease in claims incurred but not reported 

Total Adjustments 924,635 473,424 667,298 449,888 948 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities S 1,123,850 S 356,155 $ 372,337 $ 410,146 $ 948 

Exhibit 8 

Govemmental 
Activities 
Internal 

2007 Service 2006 
Totals Funds Totals 

$ (252,757) $ 59,588 $ (105,167) 

2,317,522 2,294,099 
284,908 204,769 
150,000 96,445 
(74,462) 133,463 

(127,787) 217,613 56,230 
(87,780) 70,715 
(2,178) (5,764) 

(63,977) (224,675) 
11,293 (2,172) 
6,000 20,919 

69,989 47,407 
32,665 4,350 

(30,000) 

2,516,193 187,613 2,695,786 

$ 2,263,436 $ 247,201 $ 2,590,619 

Noncash llwesting, Capital, and Financing Activities: 
The Water Fund received $129,235 of Contributions ill Aid of Construction on distribution systems put in by developers or the City's govemmental funds during the year ended September 30, 2007. 

The Water Pollution Control Fund received S84,988 and $93,637 of Conttibutions in Aid of Construction on distribution systems put ill by developers 
or the Cily's governmental funds during the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

BASWA acquired a loader by issuing a $90,000 note payable dUl;ng the year ended September 30, 2006. 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Assets 

CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006 

2007 

Pension 
Trust Ftmd 

Investments with fiscal agent $ 15,684,766 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Reserved for employees' retirement system 

Total Net Assets 

15,684,766 

15,684,766 
$ 15,684,766 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Exhibit 9 

2006 

$ 14,540,272 

14,540,272 

14,540,272 
$ 14,540,272 



Additions 

CITY OF BEATRICE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

2007 

Contributions 
Employer $ 430,811 $ 
Employee 418,159 

Total Contributions 848,970 

Investment Earnings 
Net increase in the fair value of investments 1,350,663 

Total Additions 2,199,633 

Deductions 
Benefits 1,037,897 
Administrative expenses 17,242 

Total Deductions 1,055,139 

Change in Net Assets 1,144,494 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 14,540,272 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 15,684,766 $ 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Exhibit 10 

2006 

442,993 
397,105 
840,098 

858,878 
1,698,976 

1,556,027 
14,104 

1,570,131 

128,845 

14,411,427 

14,540,272 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska (City) are prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds and 
similar component units apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) pronouncements 
and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30,1989, unless 
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case GASB 
prevails. 

This summary of significant accounting policies of the City of Beatrice is presented to assist in 
understanding the City's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are 
representations of the City's management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. 
The accounting policies of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The accounting and reporting framework 
and the more significant accounting principles and practices are discussed in subsequent sections 
of this Note. 

1. Financial Reporting Entity 

The City of Beatrice was founded in 1857, incorporated as a first-class city in 1893, and since 
1957 has operated under the Mayor-Council form of government to provide the following 
services as authorized by its charter: public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, health and 
social services, parks, recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, electric service, 
water service, water pollution control, and general administrative services. 

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-member council. As 
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the 
government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in 
substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these units are combined with 
data of the primary govemment. Each blended component unit has a September 30 fiscal period 
end. 

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following: 

Primary Government: 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 
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City of Beatrice 

Beatrice Airport Authority 
Community Redevelopment Authority 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

1. Financial Reporting Entity, continued 

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and has included all organizations that make 
up the City's legal entity and all component units. Consistent with applicable guidance, the 
criteria used by the City to include component units within its reporting entity are financial 
accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship. The City includes 
organizations as component units under the following financial accountability criteria: 

(I) Organizations for which the City Council appoints a voting majority of the 
organization's governing body and for which (a) the City is able to impose its 
will on the organization or (b) there is a potential for the organization to 
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific fmancial burdens on, 
the City. 

(2) Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City. Fiscal dependency is 
established if the organization is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes or set 
rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the City. 

Blended Component Unit 

Blended component units are separate legal entitles that meet the component unit criteria 
described above and whose governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City 
Councilor the component unit provides services entirely to the City. These component units' 
funds are blended into those of the City by appropriate activity type to compose the primary 
government presentation. Currently, the City has the following blended component unit: 

Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency 

The Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency (BASW A) is a joint entity between the City of Beatrice 
and the County of Gage, Nebraska. BASW A is the operator of a solid waste disposal facility. 
BASW A is governed by the Mayor and eight members of the City Council. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

1. Financial Reporting Entity, continued 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit 
criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. The following is the 
discretely presented component unit: 

Beatrice Airport Authority 

Community Redevelopment Authority 

2. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Brief Description of Activities and Relationship 
To The City: 

Established to provide for the operations of the 
Beatrice Airport. The City is financially 
accountable for the Airport Authority as a result of 
fiscal dependency. Information included in this 
financial statement is from the entity's fiscal year 
end of September 30. 

The Community Redevelopment Authority Fund 
receives and distributes tax increment financing 
funds. Information included in this financial 
statement is from the entity's fiscal year end of 
September 30. 

The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and 
its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include I) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit fi'om goods, services, or privileges 

29 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

2. Basis of Presentation, continued 

Government-wide Financial Statements, continued 

provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a patiicular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included muong program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories: governmental and 
proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major nmds within the governmental and proprietary 
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the 
following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding 
total for all funds of that category or type; and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
govennnental fund or enterprise fund arc at least five percent of the 
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 

Governmental Funds 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and always classified as a maj or fund. 
It is used to account for all financial resources except those legally or administratively required to 
be accounted for in atlother fund. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

2. Basis of Presentation, continued 

Governmental Funds, continued 

Special Revenue - Street Fund 

The Street Fund is used to account for operation of the street department. Revenue aTe provided 
by the City's share of state gasoline taxes, in addition to the required match from the City. State 
law requires these revenues to be used to maintain streets. 

Special Revenue - Community Development Block Grant Fund 

The Community Development Block Grant Fund accounts for federal grant monies received 
through the State Department of Economic Development for economic development i.e., 
industrial tract expansion, working capital and job training, and any other federal block grants. 

Debt Service - Unbonded Assessment Debt Service Fund 

This fund is used to account for collection of special assessments and debt service related to 
paving, water, and sewer projects. 

Additionally, the City reports the following nonmajor fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds 

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources (other than major capital 
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These nonmajor funds 
consist of Economic Development, Keno, 911 surcharges, and storm water management. 

Debt Service Funds 

The Debt Service Funds account for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed 
by proprietary funds. These nonmajor funds consist of water park and bonded districts. 

Capital Projects Funds 

The Capital Projects Funds account for acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major 
capital facilities not being financed by proprietary funds. These nonmajor funds consist of 
library capital improvements and capital improvements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

2. Basis of Presentation, continued 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds 

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a 
mamler similar to private business enterprises; or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
the detennination of revenues earned, costs incurred, and/or net income is necessary for 
management accountability. 

Internal Service Funds 

The Internal Service Funds account for operations that provide services to other departments of 
the City, or to other govermnental units on a cost reimbursement basis. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds. 

Electric Fund 

111e Electric Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the electric utility. The electric 
utility purchases electricity wholesale from Nebraska Public Power District and retails it to the 
residents of the City. 

Water Fund 

The Water Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the water utility. The water utility 
pumps, transmits, stores, and distributes water to the residents of the City. 

Water Pollution Control Fund 

The Water Pollution Control Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses of the water 
pollution control utility. The water pollution control utility provides services for the collection 
and treatment of wastewater for the residents ofthe City. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continned 

2. Basis of Presentation, continned 

Proprietary Funds, continued 

Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency Fund 

The Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency Fund accounts for revenues and expenses for 
maintenance and operation of a solid waste facility servicing Beatrice, Gage COlmty, and 
surrounding cities and villages that enter into service agreements with the Agency. The City of 
Beatrice operates and manages the facilities, as agent acting on behalf of the Agency. The City 
contracts with a private contractor for operation of the recycling center. 

Additionally, the City reports the following nonmajor enterprise fund: 

Sanitation Fund 

This enterprise fund accounts for the sanitation activities of the City. 

Fiduciary Funds (not included in government-wide statements) 

Trust Funds 

Trust funds account for assets held by the City for the members and beneficiaries of defined 
benefit and contribution pension plans. The reporting entity includes three trust funds: 

Firefighters Pension 

Police Pension 

General Government Pension 

Board of Public Works Pension 

Accounts for the administration of the firefighters' 
pension funds under the defmed benefit and 
contribution plans. This also accounts for the 
pensioners (firemen) nonqualified benefit plan. 

Accounts for the administration of the police 
pension fund under the defined benefit and defined 
contribution plans. 

Accounts for the administration of the non­
uniformed employees' pension funds under the 
defined contribution plan. 

Accounts for the administration of the board of 
public works employees' pension funds under the 
defined contribution plan. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

2. Basis of Presentation, continued 

Equity Restatements: 

Begilming net assetslfund balance, 
September 30, 2005 

General Flmd - compensated absences 
Street Fund - compensated absences 
CRA - reclass to component unit 

Total Restatements 

Restated net assets/fund balance, 
September 30, 2005 

Beginning net assets, September 30,2006 
Beatrice Airport Authority 

Add Component Unit - CRA 

Component unit net assets, September 30, 2006 

Govemmental 
Net Assets Fund Balance 

$ 26,190,025 

2,158,805 
2,158,805 

$ 28 348 830 

$ 5,537,745 

141,878 
23,100 

118,805 
283,783 

$ 5 821 528 

Component Unit 
Net Assets 

$ 2,387,818 

( 177,527) 

$ 2,210291 

3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are Tecorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting Tefers to "when" tTansactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continned 

3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, continued 

Measurement Focus 

On the govemment-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item b, below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurements focus or the 
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on theiT balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. The 
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating 
income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. 
All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their 
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets. 

c. Fiduciary funds utilize the "economic resources" measurement focus. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the govelnment-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, governmental and 
business-type activities and the discretely presented component units are presented using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incuned or economic asset used. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange­
like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, continued 

Basis of Accounting, continued 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
"measurable and available." Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the 
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. 
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 

All proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and discretely presented component units utilize the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or the economic asset is 
used. 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Investments 

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Assets, "cash and cash equivalents" include all demand 
accounts and savings accounts. For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash Flows, 
"cash and cash equivalents" include all cash on hand, demand accounts, savings accounts, and 
equity in pooled cash which has an original matmity of three months or less. The County 
Treasmer's cash represents revenues collected not yet remitted to the City. 

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price. Additional 
cash and investment disclosmes are presented in Notes B2, CI, and D2. 

When both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resomces first, then umestricted resomces as they are needed. 

36 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, continued 

Receivables 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues eamed at year end and not 
yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends 
and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental 
activities include CDBG loans, special assessments, sales tax, and propelty taxes. Business-type 
activities report utility billings as their major receivable. 

In the fund financial statements, receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such 
as special assessments and property taxes since they are usually both measurable and available. 
Proprietary fund receivables consist of all revenues eamed at year end and not yet received. 
Utility accounts receivable compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for 
uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of 
accounts receivable. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at cost. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The 
cost of inventory items is recognized as expenditures in govemmental funds when purchased and 
as expenses in proprietary funds when used. 

Restricted assets 

Restricted assets include cash and investments that are legally restricted as to their use. The 
primary restricted assets are related to debt service and proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are legally restricted to expenditures for certain purposes. 

Capital assets 

The accounting treatment over propClty, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on 
whether the assets are used in govemmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and 
whether they are reported in the govemment-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Statements 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are capitalized, whether owned by 
govemmental activities or business-type activities and are depreciated in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets, including infrastructure, are defined as assets with an initial 
cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equitv, continued 

Capital assets, continued 

Government-wide Statements, continued 

Capital assets are stated at cost or at estimated fair value at time of donation. The accounting for 
propelty, plant, and equipment and accumulated depreciation in the Electric, Water, and Water 
Pollution Control Enterprise Funds is recorded at cost less retirements in the matmer prescribed 
by the Federal Power Commission and/or the National Association of Railroad and Utility 
Commissioners. 

The City's policy is to capitalize interest on proprietary funds and construction projects until 
substantially completed. Major expenditures for property and those which substantially increase 
useful lives are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed when 
incurred. When capital assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their costs and related 
accumulated depreciation are removed fi-om the accounts and resulting gains or losses are 
included in income. 

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary fund of tile City using the 
straight-line metilOd over the following estimated useful lives: 

Vehicles 
Tools and work equipment 
Electric load management system 
Water wells and transmission 
Water distribution system 
Lift station 
Buildings 

Fund Financial Statements 

5-10 years Office equipment 
5-10 years Communication equipment 

10 years Electric distribution system 
25 years Water storage system 
25 years Water pollution conh'ol disposal plant 
25 years Sewer collection lines 

15-25 years Infrastructure 

5 years 
5 years 

25 years 
25 years 
25 years 
25 years 

5-40 years 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital 
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the govenmlent-wide 
statements. 

Unamortized Bond Discount 

Bond discount fees for the Utility Flmds are defened and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method. 

38 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, continued 

Deferred Revenues 

Defened revenues consist of property taxes expected to be collected after 60 days and special 
assessments expected to be collected beyond one year. 

Compensated Absences 

City employees earn sick leave at the rate of oue day per month. They eam various hours of 
vacation per pay period based on years of service. Vacation and sick leave accumulate on a 
monthly basis up to a maximum amount as stated in the employee handbook. The accumulated 
vacation is limited to the amount of vacation eamed in the prcvious year. All accumulated 
vacation is paid upon the employee's termination. Fifty percent, but not exceeding -0- hours for 
firefighters, 360 hours for police, 900 hours for Board of Public Works employees, and 600 
hours for all other City employees, of unused sick leave is paid at resignation. Fifty percent, bnl 
not exceeding 540 hours for fnefighters and 720 hours for police, of llllUsed sick leave is paid at 
retirement. Employees of the Board of Public Works and the City are paid seventy-five percent 
of their tillused sick leave when they retire, up to 900 hours. Compensatory time rather than 
overtime compensation may be given for all hours actually worked in excess of forty hours in a 
week. No employee shall accrue more than 80 hours of compensatOly time for hours worked, 
with the exception of employees covered by the Fraternal Order of Police Union Contract, who 
may accrue up to 120 hours. All accumulated compensatory time is paid to the employee upon 
his or her termination. 

The amounts of unpaid vacation and compensatory time accllll1ulated by City employees are 
accrued as expenses when incuned in proprietary funds, and reported as a fund liability. In the 
governmental funds the amount is limited to compensated absences that are payable to 
tenninated employees. Compensated absences for employees whose compensation is accounted 
for in the govcnl1nental funds arc repOlied as long-tenn liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 
The expenditure is reportecl as an expense in the Statement of Activities for these amounts. 

Long-term Debt 

The accOlmting treatment of 10ng-tCllli clebt depends on whether the assets arc used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietmy f,md operations and whether they arc repOlied in the 
government-wide or fund fmancial statcments. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, coutinued 

Long-term Debt, contiuued 

Government-wide Statements 

All long-tenn debt to be repaid from govennnental and business-type resources is reported as 
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes 
payable, accrued compensated absences, and bonds payable. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Long-tenn debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
statements. The debt proceeds are repOlted as other financing sources and payment of principal 
and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary funds is the same in the 
fund financial statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

Equity Classifications 

Government-wide Statements 

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either 
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt. " 

40 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, continued 

Equity Classifications, continued 

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fLmd balance. Fund balance is further classified as 
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. See Note 
C9 for additional disclosures. 

5. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

Comparative Data 

Comparative total data for the prior period have heen presented in selected sections of the 
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's 
fmancial position and operations. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have 
been reclassified in order to be consistent with the cunent year's presentation. 

Interfund Transactions 

During the course of nonnal operations the City has numerous transactions between funds, 
including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide operating subsidies, construct assets, 
and service debt. The accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as 
transfers to other funds. The classification of amounts recorded as subsidies, advances, or equity 
contributions is determined by City management. Interfund Services provided and used are 
appropriately accounted for as fund revenues and expenditures/expenses, or adjustments thereto, 
in the funds involved. 

The General Fund and enterprise funds provide services for each other. Amounts charged for 
these services are recorded as revenue and expenditures/operating expenses in the respective 
funds. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are recorded as a receivable when levied. Based on past experience, the 
uncollected portion has been inunaterial. The portion of the taxes not collected within 60 days 
after fiscal period end is recorded as defened revenue. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued 

S. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses, continued 

Property Taxes, continued 

Property tax revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they become susceptible to 
accmal; that is, when they become both "measurable" and "available" to finance expenditures. 

Property tax calendar: Lien date 
Levy date 
Tax bills mailed 
Due date 
First Installment payment delinquent 
Sccond installmcnt paymcnt delinquent 

January 1, 2006 
October 15, 2006 

December 1, 2006 
December 31, 2006 

May 1, 2007 
September 1, 2007 

Property taxes arc billed and collected by the County Treasurer of Gage County, Nebraska. 

The City is permitted to levy taxes up to $.499942 per $100 of assessed valuation for general 
govennnental services other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. Thc 
tax rate to financc general govemment services other than tIle payment of principal and interest 
on long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2007, was $.28086 per $100 of assessed 
value, which means the City has a tax margin of $.219082 per $100 of assessed value and could 
raise taxes by $1,089,469 based on the present assessed valuation of $497,288,173 before the 
limit is reached. 

Sales and Use Tax 

On November 4, 1986, the citizens of the City voted in favor of a 1 % city sales tax, effective 
April 1, 1987. A resolution adopted by the City Council stated that 30% of the sales tax revenue 
was to be used for street improvements and maintenance and 70% for properiy tax relief. On 
November 3, 1992, the citizens of the City voted in favor of an additional 112% city sales tax, 
effective April I, 1993. A resolution adopted by the City Council stated that 50% of the 
proceeds up to a maximum alllmal amount of $250,000 was to be used for the purpose of 
financing the economic development program to create jobs and ensure the economic stability 
and vitality for a ten-year period ending March 31, 2003, and the remainder of the proceeds 
derived on and before March 31, 2003, and ]00% of the proceeds derived after March 31,2003, 
was to be used for property tax relief. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continned 

5. Revennes, Expenditnres and Expenses, con tinned 

Sales and Use Tax, continued 

The citizens of the City voted on November 3, 1998, to extend the effective dates of this 
resolution by ten years to March 21, 2013. As of October 1, 2006, sales tax collected on the sale 
of motor vehicles is reserved for street fund expenditUTes as required by LB904. The local 
merchants collect the sales tax and remit it to the Nebraska Depmiment of Revenue by the 25th of 
the following month. The Department of Revenue remits the sales tax to the City of Beatrice 
(net of a collection fee) within 30 days after they receive it. The City sales tax is recorded as 
revenue by the City of Beatrice when it is in the hands oftlle intennediary collecting agent. 

Expenditures/Expenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified hy function for hoth 
govenm1ental and business-type activities. 

In the fund finmlcial statements, expenditures aTe classified as follows: 

Govemmental Funds - by Chm'acter and Function 

Proprietary Fund - hy Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial statements, govenm1ental funds rcport expenditures of financial resources. 
Proprietary funds repOli expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Contributions in Aid of Construction 

Contrihutions in aid of constmction are development projects constmcted and contributed from 
dcvelopers. These contributions are recorded at fair value when the developmcnt is completc and 
are considered imposed non-exchmge transactions. This would also include special assessments 
to property owners for water and water pollution control improvements as well as federal and 
state grants. 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, A\'1D ACCOUNTABILITY 

By its naturc as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to vmious 
federal, state, mld local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City's compliance 
with significant laws and regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resomces 
follows: 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY, continued 

1. Fund Accounting Requirements 

The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of sepaTate 
funds. The legally requiTed funds used by the City include: Special Revenue, Capital Projects, 
Debt Service, and Trust Funds. 

2. Deposit Laws and Regulations 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a govenunent's deposits may 
not be returned to it. The City's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with 
the provisions of state law. 

State law TequiTes collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insmance or with U.S. 
Treasury and U.S. agency securities having an aggregate value at least equal to the amOllI1t of the 
deposits. The City's cash deposits, including certificates of deposit, are insmed np to $100,000 
by the Federal Deposit Insmance Corporation (FDIC). Any cash deposits or ceTtificates of 
deposit in excess of the $100,000 FDIC limits are insured by collateral held by the pledging 
institution in the City's Name. 

3. Revenue Restrictions 

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local 
requirements. The primal)' restricted revenue somces are described in Note A2 for the variolls 
funds. 

4. Debt Restrictions and Covenants 

Bonds Payable 

The various bond ordinances Telating to the bonds payable contain some Testrictions or covenants 
that are financial-related. These include covenants such as debt service coverage requirements 
and requiTed reserve account balances. The City is in compliance with the bond restrictions and 
covenants. 

5. Budgetary Data 

An appropriated budget is adopted each fiscal period for the General, Special Revenue, Public 
Safety Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds on the modified accrual basis, which is 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). An appropriated budget is 
adopted each fiscal period for the Water Park and Unbonded Debt Service Frmds on a non­
GAAP (cash) basis. Reconciliation of the budgetary-basis and GAAP-basis reporting of 
revenues al1d expenditures of the Debt Service Funds is presented in Note D5. An appropriated 
budget is adopted each fiscal period for each Enterprise Fund al1d Internal Service Fund on the 
accrual basis, which is consistent with GAAP. 
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NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY, continued 

5. Budgetary Data, continued 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. Prior to September 10, the City Administrator submitted to the Mayor and City COlmcil 
a proposed operating budget for the fiscal period commencing October I, 2006 and 
ending September 30, 2007. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

2. A public hearing was duly published and held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. Prior to September 20, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

The City Council approves, by ordinance, total budget appropriations for the General, Special 
Revenue, Capital Projects, and Debt-Service funds. The City Administrator is authorized to 
transfer budget amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter 
total appropriations of illly fund must be approved by the City Council. 

The City Council adopts the total budget, by resolution, on a per fund basis and budgetary control 
for internal purposes is exercised at the department level. The City Council must approve ally 
supplemental appropriations to a fund. Unused appropriations lapse at period end. 

The budget 8lllonnts shown in the financial statements reflect the original illld final authorized 
amounts for the fiscal period. Revisions during the period increased the budget in the following 
funds: 

General Fund 
Street Fund 
Unbonded Districts Debt Service Fund 
Self-Insnred Health Care Fnnd 
Storm Water Management Plan Fund 
Capital Improvements Fund 
Library Capital Improvement Fund 
Community RedeVelopment Authority 

Total 
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$ 566,100 
56,000 

198,000 
415,000 

4,000 
129,000 

2,088 
552,034 

$ 1.922.222 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 

The following notes present detail infoffilation to support the amounts repOlted in the basic 
financial statements for the City'S various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. 

1. Cash and Investments 

Deposits 

The City'S policies regarding deposits of cash are discussed in Note A4. The table presented 
below is designed to disclose how its deposits were insured or secured with collateral at 
September 30, 2007. Thc categories of collateral are defined as follows: 

Category 1 - Insured by FDIC or collateralized with securities held by the City (or public 
trust) or by its agent in its name 

Category 2 - Uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent in the City's name. 

Category 3 -- Uninsured and uncollateralized; or collateralized with secmities held by the 
pledging financial institution, or by its tmst department or agent, but not in the City's name; 
or collateralized with no written or approved collateral agreement. 

Total Bank Category 
Types of Deposits Balance 1 

Demand deposits $ 5,737,544 $ 827,985 

Category 
2 

$ 4,909,559 

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets: 
Primary Govennnent -

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Component Units -
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 
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Category 
3 

$ 

Total 
Carrying 

Value 

$ 4,278,945 

$ 3,434,796 
749,407 

94,742 
$4228.945 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

1. Cash and Investments, continued 

Investments 

The City's policies and applicable laws regarding investments are discussed in Notes A4 and B2. 
The table presented below is designed to disclose whether the investments are insured or 
registered and who holds the security at September 30, 2007. The categories of investments are 
defined as follows: 

Category 1 - Insured or registered with securities held by the entity or its agent in the 
entity's name 

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered with securities held by counterparty's trust 
department or agent in the entity's name 

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty or by its 
trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. 

Category Category Category 
Type oflnvestment 1 2 3 

Demand Deposits $ 160,680 $ 978,301 $ 
Time Deposits 1,521,176 
Publicly Traded Equities 7,293,055 
Guaranteed Investment 

Securities 7,413,410 

Reconciliation to Govenm1ent-wide Statements of Net Assets: 
Primary Government -

Unrestricted investments 
Restricted investments 

Component Units -
Unrestricted investments 

Employee Pension Funds (not included in 
govennnent-wide statements) 
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Carrying 
Amount 

$ 1,138,981 
1,521,176 
7,293,055 

7,413,410 
$ 17,366.622 

$ 770,000 
761,856 

150,000 

15,684.766 
$ 17.366.622 

Fair 
Value 

$ 1,138,981 
1,521,176 
7,293,055 

7,413,410 
$ 17,366,622 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

2. Restricted Assets 

The restricted assets as of September 30, 2007, are as follows: 

Type of Resh-icted Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Govenunental 
Activities 

$ 310,757 
96,835 

$ 407,592 

3. Accounts and Notes Receivable 

Business- Total 
type 

Activities 

$ 438,650 
665,021 

$1,103,671 

Primary 
Govenmlent 

$ 749,407 
761,856 

$1,511,263 

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of utilities accounts receivable. 
Accounts receivable of the governmental activities consist of ambulance (17.5%), reinsurance 
(9.5%), sales tax (17.7%), strect grants (34.0%), and other (21.3%) Teceivab1es. AccOlmts 
receivable for the component milt consist of fuel and repair seTvices. Receivables detail at 
SeptembeT 30, 2007, is as follows: 

Business- Total 
Governmental type Primary Component 

Activities Activities Government Units 

Accounts receivable $1,416,406 $1,229,072 $2,645,478 $ 104,748 
Allowance for doubtful 

aCCOlults (40,000) (40,000) 

Net accounts receivable $1,376,406 $1,229,072 $2,605,478 $ 104,748 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C-DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

3. Accounts and Notes Receivable, continued 

Assessments receivable consist of the following as of September 30: 

Cun-ent 
Delinquent 
Deferred 

In-lieu-of Assessments 

2007 

$ 51,583 
28,499 

249,096 

$ 32'1178 

$ 10,105 

2006 

$ 35,725 
11,991 

200,847 

$ 248,563 

$ 11,669 

CDBG notes receivable in tbe govemmental funds consist of the following at September 30, 
2007. 

Due From 
Balance 

9/3012007 

Precise Fabrication, Inc. $ 76,731 

Sea Breeze Land Development Co. 151,272 

Goldenrod Research Corporation 62,528 

Sea Breeze Land Development Co. 136,183 

Borgman Crate & Pallet, Inc. 209,818 

Sea Breeze Land Development Co. 63,330 

Nebraska's Own Network, Inc. 25,400 

Store KJaft Manufactl-uing Co. 329,167 

Knowledge Marketing, LLC 635,000 

Total $ I 689.429 

Terms 

5%; due illl1lonthly paynlents of $5,654 through 
November 2008. 

5%; $3,782 due March 2009, $7,564 due March 2010 
and 2011, with the balance due September 2011. 

3%; due three years following the fmal payment to the 
primary lender. 

5%; $3,405 due March 2009, $6,809 due March 2010 
and 2011, with the balance due September 2011. 

5.25%; due in monthly payments of$3,216 through 
February 2014. 

5%; $1,583 due March 2009, $3,167 due March 2010 
and 20 II, with the balance due September 20 II. 

3.5%; due in monthly installments of$I,341 through 
April 2009. 

0%; due in monthly payments 0[$4,167 through April 
2014. 

3%; forgivable as follows: 40% after 2 years (or July I, 
2006) and 20% every year thereafter until all is 
forgiven. They arc currently in default and have been 
given additional time to meet the requirements, 
therefore, none has been forgiven at September 30, 2007. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continned 

4. Capital Assets 

Components of the City's capital assets at September 30, 2007, are summarized as follows: 

Govenunenta1 Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Land and land rights $ 2,404,759 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infi-astructure 

Accumulated depreciation 

5,045,007 
3,594,326 
6,280,101 

22,548,334 
39,872,527 

(13,873,486) 
$22.229Ml 

$ 93,852 $ 
21,870 

1,208,401 
55,001,933 

5,511,718 

2,498,611 
21,870 

6,253,408 
58,596,259 
11,791,819 
22,548,334 

61,837,774 101,710,301 
(33,639,959) (47,513,445) 

$ 28,197,815 $ 54)96,856 

The following table summarizes the changes in the capital assets of the govemmental activities: 

Bahmce 
10/01/06 

4,679,861 
3,523,125 
6,053,342 

Buildings and improvements $ 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 20,763,400 

35,019,728 
2,373,665 

$ 37,321,393 
Land 

Additions 

$ 365,146 
71,201 

524,208 
1,784,934 
2,745,489 

55,800 
$ 2Jilll,2_89 

Deletions 
Balance 
09/30/07 

$ $ 5,045,007 
3,594,326 

(297,449) 6,280,101 
22,548,334 

(297,449) 37,467,768 
(24,706) 2,404,759 

$ (322,155) $ 3..2.872.,527 

The following table summarizes the changes in capital assets of the business-type activities: 

Balance 
10/01106 

Buildings and improvements $ 1,208,401 
lmprovements other than buildings 52,981,561 
Machinery and equipment 5,317,486 

Land and land rights 
Construction in Progress 

59,507,448 
93,852 

117,374 
$ 592l8.,674 
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$ 

Additions 

2,020,372 
194,232 

2,214,604 

21.870 
$ 2.236,474 

Deletions 
Balance 
09/30/07 

$ $ 1,208,401 
55,001,933 

5,511,718 
61,722,052 

93,852 
(117,374) 21,870 

$ (117.374)$.61,837,774 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

4. Capital Assets, continued 

The following table sununarizes the changes in capital assets of the Airport Authority component 
unit: 

Balance 
10/01106 

Land and land rights $ 337,622 
Buildings and improvements 1,684,358 
Improvements other than buildings 4,174,539 
Machinery and equipment 307,131 

$ 6.503.650 

Additions 

$ 
4,956 

169,772 
1,300 

$ 176,028 

Balance 
Deletions 09/30/07 

$ $ 337,622 
1,689,314 
4,344,311 

308,431 
$ $ 6.679,678 

The following table summanzes the changes m the accumulated depreciation of the 
govemmental activities: 

Balance 
10/01106 

1,584,566 
1,560,990 
3,543,504 

Buildings and improvements $ 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 6,086,130 

$ 12,775,190 

Additions Deletions 
Balance 
09/30/07 

$ 120,341 
160,724 
466,846 
569,844 

$ 1.317,755 

$ $ 1,704,907 
1,721,714 

(219,459) 3,790,891 
6,655,974 

$ (219.459)$ 13,873.486 

Depreciation was chal'ged to the following governmental functions in the government-wide 
statement of activities during the year ended September 30, 2007: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Culture and Recreation 
Total Depreciation 

$ 14,344 
304,492 
658,981 
339,938 

$ 1317,755 

The following table sununarizes the changes in the accumulated depreciation ofthe business-type 
activities: 

Balance 
10/01/06 

Buildings and improvements $ 411,649 
Improvements other than buildings 27,625,803 
Machinery and equipment 3,288,184 

$ 31,325,636 
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Additions 

$ 288,004 
1,651,675 

374,644 
$ 2,314,323 

Balance 
Deletions 09/30/07 

$ $ 699,653 
29,277,478 

3,662,828 
$ $ 33,639,959 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continned 

4. Capital Assets, continued 

The following table summarizes the changes in the accumulated depreciation of the Airport 
Authority component unit: 

Balance Balance 
10101/06 Additions Deletions 09/30107 

Buildings and improvements $ 906,000 $ 59,691 $ $ 965,691 
Improvements other than buildings 2,945,440 148,933 3,094,373 
Machinery and equipment 151,629 26,752 178,381 

$ 4,003,069 $ 235376 $ - $ 4.238.445 

Construction in progress at September 30, 2007, consists of an electrical project at South 40 
Estates with a projected cost of $41,141 and fencing the well field with a projected cost of 
$12,155, These projects are expected to be completed during the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2008. 

5. Capital Leases 

Capital leases in the governmental funds consist of: 

The City has entered into a lease agreement, as lessee, to finance the acquisition of a copier for 
the city offices, This lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting pnrposes, and therefore, has 
been recorded at the present value of the future rninhnum lease payments as of the date of 
inception in the General Fund, At September 30, 2007, the amount included in the government 
activities in the government-wide statements is $1,559, The gross cost of the equipment obtained 
through this lease was $11,255, and is included in machinery and equipment, 

The City has entered into a lease agreement, as lessee, to finance the acquisition of licensed 
software for the police department. This lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes 
and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of 
the date of inception in the General Fund, At September 30,2007, the amount included in the 
governmental activities in the govenunent-wide statements is $138,430, The gross cost of the 
equipment obtained through this lease was $300,000, and is included in machinery and 
equipment. 

52 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSESIACCOUNTS, continned 

5. Capital Leases, continued 

Capital leases in the enterprise funds consist of: 

The City has entered into a lease agreement, as lessee, to finance the acquisition of a John Deere 
Loader for use by the Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency. This lease qualifies as a capital lease 
for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum 
lease payments as of the date of inception in the Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency Enterprise 
Fund. At September 30, 2007, the amount included in the Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency 
Enterprise Fund was $59,464. The gross cost of the equipment obtained tln'ough tins lease was 
$162,507, and is included in machinery and equipment. 

The following is a schedule of the future nlinimum lease payments required under the capital 
leases and the present value of the net nlinimum lease payments at September 30, 2007: 

Year Ending Governmental Enterprise 
September 30, Funds Funds Total 

2008 $ 54,226 $ 20,256 $ 74,482 
2009 52,646 20,256 72,902 
2010 48,174 20,256 68,430 
2011 3,399 3,399 

Total minimum lease payments 155,046 64,167 219,213 

Less: amount representing interest 15,057 4,703 19,760 
Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 139,989 $ 59,464 $ 199,453 

The capital leases transaction summary for the year ended September 30, 2007, follows: 

Governmental Enterprise 
Funds Funds Total 

Capital Leases 10/01/06 $ 185,739 $ 76,441 $ 262,180 
Capital Leases Additions 
Capital Leases Payments ( 45,750) (16,977) ( 62,727) 
Capital Leases 09/30107 $ 139.989 $ 59,464 $ 199.453 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

6. Long-term Debt 

The slllnmary of bond and note transactions of the City for the year ended September 30, 2007, 
follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Note and bonds payable 

Business-type Activities: 
Note, lease, and bonds payable 

Component Units; 

Balance 
9/30/06 

$ 955,000 

4,679,419 

Additions Deletions 

$ 216,263 $ ( 165,000) 

( 598,594) 

Amounts 
Due 

Balance Within 
09/30/07 One Year 

$ 1,006,263 $ 232,500 

4,080,825 617,074 

Bonds and Notes payable 
Totals 

2.341.396 (253.532) 2,087.864 258.532 
$ 7.975.aJ5 $ 216.263 $ Q,017.126) $ 7.17'1,952 $110_8.10(i 

Bonds and notes payable as of September 30, 2007, comprise the following individual issues: 

Governmental Activities 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued February 14, 2005, interest rates 
ranging from 5.1 % to 5.45%. Principal and interest due in annual installments 
ranging from $45,000 due February 15,2006, to $55,000 due February 15, 2010. $ 165,000 

Outdoor Swimming Pool and Park Facility Bonds issued November 12, 2002, 
interest rates ranging fi'om 1.75% to 3.70%. Interest due in annual installments 
beginning February 15, 2003. Principal due in annual installments ranging fTOm 
$30,000 due February 15, 2003, to $135,000 due February 15, 2012. 

Note payable to the Beatrice Library Foundation is due in four mmual installments 
of $62,500 beginning May 1, 2008. The note is non-interest-bearing if paid 
according to terms. 
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625,000 

216,263 
$ 1,006.263 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

6. Long-term Debt, continued 

Business-type Activities 

Note payable from the State of Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality 
issued June 2002, with an interest rate of 3.18%. Semiannual installments for 
principal and interest of$60,049.55 plus fees due December 15,2012. 

Note payable from the State of Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality 
issued December 15,2002, with an interest rate of3.18%. Semiannual installments 
for principal and interest of $28,074.07 plus fees due June 15,2022. 

Combined Utilities Revenue Bonds issued August 20, 2002, interest rates ranging 
from 2.00% to 4.30%, due in semiannual installments ranging from $270,000 due 
September 15,2003, to $335,000 due September 15,2010, and the fmal installment 
of$215,000 due September 15,2011. 

Solid Waste Disposal Facilities Revenue Bonds issued May 6, 2002, interest rates 
ranging from 1.75% to 4.35%, due in annual installments ranging from $60,000 due 
December 15,2002, to $225,000 due December 15,2010. 

$ 1,386,498 

659,327 

1,180,000 

855,000 
$ 4.080.825 

Almual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt 
as of September 30, 2007, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-!YRe Activities 
Note and Bonds Payable Note and Bonds Payable 

Year Ending NDEQ 
September 30. Principal Interest Principal Interest Fees 

2008 $ 232,500 $ 24,096 $ 617,074 $ 143,306 $ 20,180 
2009 237,500 18,698 650,666 120,124 19,051 
2010 242,500 12,770 674,373 94,596 17,885 
2011 158,763 7,335 563,200 67,186 16,682 
2012 135,000 2,497 127,149 49,098 15,440 

2013-2017 699,552 181,684 57,133 
2018-2022 -

~-

748,811 231,137 19,544 
$ 1,006.263 $~ $ 4,080.825 $ 887 131 $ 165 915 
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NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

6. Long-term Debt, continued 

Component Unit Bonds and Notes Payable 

Aimort Authority: 

Airport Authority Bonds, Series 2002, issued December 20, 2002, interest rates 
ranging from 1.8% to 3.55%. Interest due in semiannual installments beginning 
April 1, 2003. Principal due in annual installments ranging from $60,000 due 
October 1, 2003, to $70,000 due October 1,2009. $ 200,000 

Non-interest-bearing note payable to the Nebraska Depaliment of Aeronautics, due 
in monthly instalhnents of$311, through September 2009. 7,464 

Non-interest-bearing note payable to the Nebraska Department of Aeronautics, due 
in monthly installments of $200, through February 2012. 10,600 

Non-interest-bearing note payable to the Nebraska Department of Aeronautics, due 
in monthly installments of$200, through October 2011. 9,800 

Community Redevelopment Authority: 

Redevelopment Revenue Bonds issued December 6, 2004, interest rates ranging 
from 4.60% to 6.05%. Interest due in semiammal installments due September 15 
and March 15. Principal due in annual installments ranging from $70,000 due 

$ 227.864 

September 15,2009, to $110,000 due September 15,2018. $ 860,000 

Redevelopment Revenue Bonds issued January II, 2005, interest rates at 4.25%. 
Interest due in semiannual installments due September IS and March 15. Principal 
due in annual installments ranging from $175,000 due September IS, 2006, to 
$185,000 due September 15,2008. 

Redevelopment Revenue Bonds issued November 15, 2004, interest rates rallging 
from 3.05% to 3.95%. Interest due in semiannual installments due September 15 
and March 15. Principal due in annual installments ranging from $125,000 due 
September 15,2009, to $150,000 due September 15, 2014. 
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185,000 

~5,000 
$ 1.860,000 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

6. Long-term Debt, coutinued 

Component Unit Bonds and Notes Payable, continued 

The outstanding balance of September 30, 2007, is estimated to be repaid as follows: 

Year Ended 
September 30, 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

2013-2017 
2018 
Total 

7. Registered Warrants 

Airport Authority 
Notes and Bonds Payable 

Principal Interest 

$ 73,532 $ 5,654 
73,532 3,574 
74,800 1,242 

4,800 
1,200 

$ll1.,864 $ lQ,470 

Connnlmi ty 
Redevelopment Authority 

Bonds Payable 
Principal Interest 

$ 185,000 
195,000 
200,000 
210,000 
215,000 
745,000 
110,000 

$ 1,860,QQQ 

$ 84,320 
76,457 
69,425 
61,740 
53,190 

133,390 
6,655 

$ 485,177 

Registered wan-ants were issued to fulance vaTious projects of the City of Beatrice and the 
Beatrice Commllluty Redevelopment Authority. There are no specific repayment terms and 
interest is due upon repayment of the rcgistered wan-ants. Interest rates range from 5.5% to 
6.5%. The following is a Sl1111m31), of registered warrants transactions for the year ended 
September 30, 2007. 

Registered wan-ants payable September 30, 2006 
Registered warrants issued 
Registered warr311ts paid 
Registered warrants payable September 30, 2007 
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Govermnental 
Fnnds 

$ 329,926 
159,272 

015,176) 
$ 374.022 

COlmnmlily 
Redevelopment 

Authority 

$ 65,801 
177,391 

(177,391) 
$ 65,801 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continned 

8. Notes Receivable/Payable - Tax Increment Financing 

Estimated future receivables and payables under TIF agreements were as follows as of 
September 30, 2007: 

Cornhusker Hospitality II, LLC 
Airport Authority ofBeah'ice 
E-6 Investments, Inc. 
E-6 hwestments, hlC. 
Fakler Development, LLC 
E-6 Investments, Inc. 
Toby and Teresa Bissegger 
Beatrice Biodiesel, LLC 
Precise Bldg, LLC 

Cunent POltion 
Noncurrent POltion 

Receivable 

$ 224,433 
1,690,742 

186,999 
40,502 
63,035 
50,290 
26,478 

2,210,000 
190,000 

$ 4,682,479 

$ 377,178 
4,305,301 

$ 4,682,479 

9. Interfund Payables and Receivables 

Payable 

$ 224,433 
1,690,742 

186,999 
40,502 
63,035 
50,290 
26,478 

2,210,000 
190,000 

$ 4~682,479 

$ 377,178 
4,305,301 

$ 4,682,479 

All interfund payables arise due to ongoing operations of the City. The following balances at 
September 30, 2007, represent individual fund interfund receivables and payables: 

Fund Receivable Payable 

Special Revenue Funds: Street Fund $ $ 201,068 
Debt Service Funds: Bonded 123,039 
Debt Service Funds: Unbonded 78,029 
Internal Service Fund 65,000 
Component Unit: CRA 50,000 
General Fund 115,000 

$316,068 $ 316,068 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE C - DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, continued 

10. Deficit Fund Balances 

The Debt Service Fund had a deficit fund balance for Unbonded Assessments of $235,058 at 
September 30, 2007. The Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance for 911 Surcharge of 
$5,964 at September 30,2007. 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES 

1. Pension Plans 

The City participates in the following employee pension plans: 

Name of Plan Type of Plan 

Police and Firefighters Pension Plan Defined Contribution Plan 

Non-uniformed Employees Defined Contribution Plan 

Board of Public Works Defined Contribution Plan 

Deferred Compensation Plan Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan 

Pensioners Nonqualified Benefit Plan 

Police and Firet1ghters Pension Plan 

Plan Description - On December 20, 1965, the City of Beatrice adopted a contributory pension 
plan to provide retirement benefits for regularly employed police officers and firefighters. This 
was originally a defined benefit plan, but was convelted to a defined contribution plan January 1, 
1984. 

Members of the Police can retire at age 60 and above with 21 or more years of service if 
employed prior to November 18, 1965. Members aged 55 to 59 and those over the age of 60 
employed on or after November 18, 1965, can retire with 25 or more years of service. The plan 
also provides death and disability benefits. A member is 40% vested after four years of service 
plus 10% for each year thereafter, up to 100%. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continned 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Police and Firefighters Pension Plan, continued 

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made - The conllibution rate for police employees 
is 6% of gross with the City also contributing 6% as adopted by the City. The City's total police 
payroll for 2007 was $998,416 and the City contributions were based on a payroll of $988,416. 
Both the City and the covered employees made the required contributions, amounting to $59,336 
(retirement rate of 6% of covered payroll) for the City and $59,336 (6%) for the employees. 

Firefighters can retire at age 55 with 21 or more years of service. Their plan also provides for 
death and disability benefits. A member is 40% vested after 4 years of service, plus 20% for 
each year thereafter up to 100%. 

The conllibution rate for firefighter employees is 6.5% of base pay with the City contributing 
13.0%, as adopted by the City. The City's total fire payroll for 2007 was $1, 111,457 and the 
City's contributions were based on a payroll of $938,632. Both the City and the covered 
employees made the required conhibutions, amounting to $122,022 (retirement rate of 13% of 
covered payroll) for the City and $61,011 (6.5%) for the employees. 

Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established by and may be amended by the 
City COlmciJ. 

The Police and Firefighters pension is administered by the City. The assets aTe accounted for in 
the Pension Trust Fund of the Fiduciary Fund. 

Police and Firefighters Plan (Pre-1984) 

The City of Beatlice, Nebraska, Police Pension (Police Plan) and the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, 
Firefighters Plan (Firefighters Plan) are administered as follows: 

(1) Employees who were hired by Janumy 1, 1984, the date at which the Police and 
Firefighters Plans were amended from defined benefit plans to their cnlTent statns as 
defined contribution plans, were assured of receiving retirement benefits under the 
new plan at least as great as those under the old defined benefit plan. 

(2) Employees hired after January 1, 1984, moe covered by the defined contribution plan, 
whi ch is administered by a third pat1y. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Police and Firefighters Plan (Pre-1984), continued 

The employees hired prior to January 1, 1984, participate in both plans and will receive either 
their benefit from the defined contribution plan or defined benefit plan, whichever is greater. 
The City has funded their portion of the respective Plan with the assets being held by a third 
patiy other than the administrator of the current defined contribntion plan. These assets are 
recorded on the City's books in the Police Retirement Fund and the Firefighters Retirement 
Fund, respectively. 

Based on the achlarial valuation, it is anticipated that the unallocated account is sufficient to 
provide the minimum defined benefits for the remaining pre-1984 hires. Therefore, it is 
anticipated that no additional contribution will be required to be made to the unallocated account. 

Police Plan 

The projected retirement benefits at January 1, 2002, were determined through an actuarial 
valuation and no separate audited pension plan report has been available since. The actuarial 
valuation was performed using the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method, which determines the total 
cost of the projected pension benefits to all employees combined. This total cost is then spread 
over the average future remaining years to retirement for the employees. The cost is spread as a 
level percentage of compensation. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation included (a) a rate of return of 8 percent 
for pre-retirement and 5 percent for post-retirement per atillUm, and (b) projected annual salary 
increases of 3 percent. 

The pension benefit status, a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension 
benefits, intended to help assess the funding status of pensions, is as follows: 

Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 2007 
Benefit liability at January 1,2003, plus 

an inflation factor to September 30, 2007 
Funded Status 

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost recognized 
in the balance sheet 

$ 337,208 

377,924 
( 40,716)* 

$ 

* The deficit is covered by other investments available in the fiduciary fund from the 
Firefighters Plan. 

The actuarially determined recommended contribution under the defined benefit plan was zero, 
and no contributions were made for the year ended September 30, 2007. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Firefighters Plan 

Since January 1, 2002, the date of the last actuarial valuation of the defmed contribution plan, 
there are only four active employees in the Firefighters Plan, two of which have an account 
balance greater than the future benefits payable under the defined benefit plan. 

The projected retirement benefits at January 1, 2002, were determined through an actuarial 
valuation and no separate audited pension plan report has been available since. The actuarial 
valuation was perfonned using the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method, which determines the total 
cost of the proj ected pension benefits to all employees combined. This total cost is then spread 
over the average future remaining years to retirement for the employees. The cost is spread as a 
level percentage of compensation. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation included (a) a rate ofreturn of 8 percent 
for pre-retirement and 5 percent for post-retirement per annum, and (b) projected annual salary 
increases of 3 percent. 

The pension benefit status, a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension 
benefits intended to help assess the funding status of pensions, is as follows: 

Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 2007 
Benefit liability at January 1, 2003, plus 

an inflation factor to September 30, 2007 
Funded Status 

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost 
recognized in the balance sheet 

$ 2,886,231 

1,272.298 
$ 1.613,211 

The actuarially determined reconnnended contribution under the defined benefit plan was zero, 
and no contributions were made for the year ended September 30, 2007. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Non-Uniformed Employees (Other than Board of Public Works) 

Plan Description - On August 1, 1967, the City of Beatrice adopted a contributory pension plan to 
provide retirement benefits for regularly employed and appointed employees of the City. This 
plan also covers employees of the Airport Authority which is a component unit of the City of 
Beah·ice. The plan is a defined contribution plan. The employees are eligible to participate in the 
plan after completing one year of full-time service and reaching age 21. Members can retire at age 
60 and the plan provides death and disability benefits. Vesting begins after five years of 
palticipation in the plan at the rate of 2.0% per month. Participants are fully vested after nine 
years and two months of participation. 

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made - The contribution rate for the non­
uniformed employees is 6% of base pay with the City contribution 6%, as adopted by the City. 
The City's total non-uniformed employee payroll for 2007 was $1,556,970 and the City's 
contributions were based on a payroll of $1,188,137. Both the City and covered employees made 
required contributions, totaling $71,288 (retirement rate of 6% of covered payroll) for the City and 
$71,288 (6%) for the employees, plus $7,142 in additional voluntary contributions. There were 
no changes in plan provisions during the period. 

Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established by and may be amended by the City 
Council. 

The non-uniformed pension is administered by the City. The assets are accounted for in the 
Pension Trust Fund of the Fiduciary Fund. 

Board of Public Works 

Defined Contribution Plan: 

Defined Contribution Plan Description - The Board of Public Works has adopted a defined 
contribution plan available to all employees with one year of service and who have attained the 
age of 21. Eligible employees are required to join the Plan on the first day of the month 
coinciding with or next following the date on which the eligibility requirements are met. 
Through payroll deductions, the employee is required to make pre-tax contributions of 6% of 
compensation, as a condition of participating in the Plan. The employee may make after-tax 
contributions ranging from 1% to 100% of their compensation. The Board of Public Works will 
make a contribution of6% of the employee's arumal compensation to the Plan. 

The employee is always 100% vested in their Plan contributions, plus any earnings generated. 
Employer contributions to the Plan, plus any earnings generated, are vested as follows: 

Vesting begins at a rate of 20% after 3 years, i.e., less than 2 years, 0%; 3 years, 20%; 4 years, 
40%; 5 years, 60%; 6 years, 80%, and 7 or more years, 100%. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Board of Public Works, continued 

Defined Contribution Plan, continued: 

Employees may select funds to invest in for their pOliion of the contribution; however, the Board 
of Public Works contribution is always invested in a Guanmteed Investment Account. 

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made - Contributions of $154,018 were made by 
the Board of Public Works to match required contributions for the year ended 
September 30, 2007. Contributions were based on wages totaling $2,566,97l for the year ending 
September 30, 2007. Total wages paid by the Board of Public Works were $2,707,421 for the 
year ended September 30, 2007. Benefits under the plan will be based on accumulated 
contributions. 

The pension plan is administered by a trustee independent of the Board of Public Works. 
Administration costs are paid from plan earnings. Pl31l provisions and contribution requircments 
arc established by and may be amcndcd by the Board of Public Works. 

Deferred Compensation Plan: 

The City of Beatrice Board of Public Works (BPW) has a defened compensation pl31l created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The pl31l is available to all BPW 
employees 31ld elected officials. The plan pennits them to defer a pOliion of their salary Imtil 
futnre years. The defcned compensation is not available to employees until termination, 
retirement, death, unforeseeable emergency, or pennanent disability. 

As of January I, 1997, these funds were placed in trust, in accord31lce with IRS Code Section 
457(g)(1). IRS Code Section 457(g)(l), applicable for plan year begillliing January 1, 1997, 
states that "a plan maintained by an eligible employer shall not be treated as an eligible defened 
compensation plan unless all assets and income of the plan are held in tmst for the exclusive 
benefit ofpmiicipants 31ld their beneficiaries." The deferred compensation plan as placed in trust 
is not subject to any creditors of the BPW. 

Pensioners 

The City provides pension benefits to firefighters who retired prior to J amtary I, 1984. This plan 
is administered by the City and payments are funded and budgeted for annually. The estimated 
benefit obligation at September 30, 2007, was $928,319, which is funded by the unallocated 
account in the Firefighters Defined Benefit Plan. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

1. Pension Plans, continued 

Three-year Trend Information for Public Safety Employees Retirement System 

Fiscal Year Ending 
9/30/05 
9/30/06 
9/30/07 

2. Risk Management 

Insurance 

AlliUal Pension Percentage of APC 
Cost (APC) Contributed 

$ N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$ 

The City is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or acts of God. These liability 
exposures continue to be insured through an A + rated insurance company. 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to medical claims of employees and 
dependents. The City established a Self-Insured Insurance Fund (an internal service flmd) to 
account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, the Self-Insured 
Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $90,000 per person annually for 
medical claims. The City is also self-insured for workers' compensation claims up to $100,000 
per occurrence and per employee and $300,000 per aggregate. The City purchases commercial 
insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund and for all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal periods. 

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insured Group 
Insurance Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior- and current­
period claims. The claims liability of $103,000 and $127,000 reported in the financial statements 
at September 30, 2007 and 2006, is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Pronouncements, which require that a liability for claims be reported if 
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred as of the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

2. Risk Management, continued 

Insurance, continued 

Changes in the City's claims liability amount in fiscal 2007 and 2006 were: 

Current Period 
Beginning Claims and Charges Balance 
of Fiscal Change in and at Fiscal 

Period Liability Estimates Reimbursements Period-End 

2006-2007 $ 127,000 $ 1,216,519 $ 1,192,519 $ 103,000 
2005-2006 62,111 1,132,449 1,197,338 127,000 

Deposits and Investments 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except the 
Board of Public Works, Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency, Beatrice Airport Authority, and the 
Pension Trust FlUld. Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed 011 the combined balauce sheet 
as "Cash and hlVestments." TIle deposits and investments of the aforementioned fimds are held 
separately fi'om those of other City fLmds. 

The Board of Public Works maintains certificates of deposits, money market accounts for 
restricted assets for customer deposits and Bond Payment account, Debt Service Reserve 
Accmmt, Renewal and Replacement Account, and Retirement and Betlemlent account. These 
accounts are identified on the balance sheet as "Restricted Investments." 

Statutes authorize the City Treasurer to deposit all money collected, received, or held by the 
Treasurer in state and national banks of approved and responsible standing. Statutes also 
authmize the City Treasurer to purchase certificates of deposit from banks selected as 
depositories of City funds. 

Fm the secmity of the funds so deposited, the City Treasurer shall require each depository bank 
to give bond for the safekeeping and payment of such deposits and the accretions thereof, which 
bond shall run to the City and bc approved by the Mayor. Such bond shall be deposited with the 
City Clerk. 

In lieu of the bond requirement, any bank making application to become a depository of the City 
may deposit security with the City Clerk as provided in State Statute 16-715. Provided, that the 
penal sum of said bond of the sum of said pledge of assets shall be of the value equal to or 
greater than the amount of the deposit in excess of that portion of said deposit insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

2. Risk Management, continued 

Deposits and Investments, continued 

The City Treasurer shall not have on deposit in any bank at any time more than either (1) the 
maximum amount of the bond given by said bank if the bank gives a surety bond, nor in any 
bank giving a personal bond, more than one-half of the amount ofthe bond of such bank, and the 
amounts so on deposit any time with any such bank shall not in either case exceed the paid-up 
capital stock and smplus of such bank; or (2) ninety percent of the par value of the securities 
flirnished by said bank in cases where the bank deposits securities approved by the City Treasurer 
in lieu of a bond. 

The Statutes in the preceding four paragraphs do not apply to Pension Trust Funds ofthe City. 

The City's fnnds (other than those mentioned in the previous paragraph) are deposited in non­
interest-bearing accounts, interest-bearing accounts, and non-negotiable certificates of deposit of 
state and national banks. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside patiy. All of the underlying securities 
for the City's investments at September 30, 2007, are held by the counterparties not in the name 
of the City. The underlying securities consist of cash, direct obligations of or guaranteed by the 
full faith and credit of the U.S. Government, and other similar obligations of the U.S. 
Government or its agencies. 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising 
interest rates, the City's investment policy requires that market conditions and investment 
securities be analyzed to determine the maximum yield to be obtained and to minimize the 
impact of rising interest rates. The certificates of deposit maturities are as follows: 

Maturities by Month 

October 2007 
November 2007 
December 2007 
March 2008 
September 2008 
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AmOlUlt 

$ 1,375,000 
500,000 
300,000 
521,176 

80,000 
$ 2,776.176 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

2. Risk Management, continued 

Deposits and Investments, continued 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations. The City's investments consist of celiificates of deposit, money market 
funds, and other securities backed by U.S. Govemment obligations, minimizing credit risk 
associated with the City's investment portfolio. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City's investment policy places no limit on the amotmt that 
may be invested in anyone issuer. At September 30, 2007, the City's investments in certificates 
of deposit consisted ofthe following: 

Financial Institution 

First National Banle of Omaha 

Bank orthe West 

TierOne Bank 

First National Bank and Trust Company 
of Beatrice 

AmOlmt 

$ 751,176 

1,100,000 

450,000 

475,000 

$ 2,776,176 

The only other investments owned by the City of Beatrice are held by a fiscal agent in the 
Pension Trust Ftmd. 

The Pension Trust FWld of the City's employees (other than the BOaTd of Public Works) is 
managed by Principal Financial Gronp. They are not required to insure the funds entrusted to 
them. State Statntes require that not more than 50% of the pension funds be held in eqnity 
accounts. The City complied with this statute. The investments of the City's pension trust funds 
are pooled with those of other trust funds and they are separated by bookkeeping entries only. 
The canying value and fair value are the same. The balance at September 30, 2007, was 
$15,632,848. 

Inveshnent in the Pension Trust Fund is divided among guaranteed interest account, connnon 
stock account, money market account, real estate account, private market bond and mortgage 
account, and stock index account. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

2. Risk Management, continued 

Deposits and Investments, continued 

Foreign Currency Risk. This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment 
from changes in exchange rates. The City's investments had no exposure to foreign currency risk 
and held no investments denominated in foreign currency at September 30, 2007. 

3. Commitments and Contingencies 

Closure and Post-Closure Care Cost 

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site 
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at 
the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post -closure care costs will be paid 
only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a pOliion of 
these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill 
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $1,270,000 repOlied as landfill closure and 
post-closure care liability at September 30, 2007, represents the cmnulative amount reported to 
date based on 40.9% used of the estimated capacity of the landfill, and is an increase of$150,000 
over the previous fiscal year. 

The City will recognize the remammg estimated cost of closure and post-closure care of 
$1,673,700 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it 
would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care in 2002. The City expects to close the 
landfill in 2027. Actual cost of closure and post-closure may be higher than anticipated due to 
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws or regulations. 

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to be in compliance with the 
financial assurance regulations by passing the local government financial tests to demonstrate 
financial assurance for closure and post-closure care. The City is in compliance with these 
requirements, and at September 30, 2007, investments of $521,176 are held for these purposes. 
These are reported as restricted assets on the balance sheet. The City expects that future inflation 
costs will be paid from interest earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest 
earnings are inadequate or additional post-closure care requirements are determined (due to 
changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be 
covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenue. 

69 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

3. Commitments and Contingencies, continned 

Economic Development 

The City has entered into an agreement with Gage County Economic Development, Inc. (GCED) 
According to the agreement, the City will reimburse the corporation periodically for certain funds 
expended for the purpose of encouraging immigration, new industries, and investment and to 
conduct and canyon a publicity campaign as authorized by NEB. REV. STAT. 13-315. 
Pursuant to this agreement, the City agrees to reimburse GCED for qualified expenditures during 
each year as follows: 

September 30, 2008 $ 180,000 

The City has entered into an agreement with Main Street Nebraska, Inc. According to the 
agreement, the City will reimburse the corporation periodically for certain funds expended for the 
purpose of encouraging immigration, new industries, and investment and to conduct and carry on 
a publicity campaign as authorized by NEB. REV. STATE. 13-315. 

Pursuant to this agreement, the City agrees to reimburse Main Street for qualified expenditures 
during each year as follows: 

September 30, 2008 $ 24,000 

The City has entered into an agreement with the Pickrell Rural Fire Protection District to perform 
basic life support/non-transport services within the City of Beatrice. It is payable as follows: 

September 30, 2008 $ 5,907 

Loss Contingency 

The City of Beatrice is identified as a Potential Responsible party as defined by the 
Comprehensive Environmental Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 by reason of cutTent 
ownership of the propeliy with the presence of contamination. The City's potential exposure to 
the clean-up costs may be up to 25% of the total costs, which the City will try to recover from the 
previous owner and the engineering firm that performed the environmental assessment prior to 
purchase of the property. During 2008, the City will participate in studies to evaluate the best 
course of action to clean up the site. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

4. Interlocal Agreements 

The City has the following interlocal agreements in effect as of September 30, 2007: 

. ,. __ . ___ Pa!.·t~~!~_I!_.~_g!·e_~_!!~_~_~t 
City of Beatrice 
Beatrice Rural Fire Dish'ict 
City of Blue Springs 
Blue Springs Rlual Fixe Distl:ict 
Village of Clatonia 
Clatonia FiTe District 
Village of Adams 
Adams Rural PiTe District 
Village of BaT nest Oil 
Barneston Rural Fire Dish-jet 
Village of COltland 
Cortland Rural Fire District 
Filley Rural Fire District 
Village of Odell 
Odell Rural Fire District 
Village of Pickrell 
Pickrell Rural Fire District 
City of Wymore 

_ ~j'El?Ee __ Rural FiTe Dish-jet 
City of Beatrice 
County of Gage 

Pickrell Rural Fil"e Dist 
City of Beatrice 

City of Beatrice 

, C~~!l_~ Of5!_,,:g~_ 
City of Beatrice 

. City of Wymore 
City of Beatrice 
Village of Odell 

Term 

June 1, 2006, through 
June 30, 2007. Renewed 
for the term July I, 2007, 
through June 30, 2008 

August 1, 2000, until 90-
day written notice is 
given to terminate 

Fehruary 5, 2001, as 
long as District 
maintains State license 

- . 
August 1, 2006, to 
July 3l,}(j(j9 
August I, 2003, 
pelJletually . 
May 19, 2003, lluollgh 
May 19,2008 
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To create a mutual finance organization as 
authorized by Neh. Rev. Stat. 35-1201 known as 
the Gage Counly Fire Protection Mutual Finance 
Organization. 

To provide necessary ambulance service to the 
City of Beatrice and certain areas of Gage 
County. 

--- -

To perfonn basic life supportillontransport 
services needed due to medical emergencies. 

To provide for administration of911 services. 

To provide for adl11inistration of 911 services. 

To provide for satellite lottery operations in 
Odell. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

4. Interlocal Agreements, continued 

_ ~arties..!~ A.g~eeJl1e!,( 
Southeast Area Drug Enforcement 
City of Beau' ice 
County of Gage 
County of Johnson 
City of Nebraska City 
County of Otoe 
City of Tecumseh 
County of Pawnee 
County of Richardson 
COlUIty of Nemaha 

City of Beatrice 
County of Gage 

Nebraska Energy Services Company 
City of Beatrice 

City ofBeatTice 
Beah"ice Rural Fire District 

City of Beatrice 
Beatrice School Dis!. 1115 

Term 

December 1. 2000, 
until exhaustion of 
funds provided by 
the Nebr Crime 
Commission 

May 19,2003, until 
ten1llnated by 
either party 

July 15,1999, until 
July 14, 2024 

February 22, 1993, 
perpetually 

September 1, 2005, 
through 
August 31,2008 
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To identify, investigate, apprehend and facilitate 
the prosecution of drug dealers and offenders 
through cooperative law enforcEment activities. 

To provide assistance to juveniles in Gage 
County through referrals from law enforcement 
depts. paid from federal funding. 

To provide products and services, coordinate the 
development and marketing of products and 
services, and to jointly develop and market 
products and services. 

To provide fire protection and service to the 
dish·ict in accordance with the agreement and to 
house fire vehicles and equipment ill the City 
fiIe station. 

To provide personnel for the protection of 
students and school property and for the 
education and counseling of students all 

problems ranging from domestic to substance 
abuse. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

5. Reconciliation of the Legal Budgetary and GAAP Basis - Debt Service Funds 

The City Council approves formal budgets for Bonded and Unbonded and Water Park Debt 
Service Funds on a non-GAAP (cash) basis for revenues and expenditures. For financial 
reporting purposes revenues are recognized when measurable and available and expenditures are 
recognized as inctllTed. The following summary reconciles operations for the period fi-om the 
budgetary basis to the GAAP hasis ofTeporting. 

Revenues 
Revenues on budgetmy hasis 
Cash to accrual adjustments 
Revenues on GAAP hasis 

Expenditures 
Expenditures on budgetary basis 
Cash to accrual adjustments 
Expenditures Oil GAAP hasis 

Transfers 
Transfers on budgetary basis 
Cash to accrual adjustments 
Revenues on GAAP basis 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over (Under) 

Bonded 
and 

Unbonded 

$ 284,251 
(120,821) 
163,430 

351,412 
(108,899) 
242,513 

25,000 
( 6,964) 

18,036 

Expenditures on a GAAP Basis $ ( 61,047) 

6. New Pronouncement 

Water 
Park 

$ 135,146 
1,145 

136,291 

133,115 

133,115 

$ 3,176 

Total 

$ 419,397 
(119,676) 
299,721 

484,527 
(108,899) 
375,628 

25,000 
6,964) 

18,036 

$(51,871) 

On October 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Pos/employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The basic premise of the 
statement is that Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) are emned by employees and should be 
recognized by the employer as the employee provides services. GASB 45 requires employers to 
account for and report the ammaJ cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations and 
commitments related to them in the same mallier as they currently do for pensions. The City's 
retirees Call continue to receive health insurallCe benefits by paying COBRA premiums. 
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NOTE D - OTHER NOTES, continued 

6. New Pronouncement, continued 

Accounting for OPEB under GASB No. 45 will result in the City repOtting an actu3Tially-based 
liability for benefits. The City will be required to implement GASB No. 45 in the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2008. The City has not yet detemlined the impact on the financial 
statements of implementing this statement, whether to retroactively implement the statement, or 
whether to change retiree benefits. 

74 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 

INFORMATION 





CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule A·1 
GENERAL FUND 

MAJOR FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Over! 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Under) Totals 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Property tax $ 1,272,723 $ 1,272,723 $ 1,260,966 $ (11,757) $1,181,723 
Sales tax 1,840,000 1,840,000 2,001,191 161,191 1,837,435 
Occupation tax 749,600 749,600 735,742 (13,858) 713,808 

Licenses and permits 97,800 97,800 199,008 101,208 94,817 
Intergovernmental 1,062,134 1,062,134 1,184,967 122,833 884,795 
Charges for services 1,433,668 1,433,668 1,664,723 231,055 1,356,417 
Miscellaneous 181,484 181,484 199,222 17,738 351,329 

Total Revenues 6,637,409 6,637,409 7,245,819 608,410 6,420,324 

Expeuditures 
General govermnent 876,110 1,112,858 1,022,521 (90,337) 768,412 
Pnblic safety 4,261,634 4,510,986 4,502,256 (8,730) 4,245,137 
Culture and recreation 1,270,533 1,350,533 1,321,558 (28,975) 1,199,996 

Total Expenditures 6,408,277 6,974,377 6,846,335 (128,042) 6,213,545 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 229,132 (336,968) 399,484 736,452 206,779 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 30,927 30,927 20,600 (10,327) 26,000 
Transfers to Other Funds (224,059) (224,059) (185,322) 38,737 (268,364) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (193,132) (193,132) (164,722) 28,410 (242,364) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ 36,000 $ (530,1 00) $ 234,762 $ 764,862 $ (35,585) 

Note: The basis of budgeting complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule A-2 
STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

MAJOR FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Overl 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Under) Totals 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Sales tax $ 530,000 $ 530,000 $ 562,782 $ 32,782 $ 521,859 

Intenzovernmental: 
Local shared revenue 17,500 17,500 (17,500) 
State shared revenue 1,446,904 1,446,904 1,470,262 23,358 1,055,633 

Total Intergovernmental 1,464,404 1,464,404 1,470,262 5,858 1,055,633 

Charges for services 22,950 22,950 34,318 11,368 37,492 
Miscellaneous 65,599 65,599 203,127 

22,950 22,950 99,917 76,967 240,619 

Total Revenues 2,017,354 2,017,354 2,132,961 115,607 1,818,111 

Expenditures 
Personal Services: 

Salaries 396,514 452,514 451,582 (932) 423,725 
Social Secnrity 30,000 30,000 29,365 (635) 28,385 
Retirement 20,000 20,000 18,112 (1,888) 16,781 
Health and life insurance 120,102 120,102 122,498 2,396 118,426 
Workmen's compensation 37,500 37,500 37,500 35,700 

Total Personal Services 604,116 660,116 659,057 (1,059) 623,017 

Supplies: 
Operating supplies 73,000 73,000 56,050 (16,950) 70,942 
Repairs and maintenance supplies 107,000 107,000 147,243 40,243 118,554 

Total Supplies 180,000 180,000 203,293 23,293 189,496 

Other Services and Charges: 
Insurance 22,150 22,150 24,182 2,032 21,306 
Engineering services 12,900 12,900 1,906 (10,994) 2,460 
Utilities 1,500 1,500 1,715 215 1,715 
Maintenance and repairs 16,800 16,800 33,554 16,754 21,528 
Rentals 35,800 35,800 38,849 3,049 33,797 
Training and transportation 1,700 1,700 1,953 253 1,580 
Communications 2,000 2,000 3,029 1,029 2,497 
Miscellaneous 2,570 2,570 526 (2,044) 611 

Total Other Services and Charges 95,420 95,420 105,714 10,294 85,494 

Capital Outlay: 
Improvements other than buildings 964,500 964,500 867,195 (97,305) 968,631 
Machinery and equipment 118,900 118,900 111,441 (7,459) 38,314 

Total Capital Outlay 1,083,400 1,083,400 978,636 (104,764) 1,006,945 

Total Expenditures 1,962,936 2,018,936 1,946,700 (72,236) 1,904,952 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 54,418 $ (1,582) $ 186,261 $ 187,843 $ (86,841) 

Note: The basis of budgeting complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule A-3 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

MAJOR FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Variance 
Original Final Over/ 
Budget Budget Actual (Under) 

Revennes 
Grants $ 565,000 $ 565,000 $ 64,213 $ (500,787) $ 
Interest earnings 15,000 15,000 20,667 5,667 
Miscellaneous revenue 3,500 3,500 
Loan payments 18,364 18,364 18,485 121 

Total Revenues 598,364 598,364 106,865 (491,499) 

Expenditures 
Administration 5,000 5,000 695 (4,305) 
Professional services 1,800 1,800 4,695 2,895 
Grant repayments 50,000 50,000 50,000 
Reuse loans 1,113,741 1,113,741 (1,113,741) 
Loan forgiveness 
Demolition expense 8,458 8,458 
Capital outlay 58,200 58,200 48,000 (10,200) 

Total Expenditures 1,228,741 1,228,741 111,848 (1,116,893) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

2006 
Totals 

450 
15,571 

23,206 
39,227 

232 
1,800 

50,000 
25,000 

321,875 

398,907 

Over (Under) Expenditures $ (630,377) $ (630,377) $ (4,983) $ (625,394) $ (359,680) 

Note: The basis of budgeting complies witb Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Special Debt 
Revenue Service 

Funds Fmlds 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 888,375 $ 47,045 
Cash on deposit - County Treasurer 26,981 
Accounts receivable 11,855 
Interest receivable 3,888 
Assessments receivable 15,811 
Restricted: 

Cash 
Investments 

In-lieu-of assessments 10,105 
Due from other funds 123,039 

Total Assets $ 888,375 $238,724 

Liabilities and Fnnd Balances 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ $ 
Accrued interest payable 6,228 
Deferred revenues 21,621 

Total Liabilities 6,228 21,621 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for economic development 675,162 
Reserved for debt service 217,103 
Reserved for library capital improvements 
Reserved for public safety equipment 
Reserved for storm water management 31,262 
Umeserved, illldesignated 175,723 

Total Fund Balances 882,147 217,103 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 888,375 $238,724 
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Total 
Capital Nonmajor 
Projects Governmental 
Filllds Funds 

$ (142,320) $ 793,100 
26,981 

320,114 331,969 
3,888 

15,811 

266,131 266,131 
96,835 96,835 

10,105 
123,039 

$ 540,760 $1,667,859 

$ 174,332 $ 174,332 
6,228 

21,621 
174,332 202,181 

675,162 
217,103 

96,835 96,835 
266,131 266,131 

31,262 
3,462 179,185 

366,428 1,465,678 

$ 540,760 $1,667,859 



CITY OF BEATRICE Schedule B-2 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Total 
Special Debt Capital NOlll1lajor 

Revenue Service Projects Governmental 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Revenues 
Property taxes $ $176,847 $ $ 176,847 
Sales tax 250,000 250,000 
Intergovernmental 34,124 803 703,454 738,381 
Charges for services 74,005 74,005 
Keno proceeds 109,558 109,558 
Special assessments 8,111 8,111 
Interest 34,536 1,700 3,509 39,745 
Loan proceeds 216,263 216,263 
Donations and miscellaneous revenue 113,826 82,615 196,441 

Total Revenues 616,049 187,461 1,005,841 1,809,351 

Expenditures 
General government 211,624 211,624 
Public safety 50,718 50,718 
Capital outlay 410,661 1,159,099 1,569,760 
Debt Service: 

Principal 165,000 165,000 
Interest 28,945 28,945 

MFO payments - other entities 122,907 122,907 
Total Expenditures 5'73,003 193,945 1,282,00<5 2,148,954 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (56,954) (6,484) (276,165) (339,603) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Sale of capital assets 14,805 14,805 
Transfer from Other Funds 275,322 275,322 
Transfer to Other Funds (110,600) (110,600) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (95,795) 275,322 179,527 

Net Change in Fnnd Balances (152,749) (6,484) (843) (160,076) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,034,896 223,587 367,271 1,625,754 

Fnnd Balances, End of Year $ 882,147 $217,103 $ 366,428 $1,465,678 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule C-1 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Storm 
Economic 911 Water 

Development Keno Surcharge Management Total 

Assets 
Cash and investments $675,162 $181,687 $ 264 $ 31,262 $ 888,375 

Total Assets $675,162 $181,687 $ 264 $ 31,262 $ 888,375 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 
Accrued interest payable $ $ $ 6,228 $ $ 6,228 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for: 

Economic development 675,162 675,162 
Storm Water Management 31,262 31,262 

Umeserved: 
Undesignatec1 181,687 (5,964) 175,723 
Total Fund Balance 675,162 181,687 (5,964) 31,262 882,147 

Total Liabilities and Fnnd Balance $675,162 $181,687 $ 264 $ 31,262 $ 888,375 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule C-2 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Stonn 
Economic 911 Water 

Development Keno Surcharge Management Total 

Revenues 
Sales tax $ 250,000 $ $ $ $ 250,000 
Intergovennnental 34,124 34,124 
Charges for services 74,005 74,005 
Keno proceeds 109,558 109,558 
Interest 34,536 34,536 
Other revenue 113,826 113,826 

Total Revennes 398,362 109,558 74,005 34,124 616,049 

Expenditnres 
General govenm1ent 189,086 19,676 2,862 211,624 
Public safety 50,718 50,718 
Capital outlay 410,661 410,661 

Total Expenditures 599,747 19,676 50,718 2,862 673,003 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (201,385) 89,882 23,287 31,262 (56,954) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Sale of Capital Assets 14,805 14,805 
Transfers to Other Funds (90,000) (20,600) (110,600) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 14,805 (90,000) 00,600} (95,795) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses (186,580) (118) 2,687 31,262 (152,749) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 861,742 181,805 (8,651) 1,034,896 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 675,162 $181,687 $ (5,964) $ 31,262 $ 882,147 
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Assets 
Cash and investments 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Water Bonded 
Park Districts 

$ 37,594 $ 9,451 
Cash on deposit - County Treasnrer 26,981 
AccOlmts receivable 11,855 
Interest receivable 3,888 
Assessments receivable 15,811 
In-lieu-of assessments 10,1 05 
Due from other funds 123,039 

Total Assets $ 76,430 $ 167,294 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 
Deferred Revenue $ 7,990 $ 13,631 

Fund Balance 
Reserved fOT: 

Debt Service 68,440 148,663 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 76,430 $ 162,294 
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Total 

$ 47,045 
26,981 
11,855 

3,888 
15,811 
10,105 

123,039 

$ 238,724 

$ 21,621 

217,103 

$ 238,724 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Schedule C-4 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Water Bonded 
Park Districts Total 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 135,488 $ 41,359 $ 176,847 
Intergovernmental 803 803 
Special assessments 8,111 8,111 
Interest on special assessments 1,700 1,700 

Total Revenues 136,291 51,170 187,461 

Expenditures 
Debt Service: 

Interest 23,115 5,830 28,945 
Principal 110,000 55,000 165,000 

Total Expenditures 133,115 60,830 193,945 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 3,176 (9,660) (6,484) 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 65,264 158,323 223,587 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 68,440 $ 148,663 $ 217,103 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
GENERAL FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Umestricted cash 
Restricted cash 
Investments 
Cash on deposit - County Treasurer 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Taxes receivable 
Due from other Funds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Deferred revenues 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Umeserved: 

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 
Undesignated 
Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 
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2007 

$ 337,081 
44,626 

770,000 
208,518 
499,912 

85,375 
115,000 

$ 2,060,512 

$ 60,900 
57,655 

118,555 

491,000 
1,450,957 
1,941,957 

$ 2,060,512 

Schedule D-1 

2006 

$ 19,378 
50,450 

660,000 
185,848 
418,411 

76,933 
365,000 

$ 1,776,020 

$ 24,304 
44,521 
68,825 

445,000 
1,262,195 
1,707,195 

$ 1,776,020 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule D-2 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 3,862,323 $ 3,862,323 $ 3,997,899 $ 135,576 $ 3,732,966 
Licenses and permits 97,800 97,800 199,008 101,208 94,817 
lntergovernmental 1,062,134 1,062,134 1,184,967 122,833 884,795 
Charges for services 1,433,668 1,433,668 1,664,723 231,055 1,356,417 
Miscellaneous 181,484 181,484 199,222 17,738 351,329 

Total Revenues 6,637,409 6,637,409 7,245,819 608,410 6,420,324 

Expenditures 
General government 876,110 1,112,858 1,022,521 90,337 768,412 
Public safety 4,261,634 4,510,986 4,502,256 8,730 4,245,137 
Culture and recreation 1,270,533 1,350,533 1,321,558 28,975 1,199,996 

Total Expenditures 6,408,277 6,974,377 6,846,335 128,042 6,213,545 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 229,132 (336,968) 399,484 736,452 206,779 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 30,927 30,927 20,600 (10,327) 26,000 
Transfers to Other FLmds (224,059) (224,059) (185,322) 38,737 (268,364) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (193,132) (193,132) (164,722) 28,410 (242,364) 

Excess (Del1ciency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ 36,000 $ (530,100) 234,762 $ 764,862 (35,585) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, 
as previonsly reported 1,707,195 1,600,902 

Restatement of Ftmd Balance 141 878 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, 
as restated 1707 195 1,742.780 

Fnnd Balance, End of Year $ 1,941,957 $ 1,707,195 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule 0-3 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

General Government· 
Mana!(ement and Bnd!(et: 
Personal Services $ 259,328 $ 259,328 $ 259,191 $ 137 $ 240,260 
Supplies 4,500 4,500 2,895 1,605 3,881 
Other Services and Charges 68,144 68,144 64,608 3,536 67,380 
Capital Outlay 50,000 50,000 26,093 23,907 3,526 
Contingency 165,570 325,570 263,707 61,863 185,690 
Contractual Services 120,396 197,144 198,144 (1,000) 86,595 

Total Management and Budget 667,938 904,686 814,638 90,048 587,332 

Legal: 
Personal Services 112 (l12) 60 
Other Services and Charges 89,300 89,300 93,885 (4,585) 70,186 

Total Legal 89,300 89,300 93,997 (4,697) 70,246 

Iuspection: 
Personal Services 109,502 109,502 99,556 9,946 102,989 
Supplies 2,570 2,570 1,899 671 2,190 
Other Services and Charges 6,800 6,800 12,431 (5,631) 4,660 
Capital Outlay 995 

Total Inspectiou 118,872 118,872 113,886 4,986 110,834 

Total General Government 876,110 1,112,858 1,022,521 90,337 768,412 

Public Safety 
Police: 

Personal Services 1,915,792 1,915,792 1,917,693 (1,901) 1,865,305 
Supplies 69,461 69,461 66,275 3,186 58,733 
Other Services and Charges 140,586 140,586 155,137 (14,551) 140,359 
Capital Outlay 69,131 89,131 58,902 30,229 160,416 
Contingencies 4,657 4,657 4,657 

Total Police 2,199,627 2,219,627 2,198,007 21,620 2,224,813 

Fire aud Ambulauce: 
Personal Services 1,589,980 1,645,532 1,633,355 12,177 1,552,276 
Supplies 69,425 78,225 79,476 (1,251) 70,648 
Other Services and Charges 385,639 550,639 576,241 (25,602) 373,375 
Capital Outlay 11,200 11,200 9,414 1,786 18,403 
Contractual Services 5,763 5,763 5,763 5,622 

Total Fire 2,062,007 2,291,359 2,304,249 (12,890) 2,020,324 

Total Public Safety 4,261,634 4,510,986 4,502,256 8,730 4,245,137 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule 0-3 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP), Continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Culture and Recreation 
Public Properties: 
Personal Services 568,753 568,753 562,107 6,646 542,847 
Supplies 108,215 108,215 107,527 688 100,108 
Other Services and Charges 96,670 96,670 94,507 2,163 86,877 
Capital Outlay 19,175 19,175 14,583 4,592 17,981 
Contingency 80,000 71,416 8,584 
Contractual Services 22,600 22,600 21,550 1,050 11,200 

Total Public Properties 815,413 895,413 871,690 23,723 759,013 

Library: 
Personal Services 290,938 290,938 294,975 (4,037) 282,775 
Supplies 8,495 8,495 7,703 792 9,620 
Other Services and Charges 65,479 65,479 65,035 444 59,565 
Capital Outlay 90,208 90,208 82,155 8,053 89,023 

Total Library 455,120 455,120 449,868 5,252 440,983 

Total Culture and Recreation 1,270,533 1,350,533 1,321,558 28,975 1,199,996 

Total Expenditnres $6,408,277 $6,974,377 $6,846,335 $ 128,042 $6,213,545 
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Schedule D-4 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
SUPPORTING SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND REVENUES - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final FavOTable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Taxes: 
Property taxes $ 1,202,723 $ 1,202,723 $ 1,182,143 $ (20,580) $ 1,111,985 
Homestead exemption allocation 65,000 65,000 73,955 8,955 65,232 
Interest on delinquent taxes 5,000 5,000 4,868 (132) 4,506 
City sales tax 1,840,000 1,840,000 2,001,191 161,191 1,837,435 
Utilities occupation tax 700,000 700,000 715,056 15,056 693,266 
Beer and liquor occupation tax 17,000 17,000 17,916 916 17,480 
Insurance company occupation tax 100 100 60 (40) 65 
Miscellaneous occupation tax 32,500 32,500 2,710 (29,790) 2,997 

3,862,323 3,862,323 3,997,899 135,576 3,732,966 

Licenses and Permits: 
Bicycle licenses 300 300 145 (155) 145 
Dog licenses 4,500 4,500 4,201 (299) 4,059 
Plumbers' licenses 1,000 1,000 685 (315) 1,245 
Building permits 80,000 80,000 181,602 101,602 76,753 
Plumbing permits 5,000 5,000 5,433 433 5,379 
Mechanical pennits 2,000 2,000 1,791 (209) 1,426 
Miscellaneous permits 5,000 5,000 5,151 151 5,810 

97,800 97,800 199,008 101,208 94,817 

Intergovernmental: 
County library aid 18,804 18,804 20,893 2,089 18,804 
Motor vehicle tax 196,000 196,000 215,719 19,719 209,810 
County ambulance aid 144,962 144,962 144,962 141,426 
Interlocal 911 dispatc11 aid 60,090 60,090 60,090 55,067 
Govemmental sub/state aid 110,639 110,639 110,628 (11 ) 110,674 
Victim assist. coordinator/OJT 38,000 38,000 39,964 1,964 38,000 
Local match - SEADE 37,142 37,142 37,053 (89) 36,414 
Library grants 2,000 2,000 1,000 (1,000) 2,465 
Prorate motor vehicle tax 4,800 4,800 5,878 1,078 5,291 
State library aid 2,461 2,461 3,318 857 2,325 
Municipal equillzation fimds 218,098 218,098 222,035 3,937 127,000 
Federal Crime Commission 116,983 116,983 97,130 (19,853) 91,900 
Federal grant - FEMA 25,350 25,350 56,313 30,963 
Housing grant 76,748 76,748 
Other intergovemmental 67,829 67,829 66,363 (1,466) 45,619 
Federal law enforcement grant 18,976 18,976 26,873 7,897 

1,062,134 1,062,134 1,184,967 122,833 884,795 

Charges for Services: 
Publlcation cost income 1,500 1,500 425 (1,075) 1,561 
Management and budget 

miscellaneous charges 3,000 3,000 1,355 (1,645) 1,407 
Accounting Services 11,200 11 ,200 11,426 226 10,912 
BASW A management services 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 
Legal services 35,000 35,000 35,183 183 32,213 
Legal miscellaneous charges 100 100 52 (48) 977 
Restitution - fees and damages 2,000 2,000 1,030 (970) 
Inspection miscellaneous charges 1,200 1,200 676 (524) 615 
Police c11arges 2,500 2,500 2,327 (173) 2,328 
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Schedule 0-4 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
SUPPORTING SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND REVENUES -

BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL, Continued 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH CaMPARA TlVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Charges for Services, continued: 
Fire charges 21,000 21,000 21,431 431 21,080 
Hazardous materials cleanup 2,000 2,000 176 (1,824) 4,169 

Fire inspections 2,000 2,000 2,343 343 1,442 
Ambulance charges 1,063,500 1,063,500 1,277,349 213,849 956,705 
Public safety miscellaneous charges 11,900 11 ,900 20,415 8,515 56,590 
Auditorium use fee 7,000 7,000 5,853 (1,147) 7,236 
Water Park admissions 87,000 87,000 90,059 3,059 85,892 
Camping receipts 25,000 25,000 43,029 18,029 24,473 
Water Park concessions and sales 37,000 37,000 31,970 (5,030) 31,237 
Public properties miscellaneolls 

charges 8,000 8,000 7,663 (337) 8,663 
Park building use fees 1,000 1,000 1,251 251 897 
BASW A administration charges 72,055 72,055 72,055 70,298 
BASWA facility maintenance 5,653 5,653 5,653 5,515 
Library use fees 10,500 10,500 9,157 (1,343) 9,305 
Library copying fees 3,200 3,200 3,038 (162) 2,954 
Library miscellaneous charges 500 500 451 (49) 412 
NRC Program Grant 300 300 (300) 222 
Interlibrary loan revenue 360 360 376 16 346 
Parking fines and rents 3,200 3,200 3,980 780 2,968 

1,433,668 1,433,668 1,664,723 231,055 1,356,417 

Miscellaneous: 
Interest earnings 70,000 70,000 75,268 5,268 70,834 
Reimbursements 2,000 2,000 36,740 34,740 
Donations - Beattice Program Plus 6,000 6,000 5,260 (740) 5,325 
Police donations 20,484 20,484 7,173 (13,311) 181,795 
Fire donations 1,500 1,500 1,432 (68) 3,695 
Public properties donations -

Water Park 2,500 2,500 1,000 (1,500) 5,315 
Parks donations 4,000 4,000 2,900 (1,100) 6,026 
Library donations 5,000 5,000 8,873 3,873 8,654 
Library donations/foundation 31,000 31,000 23,527 (7,473) 31,585 
Lease Income - BASW A 34,000 34,000 34,000 34,000 
Sales of capital assets 5,000 5,000 3,049 (1,951) 4,100 

181,484 181,484 199,222 17,738 351,329 

Total Revenues $ 6,637,409 $ 6,637,409 $ 7,245,819 $ 608,410 $ 6,420,324 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Assets 
Cash $ 337,970 
Accounts Receivable 414,334 

Total Assets $ 752,304 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 546,559 
Due to Other Funds 201,068 

Total Liabilities 747,627 

Fund Balance 
Umeserved 

U ndesignated 4,677 
Total Fund Balance 4,677 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 752,304 
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2006 

$ 17,078 
45,648 

$ 62,726 

$ 18,242 
208,032 
226,274 

(163,548) 
(163,548) 

$ 62,726 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule E·2 
STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUNDBALANCE-BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Revenues 
Taxes: 

Sales Tax $ 530,000 $ 530,000 $ 562,782 $ 32,782 $ 521,859 

Intergovernmental: 
Local Shared Revenue 17,500 17,500 (17,500) 
State Shared Revenue 1,446,904 1,446,904 1,470,262 23,358 1,055,633 

Total Intergovernmental 1,464,404 1,464,404 1,470,262 5,858 1,055,633 

Charges for Services 22,950 22,950 34,318 11,368 37,492 
In·kind Contributions 65,599 65,599 203,127 

22,950 22,950 99,917 76,967 240,619 

Total Revenues 2,017,354 2,017,354 2,132,961 115,607 1,818,111 

Expenditures 
Personal Services: 

Salaries 396,514 452,514 451,582 932 423,725 
Social Security 30,000 30,000 29,365 635 28,385 
Retirement 20,000 20,000 18,112 1,888 16,781 
Health and Life Insurance 120,102 120,102 122,498 (2,396) 118,426 
Workmen's Compensation 37,500 37,500 37,500 35,700 

Total Personal Services 604,116 660,116 659,057 1,059 623,017 

Supplies: 
Operating Supplies 73,000 73,000 56,050 16,950 70,942 
Repairs and Maintenance Supplies 107,000 107,000 147,243 (40,243) 118,554 

Total Supplies 180,000 180,000 203,293 (23,293) 189,496 

Other Services and Charges: 
Insurance 22,150 22,150 24,182 (2,032) 21,306 
Engineering Services 12,900 12,900 1,906 10,994 2,460 
Utilities 1,500 1,500 1,715 (215) 1,715 
Maintenance and Repairs 16,800 16,800 33,554 (16,754) 21,528 
Rentals 35,800 35,800 38,849 (3,049) 33,797 
Training and Transportation 1,700 1,700 1,953 (253) 1,580 
Connnunications 2,000 2,000 3,029 (1,029) 2,497 
Miscellaneous 2,570 2,570 526 2,044 611 

Total Other Services and Charges 95,420 95,420 105,714 (10,294) 85,494 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule E-2 
STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL, Continned 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable ) Totals 

Improvements Other Than Buildings 964,500 964,500 867,195 97,305 968,631 
Machinery and Equipment 118,900 118,900 111,441 7,459 38,314 
Total Capital Outlay 1,083,400 1,083,400 978,636 104,764 1,006,945 

Total Expenditnres 1,962,936 2,018,936 1,946,700 72,236 1,904,952 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 54,418 (1,582) 186,261 187,843 (86,841) 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers to Other Funds (25,000) (25,000) (18,036) 6,964 

Total Other Financing Uses (25,000) (25,000) (18,036) 6,964 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 
and Other Uses $ 29413 $ (26 532) 168,225 $ 194807 (86,841) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, 

as previously reported (163,548) (99,807) 

Restatement of Fund Balance 23,100 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, 
as restated (163,548) (76,707) 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 4,677 $(163,548) 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Assets 
Cash and Investments $ 675,162 

Total Assets $ 675,162 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities $ 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for Economic Development 675,162 

Total Fund Balance 675,162 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 675,162 
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2006 

$ 861,742 

$ 861,742 

$ 

861,742 
861,742 

$ 861,742 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule E-4 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actnal (Unfavorable) Totals 

Revenues 
Sales Tax $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ $ 250,000 
Interest Earnings 30,000 30,000 34,536 4,536 39,476 
Loans/Rents Revenue 7,000 7,000 6,471 (529) 7,191 
Other Revenue 107,355 107,355 

Total Revenues 287,000 287,000 398,362 111,362 296,667 

Expenditures 
Economic Developlnent 330,144 330,144 180,000 150,144 164,606 

Capital Outlay 2,187,500 2,187,500 410,661 1,776,839 150,600 

Other Expenclitnres 9,086 (9,086) 
Debt Service: 

Loan Principal 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Interest 
Total Expenditures 2,767,644 2,767,644 599,747 2,167,897 315,206 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (2,480,644) (2,480,644) (201,385) 2,279,259 (18,539) 

Other Financing Sources 
Sale of Capital Assets 25,000 25,000 14,805 (10,195) 35,000 
Bond Pro_ceeds 1,500,000 1,500,000 (1,500,000) 

Total Other Financing Sources 1,525,000 1,525,000 14,805 (1,510,195) 35,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revennes 
and Other Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ (955,644) $ (955,644) (186,580) $ 769,064 16,461 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 861,742 845,281 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 675,162 $ 861,742 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule E·5 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Cash 
Loans Receivable 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Registered Warrents Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Restricted for Revolving Loan Fund 
Unreserved 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 
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2007 

$ 620,277 
1,689,429 

$ 2,309,706 

$ 

2,305,147 
4,559 

2,309,706 

$ 2,309,706 

2006 

$ 475,314 
1,841,175 

$ 2,316,489 

$ 1,800 
1,800 

2,316,008 
(1,319) 

2,314,689 

$ 2,316,4R9 



Schedule E-G 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Totals 

Revennes 
Grants $ 565,000 $ 565,000 $ 64,213 $ (500,787) $ 450 
Interest Eamings 15,000 15,000 20,667 5,667 15,571 
Miscellaneons Revenue 3,500 3,500 
Loan Payments - principal 154,163 154,163 (154,163) 
Loan Payments - interest 18,364 18,364 18,485 121 23,206 

Total Revenues 752,527 752,527 106,865 (645,662) 39,227 

Expenditures 
Administration 5,000 5,000 695 4,305 232 
Professional Services 1,800 1,800 4,695 (2,895) 1,800 
Grant Repayments 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 
Reuse Loans 1,113,741 1,113,741 1,113,741 25,000 
Loan Forgiveness 321,875 
D~IIlOliliuIl Expense 8,458 (8,458) 

Capital Outlay 58,200 58,200 48,000 10,200 

Total Expenditures 1,228,741 1,228,741 111,848 1,116,893 398,907 

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevennes 

Over Expenditures $ (476,214) $ (476,214) (4,983) $ 471,231 (359,680) 

Fund Balance, Beginning or Year, 2,314,689 2,674,369 

Fnnd Balance, End of Year $2,309,706 $ 2,314,689 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
KENOILOTTERY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMP ARA TlVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Cash and Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Unreserved 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 
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2007 

$ 181,687 

$ 181,687 

$ 

181,687 
181,687 

$ 181,687 

Schedule E-7 

2006 

$ 181,805 

$ 181,805 

$ 

181,805 
181,805 

$ 181,805 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
KENOILOTTERY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

Schedule E-8 

WITH COMP ARA TIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Revenues 
Keno/Lottery Proceeds $108,000 $108,000 $109,558 $ 1,558 $ 93,706 

Expenditures 
Other Services and Charges 20,700 20,700 19,676 1,024 17,584 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 87,300 87,300 89,882 2,582 76,122 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers to Other Funds (112,078) (112,078) (90,000) 22,078 (92,636) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (112,078) (112,078) (90,000) 22,078 (92,636) 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other 
Financing Sources (Uses) $(24,778) $(24,778) (118) $ 24,660 (16,514) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 181,805 198,319 

Fund Balance, End of Year $181,687 $181,805 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
911 SURCHARGE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Assets 
Cash $ 264 

Total Assets $ 264 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 

Accrued Interest Payable 6,228 

Total Liabilities 6,228 

Fund Balance 
Unreserved (5,964) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 264 
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2006 

$ (495) 

$ (495) 

$ 

8,156 
8,156 

(8,651) 

$ (4952 



Schedule E-10 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
911 SURCHARGE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Revenues 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

2007 

Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
2006 

Totals 

911 Service Smcharge $83,050 $83,050 $ 74,005 $ (9,045) $ 67,282 

Expenditures 
Lease Payments 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers to Other Funds 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

52,646 52,646 

30,404 30,404 

(30,927) (30,927) 

$ (523) $ (523) 

100 

50,718 1,928 60,802 

23,287 (7,117) 6,480 

(20,600) 10,327 (26,000) 

2,687 $ 3,210 (19,520) 

(8,651) 10,869 

$ (5,964) $ (8,651) 



Schedule E-11 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Cash 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for Storm Water Management Plan 

Total Liabilities and Fuud Balance 
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2007 

$ 31,262 

$ 31,262 

$ 

31,262 

$ 31,262 

2006 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 



Schedule E-12 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual ~Unfavorable 1 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ 34,124 $ 34,124 $ 

Expenditures 
Other Services and Charges 4,000 2,862 1,138 

Excess (Deficiency) 
of Revenues 
Over Expenditures $ $ (4,000) 31,262 $ 35,262 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 31,262 $ 
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2006 
Totals 



Schedule F-1 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Water Bonded Unbonded 2006 
Park Districts Assessments Total Totals 

Assets 
Cash $37,594 $ 9,451 $ 17,710 $ 64,755 $108,845 
Cash on Deposit - County Treasurer 26,981 26,981 23,021 
Accounts Receivable 11,855 11,855 8,910 
Assessments Receivable: 

Current 5,585 45,998 51,583 35,725 
Delinquent (Note 11) 6,700 21,799 28,499 11,991 
DefelTed 3,526 245,570 249,096 200,847 

Accrued Interest Receivable 3,888 14,419 18,307 12,223 
In-Lieu-of Assessments 10,105 10,105 11,669 
Due from Street Fund 123,039 78,029 201,068 208,032 

Total Assets $76,430 $162,294 $423,525 $662,249 $621,263 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accrued Interest Payable $ $ $ 38,991 $ 38,991 $ 34,514 
Registered Warrants Payable 374,022 374,022 328,127 
Deferred Revenues 7,990 13,631 245,570 267,191 218,706 

Total Liabilities 7,990 13,631 658,583 680,204 581,347 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for Debt Service 68,440 148,663 217,103 223,587 
Unreserved P5,058) (235,058) (183,671) 

Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 68,440 148,663 (235,058) (17,955) 39,916 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $76,430 $162,294 $423,525 $662,249 $621,263 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Schedule F-2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Water Bonded Unbonded 2006 
Park Districts Assessments Total Totals 

Revenues 
Property Taxes $ 135,488 $ 41,359 $ $ 176,847 $ 163,958 
Intergovernmental Revenues 803 803 703 
Special Assessments 8,111 95,681 103,792 159,761 
Interest on Assessments 1,700 16,579 18,279 12,393 

Total Revenues 136,291 51,170 112,260 299,721 336,815 

Expenditures 
Capital Projects: 

Improvements 159,271 159,271 166,642 
Interest on Registered Warrants 22,412 22,412 20,289 

Debt Service: 
Interest 23,115 5,830 28,945 33,102 
Principal 110,000 55,000 165,000 150,000 

Total Expenditures 133,115 60,830 181,683 375,628 370,033 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 3,176 (9,660) (69,423) (75,907) (33,218) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 18,036 18,036 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 18,036 18,036 

(Excess) Deficiency of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Uses 3,176 (9,660) (51,387) (57,871) (33,218) 

Fund Balances (Deficit), 
Beginning of Year 65,264 158,323 (183,671) 39,916 73,134 

Fund Balances (Deficit), 
End of Year $ 68A40 $ 148,663 $ (235,058) $ (17,955) $ 39,916 
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Schedule F-3 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
WATER PARK DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMP ARA TIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revennes 
Propeliy Taxes 
Intergovernmental Revenue 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Debt Service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Original 
Budget 

$132,465 
650 

$ 

133,115 

110,000 
23,115 

133,115 

2007 

Final 
Budget 

$132,465 
650 

$ 

133,115 

110,000 
23,115 

133,115 

105 

Actual 

$134,343 
803 

135,146 

110,000 
23,115 

133,115 

$ 2,031 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 1,878 
153 

2,031 

$ 2,031 

2006 
Totals 

$134,939 
703 

135,642 

105,000 
25,967 

130,967 

$ 4,675 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
BONDED DISTRICTS DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

Schedule F-4 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Special Assessments 
Interest on Assessments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Bond Principal Payments 

Interest on Registered Warrants 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Over 
I£xpenditures 

Original 
Budget 

$ 45,000 
8,000 
2,000 

55,000 

55,000 
5,830 

60,830 

$ (5,830) 

2007 

Final 
Bndget Actual 

$ 45,000 $ 41,359 
8,000 7,689 
2,000 1,289 

55,000 50,337 

55,000 55,000 

5,830 5,830 

60,830 60,830 

$ (5,830) $ (l0.493) 
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Variance 
Favorable 2006 

(Unfavorable) Totals 

$ (3,641) $ 26,299 
(311) 4,469 
(7ll) 1,040 

(4,663) 31,808 

45,000 

7,l35 
52,l35 

$ (4,663) $ (20.327) 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule F-5 
UNBONDED DISTRICTS DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revennes 
Special Assessments $ 
Interest on Assessments 
Proceeds from Registered Warrants 

Original 
Budget 

37,834 
17,435 

-----,--
Total Revenues 55,269 

Expenditures 
Capital Proj ects 
Interest on Registered Warrants 
Principal on Registered Warrants 
Improvements 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

9,250 
85,300 

94,550 

(39,281) 

25,000 

25,000 

2007 
Variance 
Favorable 2006 Final 

Budget _...:.A.::.c...:.tl;:..:Ja:.,:.I_ (Unfavorable) _-,T=-.:o:.,:.ta:=l.::.s_ 

$ 37,834 
17,435 

55,269 

18,250 
114,300 
160,000 
292,550 

(237,281) 

25,000 

25,000 

$ 63,737 
10,906 

159,271 
233,914 

17,935 
113,376 
159,271 
290,582 

(56,668) 

25,000 

25,000 

$ 25,903 
(6,529) 

159,271 
178,645 

315 
924 
729 

1,968 

180,613 

$ 138,118 
8,924 

294,889 
441,931 

9,818 
174,452 
294,890 
479,160 

(37,229) 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over 
Expenditures $ (14,281) $ (212,281) $ (31,668) $180,613 $ (37,229) 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule G-1 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Library 
Capital Capital 2006 

Improvements Improvements Total Totals 

Assets 
Cash $ $ (142,320) $(142,320) $ 95,649 
Restricted: 

Cash 266,131 266,131 235,366 
Investments 96,835 96,835 97,106 

ACCOllllts Receivable 320,114 320,114 11,341 

Total Assets $ 96,835 $ 443,925 $ 540,760 $439,462 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ $ 174,332 $ 174,332 72,191 

Total Liabilities 174,332 174,332 72,191 

Fuud Balances 
Reserved for Library Capital Improvement 96,835 96,835 97,106 

Reserved for Public Safety Equipment 266,131 266,131 235,366 

Undesignated 3,462 3,462 34,799 

Total Fund Balances 96,835 269,593 366,428 367,271 

Total Liabilities and Fnnd Balances $ 96,835 $ 443,925 $ 540,760 $439,462 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Schedule G-2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Library 
Capital Capital 2006 

Improvements Improvements Total Totals 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ $ 703,454 $ 703,454 229,605 
Donations and Miscellaneous Revenue 82,615 82,615 22,500 
Loan proceeds 216,263 216,263 
Interest 3,509 3,509 3,023 

Total Revenues 3,509 1,002,332 1,005,841 255,128 

Expenditnres 
Capital Proj ects 3,780 1,155,319 1,159,099 427,728 
MFO Payments - Other Entities 122,907 122,907 122,576 

Total Expenditures 3,780 1,278,226 1,282,006 550,304 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revennes 
Over Expenditures (271) (275,894) (276,165) (295,176) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 275,322 275,322 361,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 275,322 275,322 361,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Uses (271) (572) (843) 65,824 

Fnnd Balances, Beginning of Y car 97,106 270,165 367,271 301,447 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 96,835 $ 269,593 $ 366,428 $367,271 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
LIBRARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

Schedule G·3 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Cash 
Restricted: 

Investments 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for Library Capital Improvement 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 
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2007 2006 

$ $ 

96,835 97,106 

$96,835 $97,106 

$ $ 

96,835 97,106 

$96,835 $97,106 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
LIBRARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Schedule G-4 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Revenues 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Original 
Budget 

$ 2,500 
2,500 

4,376 
4,376 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures $ (1,876) 

Fund Balance, Begiuning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

111 

2007 

Final 
Budget 

$ 2,500 
2,500 

2,088 
4,376 
6,464 

$ (3,964) 

Variance 
Favorable 2006 

Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

$ 3,509 $ 1,009 $ 3,023 
3,509 1,009 3,023 

2,088 
1,692 2,684 
3,780 2,684 

(271) $ 3,693 3,023 

97,106 94,083 

$96,835 $97,106 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Cash 
Restricted: 
Cash 

Accounts Receivable 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for Public Safety Equipment 
Umeserved 
Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 
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2007 

$(142,320) 

266,131 
320,114 

$ 443,925 

$ 174,332 

266,131 
3,462 

269,593 

$ 443,925 

Schedule G-5 

2006 

$ 95,649 

235,366 
11,341 

$342,356 

$ 72,191 

235,366 
14,799 

270,165 

$ 342,356 



Schedule G·G 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMP ARA TIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (U nfavorable) 

Revenues 
Donations and Miscellaneous Revenue $ 51,316 $ 51,316 $ 82,615 $ 31,299 $ 
Loan proceeds 170,000 170,000 216,263 46,263 

Intergovernmental 718,900 7J8,900 703,454 (15,446) 

Total Revenues 940,216 940,2J6 1,002,332 62, J 16 

Expenditures - Capital Projects 
Park Equipment and Improvements 95,450 163,450 137,917 25,533 
Beatrice Plus 8,379 8,379 8,379 
Building Inspection Equipment 
Municipal Auditorium Renovation 

Building Improvements 302,600 363,600 340,J49 23,451 

Police Equipment ilud Facilitie~ ImpruveIIlen1s 31,362 31,362 29,680 1,682 

Fire and Rescue Equipment 369,126 369,126 95,326 273,800 
Trails 543,349 543,349 488,133 55,216 
Senior Center Parking Lot 16,000 16,000 14,036 1,964 
Library Equipment and Facilities 13,632 13,632 20,492 (6,860) 

Computer Equipment 29,650 29,650 29,586 64 

MFO Payments - Other Entities 122,576 122,576 122,907 (331) 

Total Expenditures - Capital Projects 1,532,124 1,661,124 1,278,226 382,898 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (591,908) (720,908) (275,894) 445,014 

Other Financiug Sources (Uses) 
Transfers from Other Funds 336,137 336,137 275,322 (60,815) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 336,137 336,137 275,322 (60,815) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Sources Over 
Expepditures and Other Uses $ (25577]) $ (38477]) (572) $ 384199 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 270,165 

2006 
Totals 

22,500 

229,605 
252, J 05 

75,824 
11,739 
20,924 

18,065 
8,876 

46,031 

171,550 
29,780 

360 

44,579 

122,576 
550,304 

(298,199) 

361,000 

361,000 

62,801 

207,364 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 269,593 $ 270,165 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 
Unbilled and Accrued Revenues 
Materials and Supplies Inventories 

Prepaid Expenses 
Current Portion ofCRA Bonds Receivable 
Interest Receivable 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Cash 

Employee Benefits 
Debt Service Reserve Account 

Restricted Investments 
Customer Deposits 
Total Restricted Cash and Investments 

Property. I'lan!, and Equipment 
Land and Land Rights 

Buildings and Improvements 

Improvements Other Than Building 

MachinelY and Equipment 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Construction in Progress 

Net Property. Plant, and Equipment 

Other Assets 
CRA Bonds Receivable, net of Current Portion 
Unamortized Bond Issuance Cost, net of Amortization of 

$11,985 and $9,588 for 2007 and 2006 
Total Other Assets 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Accrued Payroll 
Sales Tax Payable 
Employee Insurance Payable 
Accrued Interest 
Customer Deposits 
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds 
Total Current Liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities 

Compensated Absences, Noncurrent 
Revenue Bonds, net of Current Portions 

Total Long-term Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

114 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2007 

550,028 
868,902 
432,662 
512,631 

8,854 
185,000 

3,789 
2,561,866 

13,263 
170,999 

143,845 
328,107 

17,432 

1,144,846 

23,370,413 

2,727,704 
27,260,395 
14,335,284 
12,925,111 

13,132 
12,938,243 

9,588 
9,588 

13,275,938 

15,837,804 

916,674 
100,831 

24,808 
75,688 
68,000 

1,267 
143,845 
194,742 

1,525,855 

137,422 
558,688 

696,110 
2,221,965 

12,194,401 
170,999 

1,250,439 
13,615,839 

15,837,804 

Schedule H-1 

2006 

517,803 
752,879 
372,171 
434,518 

7,250 
180,000 

4,500 
2,269,121 

26,150 
167,071 

111,180 
304,401 

17,432 

1,144,846 

22,388,822 

2,616,678 
26,167,778 
13,393,690 
12,774,088 

12,774,088 

185,000 

11,985 
196,985 

13,275,474 

$ 15,544,595 

$ 926,135 
82,805 

64,491 
62,000 

1,541 
111,180 
188,358 

1,436,510 

140,086 
753,430 

893,516 
2,330,026 

11,844,285 
167,071 

1,203,213 
13,214,569 

$ 15,544,595 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H·2 
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Variance 
Original Final Favorable 2006 
Bndget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services $10,319,800 $10,319,800 $11,512,137 $ 1,192,337 $10,956,522 

Operatiug Expenses 
Elech-ic Energy Purchased 6,400,000 6,400,000 7,973,033 (1,573,033) 7,492,594 
Operatiug and Maintenance Expense 875,300 875,300 875,675 (375) 995,871 
Customer Accounting Expenses 230,150 230,150 230,571 (421) 180,056 
Engineering Services 162,250 162,250 122,776 39,474 42,744 
Administrative and General Expense 794,874 794,874 803,350 (8,476) 706,005 

Depreciation 900,000 900,000 941,593 (41,593) 941,554 

Municipal Services 400,150 400,150 365,924 34,226 348,738 

Total Operating Expenses 9,762,724 9,762,724 11,312,922 (1,550,198) 10,707,562 

Operating Income 557,076 557,076 199,215 (357,861) 248,960 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Merchandising, Etc_ 55,000 55,000 12,099 (42,901) 8,325 
Interest Income 60,000 60,000 82,657 22,657 79,737 
Miscellaneous 240,100 240,100 146,603 (93,497) 109,776 
Interest Expense (40,278) (40,278) (36,907) 3,371 (44,646) 
Transfer to Other Funds (172,986) 
Amortization of Bond Issuance Cost (2,397} (2,397} (2,397) 

Total Non-Operating Revennes 
(Expenses) 314,822 314,822 202,055 (112,767) (22,191) 

Net Income (Loss) $ 871,898 $ 871,898 401,270 $ (470,628) 226,769 

Net Assets, Begiuning of Year 13,214,569 12,987,800 

Net Assets, End of Year $13,615,839 $13,214,569 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash Received From Customers 

Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Cash Paid to Employees for Services 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt 
Transfers to Other Funds 
Interest Paid on Long-term Debt 

Capital Expenditures 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Receipt of Principal Payments on Bond Receivable 
Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) lnvesting Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Restricted Cash 

Cash and Restricted Cash~ Beginning of Year 

Cash and Restricted Cash, End of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents consist of: 
Cash and Investments 

Employee Benefits Cash 

Dcbt Service Reserve Account 

Customer Deposits Investments 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Merchandise and Miscellaneous Revenue 
(Increase) Decrease in Unbilled and Accrued Revenues 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory 
Increase in Prepaid Expenses 
Decrease in Accounts Payable 
Increase in Customer Deposits 

Increasc (Decrease) in Sales Tax Payable 

Increase in Employee Insurance Payable 

Increase in Accrued Payro1l 

Increase in Compensated Absences 

Total Adj ustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Summary arNon-Cash Transactions: None 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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2007 

11,538,187 

(9,028,359) 

(1,385,978) 

1,123,850 

(188,358) 

(37,181) 
(1,105,748) 

(1,331,287) 

180,000 
83,368 

263,368 

55,931 

822,204 

878,135 

550,028 

13,263 

170,999 

143,845 

878,135 

199,215 

941,593 
158,702 
(60,491) 

(116,023) 
(78,113) 

(1,604) 
(9,461) 
32,665 

11,197 

6,000 

24,808 

15,362 

924,635 

1,123,850 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Schedule H-3 

2006 

11,216,577 
(8,627,808) 

(1,291,550) 

1,297,219 

(185,164) 
(172,986) 

(43,105) 

(1,032,020) 

(1,433,275) 

175,000 
76,875 

251,875 

115,819 

706,385 

822,204 

517,803 

26,150 

167,071 

111,180 

822,204 

248,960 

941,554 
118,101 
104,736 
35,040 

140,564 
(3,291) 

(330,828) 

4,350 

(2,172) 

20,919 

19,286 

1,048,259 

1,297,219 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 
Unbi11ed and Accrued Revenues 
Materials and Supplies Inventories 

Prepaid Expenses 
Interest Receivable 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Cash 
Debt Service Reserve Account 

Property, Plant, and Equipment 
Land and Land Rights 
Buildings and Improvements 
Improvements Other 111an Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Construction in Progress 

Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Deferred Charges 
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs, net of Amortization of 
$2,782 and $2,226 for 2007 and 2006 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Compensated Absences 

Accrued Payroll 
Sales Tax Payable 
Accrued Interest 
Current Portion of Long-tenn Debt 
Total Current Liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities 

Compensated Absences, noncurrent 
Revenue Bonds, net of Current Portl0n 
Notes Payable, net of Current Portion 

Total Long-term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 
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2007 

$ 485,785 
92,431 
75,062 

246,365 

4,177 
232 

904,052 

36,722 

59,832 

63,555 
12,041,235 

776,984 
12,941,606 

7,919,971 
5,021,635 

8,738 

5,030,373 

2,226 
5,069,321 

$ 5,973,373 

$ 10,885 
92,201 

12,686 
96 

6,427 
81,089 

203,384 

118,077 
130,900 
623,866 
872,843 

1,076,227 

4,196,744 
36,722 

663,680 
4,897,146 

$ 5,973,373 

Schedule H-4 

2006 

$ 583,583 
88,242 
68,442 

236,698 

3,452 
232 

980,649 

156,902 

59,832 
63,555 

11,395,731 
711 ,030 

12,230,148 
7,522,028 
4,708,120 

117,374 

4,825,494 

2,782 
4,985,178 

$ 5,965,827 

$ 44,563 
61,278 

6,810 
78,492 

191,143 

135,697 
176,528 
659,327 
971,552 

1,162,695 

3,913,929 
156,902 
732,301 

4,803,132 

$ 5,965,827 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H·5 

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Operating Revennes 
Charges for Services $ 1,490,000 $1,490,000 $1,537,399 $ 47,399 $1,590,944 

Operating Expenses 
Operating and Maintenance Expenses 647,350 647,350 723,181 (75,831) 796,146 
Customer Acconnting Expenses 94,305 94,305 122,139 (27,834) 82,725 
Engineering Services 16,000 (16,000) 16,000 
Administrative and General Expenses 381,140 381,140 357,755 23,385 314,805 
Depreciation 460,000 460,000 397,943 62,057 431,652 
Municipal Services 22,050 22,050 37,650 (15,600) 27,351 

Total Operating Expenses 1,604,845 1,604,845 1,654,668 (49,823) 1,668,679 

Operating Loss (114,845) (114,845) (117,269) (2,424) (77,735) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Merchandising, Etc. 60,000 60,000 88,557 28,557 52,684 
Contributions in Aid of Construction 20,000 20,000 129,235 109,235 
Interest Income 5,000 5,000 8,445 3,445 7,307 
Miscellaneous 29,600 29,600 15,718 (13,882) 
Interest Expense (31,225) (31,225) (30,116) 1,109 (46,952) 
Transfer From Other Funds 100,000 100,000 (100,000) 89,260 
Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs (556) (556) (556) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 183,375 183,375 211,283 27,908 101,743 

Net Income (Loss) $ 68,530 $ 68,530 94,014 $ 25,484 24,008 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 4,803,132 4,779,124 

Net Assets, End of Year $4,897,146 $4,803,132 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash Received From Customers $ 1,630,961 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (490,575) 
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (784,231) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 356,155 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (78,492) 
Transfers From Other Funds 
Interest Paid on Long-term Debt (30,499) 
Capital Expenditures (473,587) 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (582,578) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest Received 8,445 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 8,445 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Restricted Cash (217 ,978) 

Cash and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 740,485 

Cash and Restricted Cash, End of Year $ 522,507 

C-ash and Cash Equivnlents consist of: 
Cash and Investments $ 485,785 
Debt Service Reserve Account 36,722 
Total Cash and Cash Eqnivalents $ 522,507 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Operating Loss $ (117,269) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 397,943 
Merchandise and Miscellaneous Revenue 104,275 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (4,189) 
(Increase) Decrease in Unbilled and Accrued Revenues (6,620) 
Increase in Inventory (9,667) 
Increase in Prepaid Expenses (725) 
(Decrease) Increase in Accounts Payable (33,678) 
Increase ill Sales Tax Payable 96 
Increase in Accrued Payroll 12,686 
Increase in Compensated Absences 13,303 
Total Adjustments 473,424 

N ct Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 356,155 

Summary oINon-Cash Transactions: 

Schedule H-G 

2006 

$ 1,688,001 
(510,001) 
(778,081) 

399,919 

(76,677) 
89,260 

(40,142) 
(367,905) 

(395,464) 

7,289 
7,289 

11,744 

728,741 

$ 740,485 

$ 583,583 
156,902 

$ 740,485 

$ (77,735) 

431,652 
52,684 
20,462 
23,911 

(69,849) 
(1,407) 
6,061 

14,140 
477,654 

$ 399,919 

The Water Fund received $129,235 of Contributions in Aid of Conshllction on distribution systems put in by 
developers or the City's governmental funds during the year ended September 30, 2007. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H-7 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ENTERPRISE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 2006 
Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash $ 147,216 $ 254,762 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 58,222 59,859 
Unbilled and Accrued Revenues 60,093 52,742 
Prepaid Expenses 2,014 2,165 
Interest Receivable 328 328 
Total Current Assets 267,873 369,856 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Cash 

Deb t Service Reserve Account 54,431 248,127 

Property, Plant, and Equipment 
Land and Land Rights 16,588 16,588 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 16,006,070 15,612,793 
Machinery and Equipment 1,383,851 1,366,599 

17,406,509 16,995,980 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 9,169,924 8,486,194 
Net Property, Plant, aud Equipment 8,236,585 8,509,786 

Deferred Charges 
Unamortized Debt Expense, net of Amortization of 
$3,941 and $3,152 for 2007 and 2006 3,152 3,941 
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,294,168 8,761,854 

Total Assets $ 8,562,041 $ 9,131,710 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

AccOlmts Payable $ 7,459 $ 193,450 
Compensated Absences 38,580 21,622 
Accrued Payroll 6,691 
Accrued Interest 13,311 14,091 
Cm-rent Portion of Long-term Debt 141,243 136,743 
Total Current Liabilities 207,284 365,906 

Long-term Liabilities 
Compensated Absences, noncurrent 33,003 61,696 
Revenue Bonds, net of Current Portion 185,412 250,042 
Notes Payable, net of Cmrent Portion 1,309,885 1,386,499 

Total Long-term Liabilities 1,528,300 1,698,237 

Total Liabilities 1,735,584 2,064,143 

Fund Equity 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Dcbt 6,603,197 6,740,443 
Restricted for Debt Service 54,431 248,127 
Urnestricted 168,829 78,997 
Total Net Assets 6,826,457 7,067,567 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 8,562,041 $ 9,131,710 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H-8 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services $1,122,680 $1,122,680 $1,116,545 $ (6,135) $1,134,329 

Operating Expenses 
Operating and Maintenance Expenses 409,635 409,635 433,942 (24,307) 466,663 
Customer Accounting Expenses 50,490 50,490 61,964 (J 1,474) 64,220 
Engineering Expenses 16,000 (16,000) 16,000 
Administrative and General Expenses 224,063 224,063 206,044 18,019 159,292 
Depreciation 600,000 600,000 683,730 (83,730) 625,654 
Municipal Services 6,100 6,100 9,826 (3,726) 10,473 
Transfer to Other Fund 

Total Operating Expenses 1,290,288 1,290,288 1,411,506 (121,218) 1,342,302 

Operating Loss (167,608) (167,608) (294,961) (127,353) (207,973) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Merchandising, Etc. 10,000 10,000 12,716 2,716 22,035 
Contributions in Aid of Construction 30,000 30,000 84,988 54,988 93,637 
Grant Income 361,458 
Interest Income 5,000 5,000 5,205 205 3,267 
Miscellaneous 24,500 24,500 9,154 (15,346) 9,108 
Interest Expense (59,283) (59,283) (57,424) 1,859 (91,716) 
Transfer from Other Funds 50,000 50,000 (50,000) 83,726 
Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs (788) (788) (788) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 60,217 60,217 53,851 (6,366) 480,727 

Net Income (Loss) $ (107,391) $ (107,391) (241,110) $ (133,719) 272,754 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,067,567 6,794,813 

Net Assets, End of Year $6,826,457 $7,067,567 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Cash Received From Customers 

Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Cash Paid to Employees for Services 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Principal Payments on Long-term Debt 

Transfers from Other Funds 

Jnterest Paid on Long-term Debt 

Capital Expenditures 

Grant proceeds 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash 

Cash and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Restricted Cash, End of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents consist of: 

Cash and Investments 

Debt Service Reserve Account 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net 

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net 

Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 

Merchandise and Miscellaneous Revenue 

Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable 

(Increase) Decrease in Unbilled and Acemed Revenues 

Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Expenses 

(Decrease) Increase in Accounts Payable 

Increase in Accrued Payroll 

(Decrease) Increase in Accrued Compensated Absences 

Tota1 Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Summary of Non-Cash Transactions: 

2007 

$ 1,132,701 

(288,599) 

(471,765) 

372,337 

(136,744) 

(58,204) 

(483,836) 

(678,784) 

5,205 

5,205 

(301,242) 

502,889 

$ 201,647 

$ 147,216 

54,431 
$ 201,647 

$ (294,961) 

683,730 

21,870 

1,637 

(7,351 ) 

151 

(27,695) 

6,691 

(11,735) 

667,298 

$ 372,337 

Schedule H-9 

2006 

$ 1,166,956 

(166,544) 

(450,247) 

550,165 

(133,379) 

83,726 

(77,625) 

(815,377) 

361,458 

(581,197) 

3,243 

3,243 

(27,789) 

530,678 

$ 502,889 

$ 254,762 

248,127 
$ 502,889 

$ (207,973) 

625,654 

31,143 

(3,332) 

4,816 

(1,066) 

96,072 

4,851 

758,138 

$ 550,165 

The Water Pollution Control Fund received $84,988 and $93,637 of Contributions in Aid of Construction on distribution systems 

put in by developers or the City's govemmenta! funds during the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H-10 
SANITATION ENTERPRISE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 2006 
Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash $ 976 $ 28 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 77,453 72,944 

Total Assets $ 78,429 $ 72,972 

Liabilities and Fund Equity 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 78,429 $ 72,972 
Total Liabilities 78,429 72,972 

Net Assets 
Umestricted 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 78,429 $ 72,972 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H·11 
SANITATION ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Operating Revenues 
Garbage Service Fees 

Operating Expenses 
Bad Debt Expense 
Garbage Disposal Contract 
Garbage Hauler Contract 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Income 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets, End of Year 

Original 
Budget 

$ 1,146,300 

2,500 
621,560 
522,240 

1,146,300 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

$ 1,146,300 

2,500 
621,560 
522,240 

1,146,300 

$ 

124 

2007 
Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 1,139,633 $ (6,667) 

3,706 (1,206) 
620,563 997 
515,364 6,876 

1,139,633 6,667 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2006 
Totals 

1,072,664 

3,222 
578,933 
490,509 

1,072,664 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
SANITATION ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMP ARA TlVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Cash Received From Customers 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash 

Cash, Beginning of Year 

Cash, End of Year 

Reconciliation of NetIncome to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Increase in Accounts Receivable 
Increase in Accounts Payable 
Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Summary of Non-Cash Transactions: None 
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2007 

$1,135,124 
(1,134,176) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

948 

948 

28 

976 

(4,509) 
5,457 

948 

948 

Schedule H-12 

2006 

$1,070,316 
(1,070,641) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(325) 

(325) 

353 

28 

(2,348) 
2,023 
(325) 

(325) 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
BASWA ENTERPRISE FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMP ARA TIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and Investments 
Accounts Receivable (Net) 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Cash 

Debt Service Reserve Account 
Restricted Investments 

ClosurelPostclosure Maintenance Account 

Property, Plaut, aud Equipmeut 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Deferred Charges 
Bond Issue Costs, net of Amortization of 

$11,047 and $7,847 for 2007 and 2006 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities aud Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Accrued Compensation 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Cunent Maturities of Bonds Payable 
Current Maturities of Notes Payable 
Total Current Liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities 
Revenue Bonds Payable, net of current portion 
Notes Payable, net of current portion 
Estimated Current Cost of Closure and Postclosure 
Total Long-term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 
Restricted for Debt Service 
Umestricted 
Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 
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2007 

$ 123,148 
132,064 
255,212 

163,235 

521,176 

3,584,215 
623,179 

4,207,394 
2,214,780 
1,992,614 

10,403 
2,687,428 

$2,942,640 

$ 4,536 
23,421 

834 
10,268 

200,000 
17,816 

256,875 

655,000 
41,648 

1,270,000 
1,966,648 

2,223,523 

1,088,553 
163,235 

(532,671) 
719,117 

$2,942,640 

Schedule H·13 

2006 

$ 83,631 
127,361 
210,992 

160,389 

370,325 

3,584,215 
623,179 

4,207,394 
1,923,724 
2,283,670 

13,603 
2,827,987 

$3,038,979 

$ 3,136 
14,610 

771 
12,269 

195,000 
16,994 

242,780 

855,000 
59,447 

1,120,000 
2,034,447 

2,277,227 

1,170,832 
160,389 

(569,469) 
761,752 

$3,038,979 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H-14 
BASW A ENTERPRISE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Operating Revenues 
Other Government User Fees 
Gate Fees 
Garbage Service Fees 
Recycling Income 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operatiug Expenses 
Personal Services 
Supplies 
Other Services and Charges 
Contractual Services 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 

Total Operatiug Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Miscellaneous Income 
Interest Earnings 
Interest Expense 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 

Net Income (Loss) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets, End of Year 

Original 
Budget 

$ 97,659 
235,000 
634,327 

2,500 
969,486 

212,716 
99,100 

265,114 
91,153 

300,000 
125,000 

1,093,083 

(12:1,597) 

26,600 
(235,484) 

(208,884) 

2007 

Final 
Budget 

$ 97,659 
235,000 
634,327 

2,500 
969,486 

212,716 
99,100 

265,114 
91,153 

300,000 
125,000 

1,093,083 

(123,597) 

Actual 

$ 97,659 
261,273 
634,647 

3,916 
997,495 

220,557 
95,518 

207,925 
68,981 

294,256 
150,000 

1,037,237 

(39,742) 

61 
26,600 35,486 

(235,484) (38,440) 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 
26,273 

320 
1,416 

28,009 

(7,841) 
3,582 

57,189 
22,172 

5,744 
(25,000) 
55,846 

83,855 

61 
8,886 

197,044 

(208,884) _---'(~2,'-'-8'--'93-'-) __ 2_0--,5,,-,99_1_ 

$ (332,481) $ (332,481) (42,635) $ 289,846 

761,752 

$ 719,117 
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2006 
Totals 

$ 97,659 
230,869 
592,591 

2,301 
923,420 

214,255 
72,798 

198,942 
114,160 
295,239 

96,445 
991,839 

(68,419) 

2,841 
20,388 

(57,128) 

(33,899) 

(102,318) 

864,070 

$ 761,752 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule H-15 

BASW A ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash Received From Customers 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services 
Cash Paid to Employees for Services 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Bond Principal Repayments 
Note Payable Repayments 
Interest Expenditures 
Capital Expenditures 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Eqnivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Cash and Cash Eqnivalents consist of: 
Cash and Investments 
Debt Service Reserve Account 
Closure/Postclosure Maintenance Account 
Total Cash and Cash Eqnivalents 

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Revenue 
Increase in Estimated Current Cost of Closure and Postclosure 
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable 
Increase in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 
Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operatiug Activities 

Summary of Non-Cash Transactions: 

2007 

$ 992,853 
(371,024) 
(211,683) 
410,146 

(195,000) 
(16,977) 
(40,441) 

(252,418) 

35,486 
35,486 

193,214 

614,345 

$ 807,559 

$ 123,148 
163,235 
521,176 

$ 807,559 

$ (39,742) 

294,256 
61 

150,000 
(4,703) 
1,400 
8,874 

449,888 

$ 410,146 

2006 

$ 932,669 
(383,903) 
(205,125) 
343,641 

(185,000) 
(66,365) 
(44,859) 
(28,749) 

(324,973) 

20,388 
20,388 

39,056 

575,289 

$ 614,345 

$ 83,631 
160,389 
370,325 

$ 614,345 

$ (68,419) 

295,239 
2,841 

96,445 
6,408 
1,997 
9,130 

412,060 

$ 343,641 

BASWA acquired a loader by issuing a $90,000 note payable during the year ended September 30, 2006. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

SELF-INSURED GROUP INSURANCE FUND 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable (net) 

Total Current Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Claims Incurred But Not Reported 
Due to General Fund 

Total Current Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 
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2007 

$ 21,505 
130,191 
151,696 

35,000 
65,000 

100,000 

$ 51,696 

Schedule 1-1 

2006 

$ 22,190 
347,804 
369,994 

65,000 
315,000 
380,000 

$ (10,006) 



CITY OF BEATRICE 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

SELF-INSURED GROUP INSURANCE FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

Schedule 1-2 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Variance 

Original Final Favorable 2006 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Totals 

Operating Revennes 
Charges for Services $900,940 $ 900,940 $1,000,706 $ 99,766 $ 929,021 
Reimbursements 30,000 30,000 371,583 341,583 391,039 

Total Operating Revenues 930,940 930,940 1,372,289 441,349 1,320,060 

Operating Expenses 
Health Insurance Claims Paid 673,940 1,033,940 1,029,796 4,144 1,120,282 
Health and Life Insurance Premium, 73,000 128,000 130,768 (2,768) 67,017 
Payflex Expenditures 68,200 68,200 55,955 12,245 47,882 
Workers Compensation Claims Paid 127,992 127,992 68,102 59,890 12,167 
Other Services and Charges 26,800 26,800 28,080 (1,280) 26,336 

Total Operating Expenses 969,932 1,384,932 1,312,701 72,231 1,273,684 

Operating Income (38,992) (453,992) 59,588 513,580 46,376 

Non-Operating Revenues 
Interest 1,000 1,000 2,114 1,114 1,312 

Change in Net Assets $ (37,992) $(452,992) 61,702 $ 514,694 47,688 

Total Net Assets, Beginning of Year (10,006) (57,694) 

Total Net Assets, End of Year $ 51,696 $ (10,006) 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

SELF-INSURED GROUP INSURANCE FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Receipts From Customers and Users $ 1,589,902 
Payments to suppliers (1,342,701) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 247,201 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Advance from (Repayment to) General Fund (250,000) 

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities (250,000) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest Received 2,114 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 2,114 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash (685) 

Cash, Beginning of Year 22,190 

Cash, End of Year $ 21,505 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income $ 59,588 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable 217,613 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Incurred But Not Reported (30,000) 

Total Adjustments 187,613 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 247,201 
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Schedule 1-3 

2006 

$ 972,256 
(l,270,795) 

(298,539) 

315,000 
315,000 

1,312 
1,312 

17,773 

4,417 

$ 22,190 

$ 46,376 

(347,804) 
2,889 

(344,915) 

$ (298,539) 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 

Assets 
Investments with Fiscal Agent $ 15,684,766 $ 

Total Assets 15,684,766 

Net Assets 
Reserved for Employees' Retirement System 15,684,766 

Total Net Assets $ 15,684,766 $ 
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Schedule J-1 

2006 

14,540,272 

14,540,272 

14,540,272 

14,540,272 



Assets 
Investments with Fiscal Agent 

Total Assets 

Net Assets 
Reserved for Employees' 

Retirement System 

Total Net Assets 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Board 

of 
General Public 

Firefighters Police Govemment Works 

$ 5,171,969 $ 2~127,946 $2,337,78:;_ $ 6,047,066 

5,171,969 2,127,946 2,337,785 6,047,066 

5,171,969 2,127,94(i 2,337,185 _ 6,047,066 

Total 

$ 15~5i84,766 

15,684,766 

_15,684,]66 

$ 5,171.969 $ 2,127.946 $ 2,337,78~_ $6,047,06iL . $ 15.684,76.6... 
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Schedule J-2 

2006 
Totals 

$ 14,540,272 

14,540,272 

14,:;10,272 

$ 14,540.272 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Schedule J-3 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Additions: 
Contributions: 
Employer 
Employee 

Total Contributions 

Iuvestment Income: 
Net Appreciation in Fair Value 

of Investments 

Total Additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit Payments 
Administrative Costs 

Total Deductions 

Net Increase 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, 
Beginning of Year 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, 
End of Year 
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$ 

$ 

2007 

430,811 
418,159 
848,970 

1,350,663 

2,199,633 

1,037,897 
17,242 

1,055,139 

1,144,494 

14,540,272 

15,684,766 

$ 

$ 

2006 

442,993 
397,105 
840,098 

858,878 

1,698,976 

1,556,027 
14,104 

1,570,l31 

128,845 

14,411,427 

14,540,272 



Additions: 
Contributions: 
Employer 
Employee 

Total Contributions 

Investluent Income: 
Net Appreciation in Fair 

Value of Investments 

Total Additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit Payments 
Administrative Costs 

Total Deductions 

Net Increase 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension 
Benefits, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension 
Benefits, End of Year 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

2007 
Board 

of 
General Public 

Firefighters Police Govemment Works 

$ 122,022 $ 87,177 $ 67,594 $ 154,018 
61,011 59,336 78,430 219,382 

183,033 146,513 146,024 373,400 

580,093 204,879 171,796 393,895 

763,126 351,392 317,820 767,295 

643,832 52,488 62,944 278,633 
5,089 7,395 4,758 

648,921 59,883 67,702 278,633 

114,205 291,509 250,118 488,662 

5,057,764 1,836,437 2,087,667 5,558,404 

$ 5,171,969 $ 2,127,946 $ 2,337,785 $ 6,047,066 
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Schedule J-4 

2006 
Total Totals 

$ 430,811 $ 442,993 
418,159 397,105 
848,970 840,098 

1,350,663 858,878 

2,199,633 1,698,976 

1,037,897 1,556,027 
17,242 14,104 

1,055,139 1,570,131 

1,144,494 128,845 

14,540,272 14,411,427 

$ 15,684,766 $ 14,540,272 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash Contributions Received 
Cash TerrninationslRetirements Paid 
Other Operating Charges Paid 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 
Purchase oflnvestments 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginuing of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliatiou of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjnstments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities 
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2007 

$ 848,970 
(1,037,897) 

(17,242) 
(206,169) 

1,350,663 
(1,144,494) 

206,169 

$ 

$ 1,144,494 

(1,350,663) 

$ (206,169) 

Schedule J-5 

2006 

$ 840,098 
(1,556,027) 

(14,104) 
(730,033) 

858,878 
(128,845) 
730,033 

$ 

$ 128,845 

(858,878) 

$ (730,033) 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PENSION TRUST FUND - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Cash Contributions Received 
Cash TenninationslRetirements Paid 
Other Operating Charges Paid 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest and Dividends 011 Investments 
Sale (Purchase) ofInvestments 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash 

Cash and Cash EqUivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash EqUivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
h,terest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) 
Operating Activities 

Firefighters 

$ 183,033 
(643,832) 

(5,089) 

(465,888) 

580,093 
(114,205) 

465,888 

$ 

$ 114,205 

(580,093) 

$ (465,888) 

Police 

$ 146,513 
(52,488) 

(7,395) 

86,630 

204,879 
(291,509) 

(86,630) 

$ 

$ 291,509 

(204,879) 

$ 86,630 
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2007 
Board 

of 
General Public 

Government Works 

$ 146,024 $ 373,400 
(62,944) (278,633) 

(4,758) 

78,322 94,767 

171,796 393,895 
(250,118) (488,662) 

(78,3221 (94,767) 

$ $ 

$ 250,118 $ 488,662 

(171,796) (393,895) 

$ 78,322 $ 94,767 

Schedule J-6 

2006 
Total Totals 

$ 848,970 $ 840,098 
(1,037,897) (1,556,027) 

(17,242) (14,104) 

(206,169) (730,033) 

1,350,663 858,878 
(1,144,494) (128,845) 

206,169 730,033 

$ $ 

$1,144,494 $ 128,845 

(1,350,663) (858,878) 

$ (206,169) $ (730,033) 



CITY OF BEATRlCE, NEBRASKA 
COMPONENT UNITS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash aud cash equivalents 
Investments 
Cash on deposit - County Treasurer 
Accounts receivable 

Taxes receivable 
Inventories 
Current portion of TIF notes receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital Assets 

Land 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Net Capital Assets 

Other Assets 
TIF notes receivable, net of current portion 
Unamortized bond issuance costs 

Total Other Assets 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Deferred revenues 
Dne to City of Beatrice 
Warrents payable 
Current maturities of TIF payable 
Current maturities oflong-term debt 

Total Cnrrent Liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities, net of current portion 
Noncurrent portion of deferred rent 
Bonds payable 
TIF payable 
Notes and leases payable 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted net assets 

Total Net Assets 

$ 
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Beatrice 
Airport 

Authority 

111,983 
150,000 
29,658 

104,748 
13,300 
57,416 

467,105 

337,622 
2,103,611 
2,441,233 

3,034 
3,034 

2,444,267 

2,911,372 

107,969 
39,693 

22,600 

73,532 
243,794 

89,774 
135,000 

19,332 
244,106 
487,900 

2,216,403 
36,225 

170,844 

$ 2,423,472 

Beatrice 
Community 

Redevelopment 
Authority 

$ (17,241) 

6,869 

12,536 

377,178 
379,342 

4,305,301 

4,305,301 

4,305,301 

4,684,643 

18,014 

50,000 
65,801 
58,363 

185,000 
377,178 

1,675,000 
2,642,837 

4,317,837 
4,695,015 

(10,372) 

$ (10,372) 

Schedule K-1 

Total 
Component 

Units 

$ 94,742 
150,000 

36,527 
104,748 
25,836 
57,416 

377,178 
846,447 

337,622 
2,103,611 
2,441,233 

4,305,301 
3,034 

4,308,335 

6,749,568 

7,596,015 

107,969 
39,693 
18,014 
22,600 
50,000 
65,801 
58,363 

258,532 
620,972 

89,774 
1,810,000 
2,642,837 

19,332 
4,561,943 
5,182,915 

2,216,403 
36,225 

160,472 

$2,413,100 



Functions/Programs 

Airport Authority: 
Airport operations 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Interest on long-tel111 debt 

Total Beatrice Airport Authority 

Expenses 

$ 521,205 
235,376 

1,011 
6,645 

764,237 

Community Redevelopment Authority: 
Conununity development 231,503 
Interest on long-term debt 112,092 
Total ConU11Unity 

Redevelopment Authority 343,595 

Total Componeut Units 

Gelleral Revenues 
Property tax 
Tax Increment 
Unrestricted intergovemmental 
Miscellaneous revenues 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

$ 1,107,832 

CITY OF BEATRICE 
COMPONENT UNITS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

$ 

$ 

Charges 
for 

Services 

373,570 

373,570 

373,570 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Grants 
and 

Contributions 

$ 

184,085 

184,085 

$ 184,085 

Capital 
Grants 

and 
Contributions 

$ 189,953 

189,953 

$ 189,953 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as previously reported 
Restatement of Net Assets 

:I/et Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated 

Net Assets, End of Year 
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$ 

SChedule K-2 

Net (Expense) Revenne and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Component Units 

Beatrice 
AirpOli 

AuthOrity 

42,318 
(235,376) 

(1,011) 
(6,645) 

(200,714) 

(200,714) 

184,188 

15,991 
27,442 

8,747 
236,368 

35,654 

2,387,818 

2,387,818 

Beatrice 
C011U11Unity 

Redevelopment 
Authority 

$ (47,418) 
(112,092) 

(159,510) 

(159,510) 

326,665 

326,665 

167,155 

(177,527) 
(177,527) 

$ 

2007 
Total 

42,318 
(235,376) 

(1,011) 
(6,645) 

(200,714) 

(47,418) 
(112,092) 

(159,510) 

(360,224) 

184,188 
326,665 

15,991 
27,442 

8,747 
563,033 

202,809 

2,387,818 
(177,527) 

2,210,291 

$ 2,423,472 $ (10,372) $ 2,413,100 



CITY OF BEATRICE Schedule L-1 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY SOURCE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 2006 
Governmental Funds Capital Assets 

Land $ 2,404,759 $ 2,373,664 
Buildings 5,045,007 4,679,861 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 3,594,326 3,523,124 
Machinery and Equipment 6,280,101 6,053,344 
Infrastructure 22,548,334 20,763,400 

Total $ 39,872,527 $ 37,393,393 

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source 
General Obligation Bonds $ 4,004,607 $ 4,004,607 
Federal and State Grants 7,134,185 6,184,173 
General Fund Revenues 26,700,889 25,325,225 
Donations 2,032,846 1,879,388 

Total Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 39,872,527 $ 37,393,393 

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital 
assets repOlted in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of 
internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 
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CITY OF BEATRICE 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

2007 
Buildings Improvements Machinery 

and Other Than and 
Function and Activity Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Infrastructure Total 

General Government 
Management and Budget $ 5,025 $ $ $ 85,155 $ $ 90,180 
Legal 4,788 4,788 
Inspection 30,897 30,897 

Total General Government 5,025 120,840 125,865 

Pu blic Safety 
Police 76,500 62,748 147,480 1,616,913 1,903,641 
Fire 1,908,691 1,908,691 

Total Public Safety 76,500 62,748 147,480 3,525,604_ ~,812,332 

Culture and Recreation 
Public Properties 2,222,657 2,330,846 3,364,642 751,214 8,669,359 
Library 100,577 2,414,092 82,204 671,966 3,268,839 

Total Culture and Recreation 2,323,234 4,744,938 3,446,846 1,423-,180 1l,9)~198 

Streets 237,321 1,210,477 21,625,258 23,073,056 

Sanitation 923,076 923,076 

Total Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets $2,404,759 $5,045,007 $3,594,326 $ 6,280,101 $22,548,334 $39,872,527 
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Schedule L-2 

2006 
Totals 

$ 87,348 
6,683 

30,897 
124,928 

1,839,485 
1,850,403 
3,689,888 

8,490,529 
2,944,400 

1l,434,929 

21,220,572 

923,076 

$37,393,393 



CITY OF BEATRICE Schedule L-3 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

Capital Assets Capital Assets 
Function and Activity 10/1/06 Additions Deductions 09/30/07 

General Government 
Management and Budget $ 87,348 $ 3,940 $ 1,108 $ 90,180 
Legal 6,683 1,895 4,788 
Inspection 30,897 30,897 

Total General Government 124,928 3,940 3,003 125,865 

Public Safety 
Police 1,839,485 129,743 65,587 1,903,641 
Fire 1,850,403 112,288 54,000 1,908,691 

Total Public Safety 3,689,888 242,031 119,587 3,812,332 

Culture aud Recreation 
Public Properties 8,490,529 317,101 138,271 8,669,359 
Library 2,944,400 335,816 11,377 3,268,839 

Total Culture and Recreation 11,434,929 652,917 149,648 11,938,198 

Streets 21,220,572 1,902,401 49,917 23,073,056 

Sanitation 923,076 923,076 

Total Governmeutal 
Funds Capital Assets $ 37,393,393 $ 2,801 ,289 $ 322,155 $ 39,872,527 
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SECTION 3 

STATISTICAL SECTION 





CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 1 
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENTS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Governmental Activities 

Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $20,075,667 $ 21,654,093 $ 19,908,477 $ 21,437,464 $24,852,789 
Restricted 1,574,517 1,876,590 1,718,362 3,733,809 3,560,378 
Unrestricted 1,243,908 (339,060) 1,401,146 1,018,752 1,404,834 

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $ 22,894,092 $ 23,191,623 $ 23,027,985 $ 26,190,025 $29,818,001 

BU5iness~type Activities 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $ 21,503,986 $ 22,840,444 $ 22,943,802 $ 23,669,489 $ 24,082,895 
Restricted 732,489 741,487 
Unrestricted 5,300,332 3,398,774 3,674,447 1,445,042 1,234,177 

Total Business-type Activities Net Assets $ - $ - $ -$ - $ $26,804,318 $ 26,239,218 $ 26,618,249 $ 25,847,020 $ 26,058,559 

Primary Government 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $ $ $ $ $ $ 41,579,653 $ 44,494,537 $ 42,852,279 $ 45,1 06,953 $ 48,935,684 
Restricted 1,574,517 1,876,590 1,718,362 4,466,298 4,301,865 

Unrestricted 6,544,240 3,059,714 5,075,593 2,463,794 2,639,011 
Total Primary Government Net Assets $ $ $ $ $ $ 49,698,41 0 $ 49,430,841 $ 49,646,234 $ 52,037,045 $ 55,876,560 

2003 - Implementation of GASB 34 

2005 - Restatement in 2006 financials 

2006 - Restatement due to compensated absences in governmental funds and reclassifying Community Redevelopment Authority as a component unit 
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Expenses 
Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Streets 
Culture and Recreation 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 
Business-type Activities 

Electric 
Water 
Water Pollution Control 
Off-Street Parking 
Sanitation 
Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency 

Total Business-type Activities Expenses 
Total Primary Government Expenses 
Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Charges for Services: 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Culture and Recreation 
Other Governmental Activities 

Operating Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

1998 1999 

$ $ $ 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

2000 2001 2002 

$ $ 

2003 2004 2005 

$ 3,856,369 $ 2,381,834 $ 2,534,949 
3,954,312 3,976,443 4,199,255 
3,000,884 2,234,234 2,068,107 
1,536,976 1,382,277 1,164,624 

81,337 58,176 141,854 
12,429,878 10,032,964 10,108,789 

10,011,509 9,992,361 10,459,639 
1,558,393 1,662,178 1,631,342 
1,242,411 1,294,085 1,350,663 

28,182 
1,023,608 1,047,352 1,066,056 

859,694 815,750 882,331 
14,723,797 14,811,726 15,390,031 

$ 27,153,675 $ 24,844,690 $ 25,498,820 

$ 1,293,248 $ 959,092 $ 979,857 
631,460 618,717 770,979 
375,281 356,773 246,427 

950 6,390 26,757 
1,500,639 1,641,935 2,140,648 
1,830,176 458,219 307,453 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues .... ,1,1 .... ,,'......... .....,1,1 ..... I, ,"-v ..... , ..... , ~ r C''}~ "7r" "nA~ .. .-,C' A A"7'-',121 
Business-type Activities 

Charges for Services: 
Electric 
Water 
Water Pollution Control 
Sanitation 
Beatrice Area Solid Waste Agency 
Other Business-type Activities 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

10,409,284 10,066,889 10,828,533 
1,402,693 1,387,434 1,545,380 
1,077,881 1,049,083 1,062,860 
1,023,608 1,047,352 1,066,056 

957,043 903,927 930,981 
30,382 

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues 14,900,891 14,4b4,titlb 1 b,4;;S;;S,tI 1 0 

Table 2 

2006 2007 

$ 1,534,901 $ 1,525,313 
4,221,570 4,814,618 
1,322,483 1,583,261 
1,337,021 1,661,496 

156,582 51,357 
8,572,557 9,636,045 

10,754,605 11,352,226 
1,716,187 1,685,340 
1,434,806 1,469,718 

1,072,664 1,139,633 
1,048,967 1,075,677 

16,027,229 16,722,594 
$ 24,599,786 $ 26,358,639 

$ 345,007 $ 371,674 
1,306,089 1,402,026 

250,418 192,847 
37,492 34,318 

1,525,902 1,829,626 
461,506 1,378,513 

3,926,414 5,209,004 

10,964,847 11,524,236 
1,643,628 1,625,956 
1,156,364 1,129,261 
1,072,664 1,139,633 

923,420 997,495 

455,095 214,223 

Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ $ $ $ $ $20,532,645 $18,495,811 $19,905,931 $ 20,142,432 $ 21,839,808 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 2 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Net (Expense) Revenue 
Governmental Activities: $ $ $ $ $ $ (6,798,124) $ (5,991,838) $ (5,636,668) $ (4,646,143) $ (4,427,041) 
Business-type Activities 177,094 (357,041) 43,779 188,789 (91,790) 
Total Primary Government Net (Expense) $ $ $ $ $ $ (6,621,030) $ (6,348,879) $ (5,592,889) L~,457,354) $ (4,518,831) 

General Revenues and Other Changes 
in Net Assets 

Governmental Activities: 
Taxes $ 4,102,572 $ 4,631,501 $ 4,487,542 $ 4,668,783 $ 4,987,528 
Unrestricted Intergovernmental 388,778 418,468 383,844 453,478 555,063 
Miscellaneous Revenues 484,498 839,042 538,916 414,510 302,369 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 44,477 33,266 69,412 142,609 136,094 
Lease Proceeds 299,990 
Transfers 60,000 356,829 
Gain (loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 40,000 4,071 (6,684) 4,451 (84,842) 

Total Governmental Activities 5,420,315 6,283,177 5,473,030 5,683,831 5,896,212 
Business-type Activities: 

Miscellaneous Revenues 252,942 116,105 335,657 121,725 171,536 
Investment Earnings 53,154 38,857 59,192 110,699 131,793 
Transfers (356,829) 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets (60,692) 

Total Business-type Activities 306,096 (201,867) 334,157 232,424 303,329 
Total Primary Government $ $ $ $ $ $ 5,726,411 $ 6,081,310 $ 5,807,187 $ 5,916,255 __ LJl,199,541 

Change in Net Assets 
Governmental Activities $ $ $ $ $ $ (1,377,809) $ 291,339 $ (163,638) $ 1,037,688 $ 1,469,171 
Business-type Activities 483,190 (558,908) 377,936 421,213 211,539 
Total Primary Government $ $ $ $ $ $ (894,619)_$ (267,569) $ 214,298 $ 1,458,901 $ 1,680,710 

2003 - Implementation of GASB 34 
2005 - Restatement in 2006 Financials 
2006 - Restatement due to compensated absences in governmental funds and reclassifying Community Redevelopment Authority as a component unit 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

FISCAL PROPERTY SALES UTILITY OTHER 
YEAR TAX TAX OCC. TAX OCC. TAX TOTAL 

1998 (1 ) $ 862,425 $ 1,985,762 $ 457,070 $ 18,735 $ 3,323,992 

1999 1,050,881 2,082,510 461,075 16,043 3,610,509 

2000 (2) 1,126,925 2,328,519 462,345 16,245 3,934,034 

2001 (3) 1,140,204 2,458,680 630,511 15,980 4,245,375 

2002 (4) 1,079,319 2,456,856 496,516 14,845 4,047,536 

2003 1,129,960 2,410,431 546,536 15,645 4,102,572 

2004 (5) 1,236,778 2,804,409 574,788 15,526 4,631,501 

2005 1,250,205 2,666,234 557,578 13,525 4,487,542 

2006 (6) 1,345,681 2,609,294 693,266 20,542 4,668,783 

2007 1,437,813 2,813,973 715,056 20,686 4,987,528 

(1) State Statutory change recognizing Motor Vehicle Taxes as County Revenue, not as a levied tax. 
(2) Increase in sales tax revenue due to the opening of a retail giant in February 2000. 
(3) Utility Occupation Tax increase due to exceptionally cold winter and high natural gas prices 
(4) Utility Occupation taxes returned back to the 2000 level due to natural gas use and price 

For the first time sales tax did not increase which is a refiection of the current economy, however 
remaining stable could be viewed as positive when compared to the state's decreased projections. 

(5) Sales Tax increase due to expanded tax base implemented by the State Legislature 
(6) Utility Occupation Taxes amended to include wireless phone service 
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1998 
General Fund 

Reserved 
Unreserved, undesignated $1,153,336 

Unreserved, designated for 

subsequent years' expenditures 250,000 
Total General Fund $1,403,336 

All other governmental funds 

Reserved for: 
Reserved for Economic Development $ 19,691 

Reserved for Debt Service 228,510 

Reserved for Library Capital 91,735 

Reserved for Public Safety 102,357 

Reserved for Storm Water Management 0 
Reserved for Keno Progressive 150,933 

Reserved for CDBG Revolving Loans 517,941 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special Revenue funds 1,072,092 

Debt Service Funds (452,425) 

Capital Projects funds 23,192 

Total all other governmental funds $1,754,026 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

$1,028,426 $1,474,484 $1,463,851 $1,506,408 $ 990,220 

250,000 250,000 550,000 470,000 570,000 
$1,278,426 $1,724,484 $2,013,851 $1,976,408 $1,560,220 

$ 31,689 $ 167,604 $ 313,171 $ 431,340 $ 532,318 

235,089 247,669 229,581 223,638 492,957 

87,421 91,816 90,079 90,263 91,583 

0 266,232 172,661 70,590 47,106 

° 0 0 0 0 

161,092 165,833 0 0 0 

470,877 681,689 770,074 304,619 410,553 

1,232,807 1,185,944 909,598 467,156 70,277 

(613,551) (185,553) 167,179 0 (199,997) 

54,582 32,467 1,944 42,278 63,863 

$1,660,006 $2,653,701 $ 2,654,287 $ 1,629,884 $ 1,5Q!i,660 

1997 - Capital Projects fund balance included proceeds for New Water Park 
2001 - New Keno Operator discontinued progressive game 
2004 - Community Revelopment Authority fund large TIF project still in progress at year end 
2005 - Restatement in 2006 Financials 

2004 2005 

$ 1,311,328 $ 1,190,438 

570,000 570,000 
$ 1,881,328 $ 1,760,438 

$ 664,788 $ 845,281 
370,480 233,006 

92,120 94,083 
109,613 184,598 

0 0 

0 0 
639,589 361,394 

(1,908,825) 71,699 

(84,177) (159,872) 

30,075 22,766 

$ (86,337) $ 1,652,955 

2006 - Restatement due to compensated absences in governmental funds and reclassifying Community Redevelopment Authority as a component unit 
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Table 4 

2006 2007 

$1,262,195 $1,450,957 

445,000 491,000 
$1,707,195 $1,941,957 

$ 861,742 $ 675,162 

223,587 217,103 

97,106 96,835 

235,366 266,131 

0 31,262 

0 0 

2,316,008 2,305,147 

8,287 184,959 

(183,671) (235,058) 

34,799 3,462 

$3,593,224 $3,545,003 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 5 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 
Revenues 
Taxes $ 3,323,992 $ 3,610,509 $3,934,034 $4,245,375 $ 4,047,536 $4,102,572 $ 4,631,501 $ 4,487,542 $4,668,783 $4,987,528 
Licenses & Permits 72,285 95,069 124,690 89,054 86,120 75,169 98,084 106,454 94,817 199,008 
Intergovernmental and Grants 1,925,036 1,927,638 2,136,553 3,369,977 3,385,058 3,719,593 2,345,948 2,602,708 2,452,508 3,457,823 
Charges for Services 712,875 806,826 792,720 729,622 927,667 916,447 1,073,036 1,167,068 1,461,191 1,773,046 
Keno Proceeds 218,602 156,903 125,889 251,975 167,404 179,889 172,674 135,253 93,706 109,558 
Special Assessments 145,723 105,393 374,611 325,257 156,549 575,503 146,619 93,984 159,761 103,792 
Interest 230,513 164,978 208,365 220,132 83,257 44,157 33,055 68,976 141,297 152,259 
Donations and Mise Revenue 581,722 613,013 1,047,505 446,967 680,385 498,554 839,042 538,916 532,419 404,930 
Loan Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 216,263 
Lease Income 110,551 107,067 108,413 109,363 109,945 110,145 0 0 0 0 
Total revenues 7,321,299 7,587,396 8,852,780 9,787,722 9,643,921 10,222,029 9,339,959 9,200,901 9,604,482 11,404,207 

Expenditures 
General Government 1,624,893 1,580,628 1,423,747 1,350,144 2,043,008 1,925,040 1,632,846 1,456,889 1,338,934 1,297,993 
Public Safety 2,558,393 2,705,550 2,852,268 3,064,295 3,171,902 3,667,750 3,660,010 3,900,882 4,105,029 4,552,974 
Highways and Streets 1,345,572 1,220,927 1,393,513 2,434,542 2,225,867 2,464,023 1,677,969 1,968,128 898,007 968,064 
Culture and Recreation 883,663 891,612 946,926 1,029,748 1,053,991 1,097,953 1,055,237 1,164,624 1,141,291 1,321,558 
Lease Payments 110,551 107,067 108,413 109,363 109,945 110,145 0 0 0 0 
Debt Service: 

Principal 449,400 471,600 734,149 492,082 508,210 394,372 354,803 535,000 325,000 165,000 
Interest 219,828 159,275 115,986 172,229 123,328 81,337 58,176 141,854 156,582 51,357 

Capital Outlay 2,347,991 774,316 1,300,788 736,714 1,367,995 1,237,479 2,596,514 740,767 2,077,272 2,755,667 
MFa Payments to Other Entities 0 0 0 111,165 116,522 121,332 118,336 120,880 122,576 122,907 
Total Expenditures 9,540,291 7,910,975 8,875,790 9,500,282 10,720,768 11,099,431 11,153,891 10,029,024 10,164,691 11,235,520 

Excess of Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures (2,218,992) (323,579) (23,010) 287,440 (1,076,847) (877,402) (1,813,932) (828,123) (560,209) 168,687 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers In 1,161,269 1,032,733 1,644,465 1,412,267 880,832 527,577 142,251 341,370 387,000 313,958 
Transfers Out (1,161,269) (1,032,733) (1,644,465) (1,412,267) (880,832) (527,577) (142,251) (341,370) (387,000) (313,958) 
Bond Issuance Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (33,834) 0 0 
Bond and Lease Proceeds 500,000 0 1,334,595 299,990 0 2,480,000 0 0 
Sale of Capital Assets 48,000 101,199 129,700 0 15,000 40,000 540,043 359 39,100 17,854 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 548,000 101,199 1,464,295 0 15,000 339,990 540,043 __ 2,<146,525 39,100 17,854 

Net Change in Fund Balances $(1,670,992) $ (222,380) $1,441,285 $ 287,440 $J1 ,061 ,847) $ (537,412) $ (1,273,889) $L618,402 $ (521,109)_$ 186,541 

Debt Service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 9,5% 9.0% 11.4% 7.8% 6.9% 4.9% 4.9% 7.4% 6.0% 2.6% 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE 

OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Personal Property TOTAL 
FISCAL ASSESSED ASSESSED ESTIMATED 
YEAR VALUE (1) VALUE (1) ACTUAL VALUE 

1998 $ 336,670,423 nfa $ 336,670,423 

1999 345,805,905 nfa 345,805,905 

2000 352,946,080 nfa 352,946.080 

2001 366,646,731 nfa 366,646,731 

2002 403.585,978 nfa 403.585,978 

2003 415,500,759 nfa 415,500,759 

2004 437,194,620 nfa 437,194,620 

2005 453,422,564 nfa 453,422,564 

2006 463,420,813 nfa 463,420,813 

2007 481,285,347 16,002,826 497,288,173 

(1) As provided by the County Assessor, includes both real and personal property 
Breakdown not available for past years. 
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Table 6 

RATIO OF 
PERCENT ASSESSED TO 

OF GROWTH EST. ACTUAL 

8.60% 

2.71% 1 

2.06% 

3.88% 

10.07% 

2.95% 

5.22% 

3.71% 1 

2.21% 

7.31% 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 7 
PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES (PER $100 VALUATION) 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL CITY OF SCHOOL GAGE SPECIAL TOTAL 
YEAR BEATRICE DIST. #15 COUNTY TAXDIST. AIRPORT TAX RATE 

1998 0.26562 1.41445 0.378711 0.162913 0,03444 2.256134 

1999 0,303103 1.288162 0,358842 0.128575 0.038208 2.116890 

2000 0,308912 1.279411 0,355436 0.093486 0,042524 2,079769 

2001 0,302007 1.298063 0,353581 0,091067 0,043048 2,087766 

2002 0,273986 1.167993 0,364278 0,124815 0,041043 1,972115 

2003 0,273985 1.167071 0.391282 0,125460 0,040610 1,998408 

2004 0,273984 1,168804 0.401505 0,123692 0,046065 2,014050 

2005 0.275890 1,168805 0.387777 0,125965 0,042787 2,001224 

2006 0,29352 1,161633 0,369699 0,127308 0,041655 1,993815 

2007 0,29352 1,161632 0,327795 0,132702 0,040008 1.955657 
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TAXPAYER 

KH Beatrice LLC 

Wal-Mart Stores 

Beatrice Retirement Inc. 
Cornhusker Hospitality II, LLC 
Farmers Co-op Elevator 

Sea Breeze Land Development 
Stanley T & Judy E Meyer 

LTC Properties 

Homestead Village 
Beatrice Biodiesel LLC 

DDM Investments 

Hoover Universal 
Beatrice Manor 
Sanford Sander man, trustee 

Source: Gage County Assessor 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

TYPE OF BUSINESS 

(1) Manufacturing 

Shopping Mall 

Retirement home 
(1) Hotel 

Grain/Feed Elevator 
Manufacturing 
Shopping Mall plus other 

Retirement home/assisted 
Retirement home/complex 

(1) Manufacturing Plant 

Shopping Mall 

Manufacturing 
Retirement home/assisted 
Grocery store 

2007 

ASSESSED 

%OFTOTAL 

ASSESSED 

VALUATION Rank VALUATION 

$ 13,020,425 

6,840,855 

3,451,635 

2,821,370 

2,568,325 

2,484,380 

2,345,290 

2,170,000 

2,072,110 

1,956,650 

$ 39,731,040 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

2,71% 

1.42% 

0.72% 

0,59% 

0,53% 

0,52% 

0.49% 

0.45% 

0.43% 

0.41% 

8,26% 

(a) Real Estate Valuation only, does not include personal property 

(1) Currently under Tax Increment Financing 
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1998 

ASSESSED 

%OFTOTAL 

ASSESSED 

VALUATION Rank VALUATION 

1,436,045 7 0.43% 

1,983,650 2 0.59% 

1,101,000 9 0,33% 

1,943,550 3 0,58% 

1,593,605 4 0.47% 

1,500,000 5 0.45% 

3,300,000 0.98% 

1,485,210 6 0.44% 

1,200,000 8 0.36% 

1,100,000 10 0.33% 

$ 16,643,060 4.94% 

Table 8 



FISCAL TOTAL 
YEAR TAX LEVY 

1998 $ 894,269 

1999 1,048,149 

2000 1,090,295 

2001 1,107,296 

2002 1,105,767 

2003 1,138,409 

2004 1,197,846 

2005 1,250,949 

2006 1,360,231 

2007 1,459,640 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

SUBSE-
FISCAL %OF QUENT TOTAL 
YEARS LEVY YEARS TAXCOLL. 

TAXCOLL. COLL. TAXCOLL. TO DATE 

$ 849,716 95.02% $ 44,046 $ 893,762 

996,783 95.10% 51,785 1,048,568 

1,031,878 94.64% 60,609 1,092,487 

1,040,483 93.97% 51,355 1,091,838 

1,034,788 93.58% 62,630 1,097,418 

1,072,347 94.20% 64,449 1,136,796 

1,155,652 96.48% 45,655 1,201,307 

1,197,780 95.75% 51,862 1,249,642 

1,302,036 95.72% 56,551 1,358,587 

1,393,092 95.44% 0 1,393,092 
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Table 9 

% TOTAL 
TAX 

COLL. 
OF LEVY 

99.9% 

100.0% 

100.2% 

98.6% 

99.2% 

99.9% 

100.3% 

99.9% 

99.9% 

95.4% 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
General Development Utility Utility BASWA 

FISCAL Obligation General Revenue Capital Revenue State Revenue 
YEAR Bonds Notes Bonds Leases Bonds Notes Bonds 

1998 $ 2,150,000 $ $ 845,600 $ 3,540,000 $ $ 2,440,000 

1999 1,870,000 654,000 3,335,000 2,330,000 

2000 2.720.000 225.000 82,548 3,125,000 2,215,000 

2001 2,375,000 115,000 42,518 2,905,000 2,090,000 

2002 2,020.000 2.575.000 2.561.538 1.650,000 

2003 1,665,000 214,285 2,305,000 2,460,379 1,590,000 

2004 1.375.000 274,265 2,040,000 2,361,592 1,415,000 

2005 1,105,000 2,215,000 232,864 1,765,000 2,259.639 1.235.000 

2006 955,000 2.040.000 185.739 1,475,000 2,154,419 1,050,000 

2007(a) 790,000 216,263 139,989 1,180,000 2,045,825 855,000 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements 
See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data 

(a) 2007 Community Redevelopment Authority reclassified as a component unit 
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Table 10 

Total % 
Capital Primary Personal Per 
Leases Government Income Capita 

$ 155,685 $ 9,131,285 3.30% 738.54 

120,225 8,309,225 2.77% 671.18 

282,000 8,649,548 2.82% 698.67 

234,730 7,762,248 2.44% 620.88 

193,294 8,999,832 2.66% 719.41 

144.880 8.379.544 2.56% 669.83 

102,490 7,568,347 2.15% 604.98 

52.806 8,865,309 2.35% 708.20 

76,441 7,936,599 2.11% 634.01 

59,464 5,286,541 1.36% 422.32 



ESTIMATED 
FISCAL ACTUAL 
YEAR VALUE 

1998 $336,670,423 

1999 345,805,905 

2000 (a) 352,946,080 

2001 366,646,731 

2002 403,585,978 

2003 (b) 415,500,759 

2004 437,194,620 

2005 453,422,564 

2006 463,420,813 

2007 481,285,347 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
RATIOS GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

LESS DEBT %OF 
GENERAL SERVICE NET ASSESSED 

OBLIGATION FUNDS BONDED TAXABLE 
BONDS AVAILABLE DEBT VALUE 

$ 2,150,000 $ 113,353 $ 2,036,647 0.60% 

1,870,000 102,189 1,767,811 0.51% 

2,720,000 124,209 2,595,791 0.74% 

2,375,000 108,141 2,266,859 0.62% 

2,020,000 223,638 1,796,362 0.45% 

1,665,000 492,957 1,172,043 0.28% 

1,375,000 370,480 1,004,520 0.23% 

1,105,000 233,006 871,994 0.19% 

995,000 223,587 771,413 0.17% 

790,000 217,103 572,897 0.12% 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements 
See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page_for population data 

(a) Public Safety Tax Anticipation Bonds issued December, 1999 in the amount of $485,000 and 
General Obligation Various Purpose Bonds issued January 2000 in the amount of $655,000 

(b) Water Park Bonds were refunded in November 2002, 
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Table 11 

NET 
BONDED 

PER 
CAPITA 

164.72 

142.80 

209.68 

181.32 

143.59 

93.69 

80.30 

69.66 

61.62 

45.77 



JURISDICTION 

DIRECT: 

City of Beatrice 

Airport Authority 

OVERLAPPING: 

School District #15 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 

NET DEBT 
OUTSTANDING 

$ 

$ 

771,413 

227,864 

$ 7,741,447 

PERCENT 
APPLICABLE 
TO CITY OF 
BEATRICE 

AMOUNT 
APPLICABLE 
TO CITY OF 
BEATRICE 

100.00% $ 771,413 

100.00% $ 227,864 

64.20% $ 4,970,009 

Lower Big Blue Natural Resources District $ 73,898 18.90% $ 13,967 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 13 
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE 

ELECTRIC, WATER, AND SEWER BONDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TOTAL 
REVENUE 

TOTAL AVAILABLE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
FISCAL OPERATING OPERATING FOR DEBT COV-
YEAR REVENUES EXPENSES( 1) SERVICE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL ERAGE 

1998 $10,014,775 $8,125,492 $ 1,889,283 $ 195,000 $224,734 $419,734 4.50 

1999 10,020,070 8,277,081 1,742,989 205,000 179,981 384,981 4.53 

2000 11,623,557 9,001,102 2,622,455 210,000 175,183 385,183 6.81 

2001 12,484,851 10,261,148 2,223,703 220,000 183,315 403,315 5.51 

2002 (a) 12,805,886 10,448,362 2,357,524 330,000 211,167 541,167 4.36 

2003 12,889,858 10,894,933 1,994,925 399,599 123,640 523,239 3.81 

2004 12,503,406 10,874,129 1,629,277 382,747 181,980 564,727 2.89 

2005 13,436,773 11,280,512 2,156,261 376,953 173,006 549,959 3.92 

2006 13,681,795 11,719,683 1,962,112 395,220 160,872 556,092 3.53 

2007 14,166,081 12,355,830 1,810,251 403,594 125,884 529,478 3.42 

Note: Details of the outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(1) Total Operating Expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortization. 

(a) The 1996 and 1997 Bond issues were refunded with a new $2,575,000 issue 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TOTAL PER CAPITA 
FISCAL PERSONAL PERSONAL MEDIAN SCHOOL 
YEAR POPULATION(1) INCOME INCOME(4) AGE (3) ENROLLMENT(2) 

1998 12,364 276,434,312 22,358 39 2,340 

1999 12,380 299,571,240 24,198 39 2,322 

2000 12,380 306,330,720 24,744 37.2 2,323 

2001 12,502 318,088,386 25,443 39.9 2,285 

2002 12,510 338,708,250 27,075 39.9 2,264 

2003 12,510 327,874,590 26,209 39.9 2,281 

2004 12,510 352,043,910 28,141 39.9 2,326 

2005 12,518 376,453,814 30,073 40.6 2,266 

2006 12,518 376,578,994 30,083 40.1 2,221 

2007 12,518 388,058,000 31,000 40.1 2,181 

SOURCES: 

(1) U.S. Census 2000 plus annexations filed 

(2) School District #15, Board of Education Office, Beatrice, NE 
(does not include 2 parochial schools) 

(3) Nebraska Workforce Development Office 
Dept. of Labor, Lincoln, NE 

(4) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce 
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Table 14 

UNEMPLOYMENT 
RATE(3) 

1.30% 

2.10% 

2.30% 

1.90% 

2.40% 

3.50% 

3.40% 

4.10% 

3.30% 

3.60% 



Employer 

Beatrice State Developmental Center 
Exmark Manufacturing 
Beatrice Community Hospital 
Husqvarna Turf Care 
Beatrice Public Schools 
Mosaic 
Store Kraft Manufacturing 
NEAPCO 
Sheridan Industries 
City of Beatrice 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR 

Type of Activity 

Home for mentally handicapped 
Manufacturing 
Medical 
Manufacturing 
Education 
Home for mentally handicapped 
Manufacturing 
Manufacturing 
Manufacturing 
Government 

Source: Nebraska Public Power District Community Facts Book 
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Employees 

888 
704 
441 
356 
318 
310 
290 
240 
211 
141 

3,899 

Table 15 

2007 
%of 

County 
Rank Employment 

1 7.08% 
2 5.61% 
3 3.52% 
4 2.84% 
5 2.54% 
6 2.47% 
7 2.31% 
8 1.91% 
9 1.68% 
10 1.12% 

31.09% 



CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA TABLE 16 
CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-time employees as of fiscal year end 
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

FUNCTION 
General Government 8 8 7 8 8 8 7 5 5 5 
Public Safety 

Police 
Commissioned 21 21 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 
Civilians 10 10 10 11 11 12 12 11 11 11 

Fire 
Full-time Firefighters 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 
Civilians 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Culture and Recreation 11 11 13 13 13 13 13 14 14 13 
Highways and Streets 9 11 9 9 9 9 10 10 9 10 
Solid Waste Agency 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Water 11 14 12 12 12 11 13 13 14 14 
Sewer 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 
Electric 35 37 34 34 36 33 35 34 33 33 

Total 140 147 142 144 146 143 147 144 143 143 

Part-time" employees as of fiscal year end 
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

FUNCTION 
Public Safety 

Police 
Civilians 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Fire 
Reserves 10 10 10 8 6 8 9 8 8 9 

Culture and Recreation 25 25 22 20 22 17 17 20 20 20 
Solid Waste Agency 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Electric 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Total 46 46 43 38 38 35 36 38 38 39 
"Part-time employment is 1020 hours/yr or less 

Summer Water Park 43 43 55 58 50 50 54 40 40 40 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 17 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAR 
1998 1999 ~ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

FUNCTION 
General Government 

Building Permits Issued 270 263 251 230 234 232 264 267 208 253 
Public Safety 

POlice 

Physical Arrests 1,040 1,008 984 NA 1,082 1,179 746 1,382 1,191 931 
Patrol Citations 1,822 1,864 1,861 NA 2,685 2,284 1,216 3,509 2,815 2,074 
Calls for Service 21,143 20,618 20,982 NA 12,633 13,998 22,819 22,059 21,736 21,571 

Fire 
Ambulance Calls 1,402 1,315 1,605 1,418 1,501 1,590 1,687 1,803 1,960 1,928 
Fire & Rescue Calls 533 577 624 587 649 634 554 795 776 886 

Culture and recreation 

Water Park Admissions $12,198 $ 90,620 $ 80,452 $ 73,027 $ 78,916 $ 82,235 $ 62,908 $ 73,494 $ 85,892 $ 90,059 
Electric 

Average Daily Usage Commercial (MWH) 247.5 256.6 280.5 30S.1 288.1 28S.7 272.1 281.8 286.6 283.S 
Average Daily Usage Residential (MWH) 162.9 162.1 162.5 178.9 174.6 177.6 173.7 180.9 186.3 189.9 

Water 

Average Daily Consumption (gal) 4.44m 4.27m 4.S9m 4.44m 3.98m 4.41m 4.06m 4.03m 4.25m 3.9Sm 
Water Pollution Control 

Average Daily Treatment (gal) 1.69m 1.63m 1.53m 1.69m 1.46m 1.6m 1.45m 1.44m 1.5m 1.4m 

Information provided by department annual reports for the year ending during the fiscal year period. 

2001 Police data not available due to software conversion 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA Table 18 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAR 
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

FUNCTION 
Public Safety 

Police Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Fire Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Highway & Streets 
Street Lane Miles, Paved 258.4 258.4 259 259 259 259 259 264.7 270 270 
Street Lane Miles, Unpaved 34.2 34.2 34 34 34 34 34 32.4 31.7 31.7 
Storm Sewer Miles 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 
Bridges 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 
Street Lights 1439 1451 1471 1479 1492 1505 1520 1520 1535 1551 

Culture and recreation 
Number of Parks 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 
Park acreage 340 340 340 340 340 340 340 340 340 340 

Swimming Pools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Tennis Courts 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 
Ballfields 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 
Library 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Senior Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Water 
Water Main Miles 111 111 111 111 113 118 119 120 123 123 
Fire Hydrants 554 557 587 587 602 617 627 632 652 652 

Sewer 
Sanitary Sewer Miles 127 127 127 127 127 127 127 127 127 127 
Treatment Plants 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Electric 
Substations 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 
Miles 12.5KV Service 76.7 76.7 76.7 78.6 86 91 93 93 94 94 
Miles 34.5KV Service 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1 
Miles 4.16KV Service 115.1 115.1 115.1 113.2 110.2 104.2 102.2 102.2 101 92 

Information provided by department annual reports for the year ending during the fiscal year period. 
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SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 





CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Year ended September 30, 2007 

Federal Grantor 
and Program Title 

Department of Homeland Security 
Passed through Nebraska Emergency Management Agency: 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Passed through Nebraska Nahlral Resource District: 
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competative Grant 

Total Department of Homeland Security 

Department of Transportation 
Passed through Nebraska Department of Aeronautics: 

Airport Improvement Program 
Passed through Nebraska Office of Highway Safety: 

Occupant Protection 
Passed through Nebraska Department of Roads: 

Highway Planning and Construction 
Total Department of Transportation 

Department of Justice 
Direct Programs: 

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 
Public Safety IJartnership and Community J:lolicing 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 

Passed through Nebraska Crime Commission: 
Crime Victim Assistance 

Total Department of Justice 

Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed through Nebraska Depmiment of Health and Human Services: 

State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

* Maj or Program 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

97.036 
97.039 

16.575 

20.106 

20.602 

20.205 

16.607 
16.710 
16.738 

16.575 

16.575 

Expenditures 

$ 30,963 

$ 

48,845 

25,350 
105,158 

185,033 

19,991 

843,557 * 
1,048,581 

1,001 
7,606 

58,300 

39,964 
106,871 

4,000 

1,264,610 

The accompanying schednle of expenditnres of federal awards inclndes the federal grant 
activity of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
The infonnation in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 

The repOliing entity for the Schedule of Expenditnres of Federal Awards is the same as that 
defined in Note A to the financial statements. 
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ALMQUIST 
MALTZAHN 
GALlDWAY 

&..WTH 
CERTIFIED 
PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City ofBeatr-ice, Nebraska 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
the aggregate remaining [,md information, and the fiduciary llmds of the City of 
Beatrice, Nebraska, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2007, which 
collectively comprise the City of Beatrice, Nebraska's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 26, 2008. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Amelica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the City of Beatrice's internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over financial reporting_ Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofthe City's internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or opemtion of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned 
fimctions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that 
adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report 
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or 
detected by the City's internal controL 

Wealth Management, LlC, Registered Investment Advisor, is affiliated with Almquist, Maltzahn, Galloway & Luth, p,c. 
and offers wealth management and investment advisory services. 
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material wealmesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Beatrice's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, in a 
separate letter dated February 26, 2008. 

111is report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and City 
Council, the State of Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts, and federal awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Grand Island, Nebraska 
February 26, 2008 
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ALMQUIST 
MALTZAHN 
GALLOWAY 

~WTH 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE 
TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Beatrice, Nebraska 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Us. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2007. The City's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of Beatrice, Nebraska's compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 

ill our opinion, the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, complied, in all material respects, with 
the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended September 30, 2007. 

Wealth Management, lLC, Registered Investment Advisor, is affiliated with Almquist, Maltzahn, Galloway & Luth, p,c. 
and offers wealth management and investment advisory services. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska, is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In plamllng and performing our 
audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to detennine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opilllon on compliance and to test and report on the 
intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the internal control that might be material wealrnesses. A material weakness is a 
significant deficiency in which the design or operation of one or more of the intemal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a 
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters 
involving the intemal control over compliance and its opcmtion that we consider to be material 
wealrnesses. 

This repOli is intended solely for the infOlmation and use of management, the State of Nebraska 
Auditor of Public ACCOlUltS, and federal awarding agencies and pass-thTOugh entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

A~.~~~, 
G.Ml.,vJ~ ~ ~,"'.C. 

Grand Island, Nebraska 
February 26, 2008 
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CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year ended September 30, 2007 

I. A summary of auditor's results: 

(i) An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the City of 
Beatrice, Nebraska, as of September 30, 2007. 

(ii) The audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies in the internal control of the 
City of Beatrice, Nebraska. 

(iii) The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the fmancial 
statements of the City of Beatrice, Nebraska. 

(iv) The audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies in the internal control over 
major programs for the City of Beatrice, Nebraska. 

(v) An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs. 

(vi) The audit did not disclose any audit findings which we are required to report under 
§_.5lO(a). 

(vii) Major Program: CFDA #20.205 - Highway Plmming and Construction. 

(viii) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was 
$300,000. 

(ix) The City of Beatrice, Nebraska, did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under 
§_.530. 

2. Findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance 
withGAGAS. 

None 

3. Findings and questioned costs for Federal awards which shall include audit findings as 
defined in §_.51 O( a). 

None 

168 



Program 

CITY OF BEATRICE, NEBRASKA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Year ended September 30, 2007 

Findings for the year ended September 30, 2006 

NI A - 110 single audit needed for September 30, 2006, year. 
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